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ARE TWO SIDES OF THE SAME COIN.

AS WE NAVIGATE A CHANGING WORLD, WE TAKE
TO HEART THE COLLECTIVE WISDOM TO GUIDE US

GRACEFULLY FORWARD THROUGH UNCHARTED

TERRITORY.

LET’S EMBRACE THE MAGIC OF LIFE AS IT UNFOLDS.
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FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS
BT ER

DIVIDEND PER SHARE (HK$)
SR (BTT)

16 0.041

17 0.0525
18 0.094
19 0104

0 NIL

NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY PER SHARE (HK$)
ARRIFEB NGRS FAE (BTT)

16 4.90
17 4.63

18 467

19 4.37

20 3.61

TURNOVER (HK$'M)
EXB(BREET)

16 3539

17 341

18 4137
19 4,065

20 2,914

(LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY (HK$'M)
ARFIEA AR (B1R), B (B EE8T)

16 24

17 23

18 —— 49
19 — 54
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FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS
BT ER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (HK$’M)

GEEHEKER(E¥EET)

Thirteen Year ended Year ended

Year ended Yearended  months ended 28 February 29 February
31March 2020 | 31March 2019 31 March 20184 2017 2016
HZE20205 EHZE2019F HZE208F #HZE207F  EHE2016F
3A31H 3IH3H IAZIAL 2H28H 2H29H
LEE HEE T=EA IFFE IFEE

2,914 4,065 4,37 3,41 3,539

(60) 99 90 52 46

(90) 54 50 23 24

(90) 54 49 23 24

Turnover ]

(Loss)/profit before tax BFAT (E518),/ B F

(Loss)/profit for the year/period ZEEZERE (EE), BF

(Loss)/profit attributable to owners AR BB AL (BE),/
of the Company kil

PER SHARE (HK$)

gt (Bx)

(Loss)/earnings (E548),/ B

Dividend B8

Dividend payout ratio KB L&

Net assets attributable to owners AR TEE AEEEEE
of the Company

Market price &

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (HK$’M)

REMBRRER(BEEET)

No. of shares (M shares) e (EER)

Shareholders’ funds BRE S

Borrowings BE

Cash and cash equivalent ReRBESEED

Net gearing ratio* FEELE

Market capitalisation A

>

(0.36)
Nil
Nil

3.61
0.90

249
900
1,014
337
49%

224

Pursuant to a resolution of the Board dated 23 May 2017, the Company’s financial

year end date has been changed from 28 February (or 29 February in a leap year)
to 31 March commencing from the financial period ended 31 March 2018.

*

Adjusted for the bonus issue effected in prior period.

®

The net gearing ratio is the ratio of total interest-bearing liabilities, which excludes

lease liabilities, less cash and cash equivalents and time deposits to total equity.

022 020 0.09* on
0104 0.094 0.0525 0.041
48% 47% 48% 37%
437 467 463 4.90
180 220 250 2.00
249 247 210 210
1086 1153 974 1,031
788 787 1,023 1,060
251 268 324 203
35% 40% 55% 59%
447 543 526 421

o REEESN2017E5 238 ZRER - BHE 201843
A3NAILMBHARE  ARB 2 RFEELEEAH2A28
B(REEA28290)F kA3 A318 -

* RBAREITE EHRNFEELRRE -

: FRELELBHBAA(TEERERE  RREMR
SEEMARERFR) ARSI LR -
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CORPORATE
INFORMATION
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COMPANY NAME

Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Yau On Yee, Annie (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)

Ng Yi Kum, Estella (Deputy Chairman, Chief Strategy Officer & Chief Financial Officer)
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Huang Erwin Steve (Deputy Chairman)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Chui Chi Yun, Robert
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael
Chow Chee Wai, Christopher

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ng Yi Kum, Estella

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Yau On Yee, Annie
Ng Yi Kum, Estella

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Chui Chi Yun, Robert (Chairman)
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael
Chow Chee Wai, Christopher

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Chow Chee Wai, Christopher (Chairman)
Chui Chi Yun, Robert

Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

Yau On Yee, Annie

Ng Yi Kum, Estella

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Chan Yue Kwong, Michael (Chairman)
Chow Chee Wai, Christopher
Yau On Yee, Annie

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Yau On Yee, Annie (Chairman)
Ng Yi Kum, Estella

LEGAL ADVISERS

As to Hong Kong law:

Reed Smith Richards Butler

17/F, One Island East, Taikoo Place, 18 Westlands Road, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong
As to Bermuda law:

Conyers Dill & Pearman

29/F, One Exchange Square, 8 Connaught Place, Central, Hong Kong
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AUDITOR

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

22/F, CITIC Tower, 1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central, Hong Kong
PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Hang Seng Bank Limited
83 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong

China CITIC Bank International Limited
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United Overseas Bank Limited
23/F, 3 Garden Road, Central, Hong Kong

Chong Hing Bank Limited
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Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited, Hong Kong Branch
28 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong

Dah Sing Bank, Limited
36/F, Everbright Centre, 108 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong
PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Ground Floor, Block B, Summit Building,
30 Man Yue Street, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
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WEBSITE

www.tslj.com
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS (CONTINUED) | B 3R &9 s {4 (48 )

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Tse Sui Luen Jewellery
(International) Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”),
| hereby present the annual report and consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 (the “Year”).

The Year under review has been exceptionally tough for the Group. Under the
shadow of the protracted trade dispute between the world’s two largest economies
that sent tremors through the global economy, the Group’s business was hit hard by
the double blow of the social turmoil in Hong Kong since June 2019 and the
coronavirus outbreak that became a worldwide pandemic since the turn of the year
2020. The business situation descended into a quagmire the likes of which the
Group has never seen in its history.

In Hong Kong, the social unrest that gained momentum in the second half of 2019
has blasted a massive shockwave through the local tourism and retail industry,
denting consumer sentiment and sending the number of inbound tourists
plummeting by approximately 39% in the second half of 2019, as compared to the
same period in 2018. The “Report on Monthly Survey of Retail Sales” issued by the
Census and Statistics Department of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
revealed that, since June 2019, the value of sales of jewellery, watches and clocks,
and valuable gifts recorded double digit declines. Our retail sales in this region also
shrunk to the same degree as shop traffic dropped significantly in the thick of the
political and economic uncertainty.

The economy of Mainland China continued to be hindered by the effect of the
US-China trade war. Tit-for-tat tariffs and the devaluation of Renminbi have cast
gloom over the economic outlook, prompting Chinese customers to exercise
caution in their spending. Despite the weakened consumer sentiment, our retail
business there was able to maintain its position with only a modest decline in
turnover during the first half of the financial year ended 31 March 2020.

BALRE

RAZBREHIRBHRE (BR) BRAR(TARA] - ERE
WEBAR  [AEBDESFE((EFT)R BTREASE
EHZ2020F383BEFE(AFE]) 2FERERE
EHIEHRE ©

CIEEAFEE - WAEBRHZIEINREHN —F o RERRAL
EREZENEZFimARER  TERTESET 2 EE
EERD - NEEABSHT 201946 AUAREEEEEHED
T®  BA200 FH A EMAESESE - REBEKEIRA
W7 EEMBAEE - £E T MWBAARAT
HH AR RBEMAIALN -

H2019F THFRINFTHRNBTR L EEHE - ERBBIK
BREEE  SHBEMRERE  2019F THFHEIK
BEABEB2018F R THK T 4939% - FBERITTHEBTL
ARBEAWEEEHERRASRAASHE)BET 8
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS (CONTINUED) | B I& B HY Bkt (48 )

Just when the advent of the traditional retail peak season filled with festive demand
brought the promise of improved business in the last quarter of the financial year
ended 31 March 2020, the bottom fell out of any such hope with the outbreak of the
coronavirus pandemic blew another headwind to the retail industry. Governments
around the world locked down cities and issued travel restrictions, imposed stay-at-
home orders and social distancing rules. Consumer confidence and spending on
non-essential goods took a dive to the lowest depths seen in the recent past with
the impact on the jewellery sector particularly pronounced and devastating. The
Group fell into a full year loss of HK$89.8 million with our retail sales in February
2020 dropped to a record low for the Year.

Nevertheless, our management swiftly responded to the turbulent retail market.
Since August 2019, we have adopted various measures to save costs and minimize
expenditures including negotiating persistently with landlords for rental relief or
reductions, shortening shop operating hours and enacting no pay leave
arrangements. With the foresight at the beginning of 2020 of the further battering
the retail industry was set to take from the coronavirus pandemic, the Group has
been steadfast in maintaining the costing saving measures and streamlining our
business operations. We have also been improving our IT infrastructure and
software for enhancing efficiencies with greater cost effectiveness. In order to retain
capital strength and preserve a healthy financial position to ride out the downturn,
we have slowed down our expansion plan.

The pandemic will likely reshape people’s lifestyles and future consumption habits
all over the world, even after the outbreak has been brought under control. To get
through this period and to prepare for future market changes, we are restructuring
our retail store network including store closures and giving more weight to online
retailing. By making use of the existing online operations, we are exploring more
opportunities and collaborations to boost the online-to-offline effects especially for
the youth market segment. We have as well formulated an IT development blueprint
for supporting our medium- to long-term business strategies.

2000F3ANALTBRFERE —F FEERMEGHE
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B EHAERRESREENES  RTEET RSB
E o WEBEMNEE - SEBFEBERIEE - RER G &
2o BERERSRUZEEER  SHEBEELORIIESLE
RHAYERIFAR KEXFREXE  FELARKSE -
BMR2020F 2 AMEERTR TAFENE  AEESE
FERBLRSE BB 89,800,0007T °

A BHPANERELRHEENRERNTETS - 8
2019 8 AR - ARERENT ZIREM - UEEKRALE S
RMERY 81 SOTEEEIFNESRE - BEE
WEERMMLTHEERTR - R20205F9 - AEFAEBMRE
BREOARTARSE—SERTEE - AEERETOR
BLZEGHEKAER  UHEEXEREE - AR RAERRK
ZEMBHRMAE L - RTTREEAL G B A - HFITFE
BIgETAE BERFAKEEARE N RIBRMNT BN
Mo PAORIBE AT

REMARITAMEEMZRRE - LA EEEL 2R AN
EEEA LB EBE - Bt - £ E fT R RE RPN
RARKOTISECHITERE ERTEEHEE(REH
B RE-FSERPLTE - RANARBANRLEE
REFZERBR LG TEANRE  EPLEBEEFED
%o BT RBSRBAMRERER - AR AEENT R
FEIEB o



“Kites rise highest against the wind, not with it.” 2020 marks the 60th anniversary
of our founding. We have weathered many storms and grown with many changes
through the years, and we are confident that the Group is well prepared to sail
through this testing time. Capitalizing on the Greater Bay Area development plan
introduced by the Central Government, the Group will grasp the opportunities as
they arise when the smoke clears.

As a responsible corporate citizen, we are committed to making our business
sustainable despite all challenges ahead. Activities or events in relation to corporate
social responsibility will be disclosed in a separate Environmental, Social and
Governance Report. In addition, details of the activities carried out by the

TSL | &1 ¥m B Foundation, a charitable trust for sustaining the development of
creative industries of Hong Kong, are set out in the section headed

“The TSL | & ¥mB§ Foundation” in this annual report.

Once again, | would like to thank my fellow directors for their support and
contribution, especially towards crisis management, made during the Year. On
behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to shareholders for
their consistent trust, business partners for their compassionate and unstinting
support, and our staff members for their unfailing support, professional dedication
and solidarity in riding out the current economic storm. | wish to also extend my
appreciation to all of the Group’s loyal customers and other stakeholders for their
continuous support during these challenging times.

Yau On Yee, Annie
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 June 2020
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MANAGEMENT'S
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIEE 2w R O

RESULTS OF THE GROUP

The turnover of the Group for the Year decreased by 28.3% to HK$2,913.8 million
from HK$4,064.9 million for the year ended 31 March 2019 (“2018/19"). The Group
recorded a loss attributable to owners of the Company for the Year of HK$89.7
million as compared to a profit attributable to owners of the Company for 2018/19
of HK$54.2 million. The loss per share for the Year was 36.0 HK cents.

The Year was undoubtedly one of the most difficult trading years that the Group
has encountered in a very long time. Firstly, the Year started against the backdrop
of the protracted trade dispute between the world’s two largest economies, which
had already slowed the global economic growth and weakened consumer sentiment
in our main markets. Although the United States and China signed the phase one
trade agreement in January 2020, a comprehensive trade consensus continued to
appear beyond reach with the major issues remained unresolved that keep on
bringing negative impact to the Group’s businesses. Secondly, the social unrest in
Hong Kong from June 2019 took a heavy toll on inbound tourism and local sales,
which put a drag on the Group’s business. The Hong Kong economy contracted by
1.2% for 2019 as a whole. Lastly, the novel coronavirus outbreak which started
towards the end of 2019 proved devastating, not only to the already weakened
retail market in Hong Kong but also to the operations of all retailers in Mainland
China. Business closures and large-scale layoffs have occurred in these regions (our
major operating regions) and more are expected.

In such a tough business environment, the Group has imposed various cost saving
measures, including ongoing negotiations with landlords for rental relief or
reduction, minimization of staff costs, general and administrative expenses and
other operating costs, and store network streamlining. In addition, the Group has
applied more proactive operating tactics, such as adjusting our product portfolio
and marketing strategies to stimulate sales and lowering our inventory level to
reduce holding costs. As we anticipate that the upcoming financial year will be
similarly challenging for the Group, we will continue to enhance our cost
effectiveness not only to successfully get through the current crisis but also to
ensure that we are well-positioned for the economic and retail recovery when it
comes.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) | B 32 [& 2 &5 S 4 (48)

BUSINESS REVIEW
Retailing Business

Hong Kong and Macau

As previously mentioned, our Hong Kong business suffered the triple blow of the
US-China trade dispute, the local social instability and the global coronavirus
pandemic, all severely impacted our sales due to the resulting significant drop in
tourist numbers and the dwindling confidence of local consumers. With the
coronavirus outbreak, we also saw a deterioration in the sales performance of our
Macau stores during the first quarter of 2020. During the Year, the turnover of our
Hong Kong and Macau retail businesses decreased by 44.6% as compared to
2018/19 with minus 41.6% same store sales growth. As gold prices soared, the
average amount of invoice slightly increased by 3.4%.

The Group opened 4 new stores in Hong Kong at Tsim Sha Tsui, Tung Chung, Nam
Cheong and North Point as committed at the beginning of the Year, prior to the
social unrest and coronavirus pandemic. In response to said crises, we have adjusted
our business strategies and are now taking a very prudent approach to our future
retail business development in Hong Kong. Enhancing cost effectiveness has been
one of the Group’s ongoing pursuits. In the face of the exceptionally high rentals in
Hong Kong, following negotiations, many landlords have offered us rental cuts to
help us tide over the current tough operating period, though far from comparable
to our decrease in sales. We will keep on negotiating with landlords for further
rental concessions as and when required. We have also reviewed our retail network
and considered store closures. The Group will continue to implement stringent cost
management and streamline our store network in order to weather the current
turbulence while maintaining healthy and strategic operations.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) | B2 [E 2 77+

Mainland China

The Group recorded a year-on-year decrease of 20.8% in the turnover of our
self-operated stores in Mainland China with negative same store sales growth of
21.3% during the Year. The reduction in retail sales was mainly due to the protracted
US-China trade war, which had caused a slowdown in China’s economy dating back
to the beginning of the Year, as well as the sudden outbreak of novel coronavirus in
January 2020, which sent sales plummeting as the country locked down in
response. Chinese cities near to the epicenter of the outbreak were quarantined,
resulting in the closure of many shopping malls and outlets during the traditional
peak season of the retail industry.

During the Year, 12 new self-operated stores and 78 new franchised stores were
opened, driving the net increase of our total number of stores in Mainland China
from 435 to 445 (including 192 self-operated stores and 253 franchised stores). We
will continue to optimize our retail network in Mainland China while at the same
time exercise caution by keeping a watchful eye on the evolving pandemic and any
other negative market changes.

The Group has capitalized on the prevalence of e-commerce in Mainland China
through our official website for mobile users, which has extended our market reach,
particularly into the youth market, and expanded the demand for our jewellery. Our
successful launch of the new flagship self-run store on the JD platform in August
2019 has enhanced our online customer service, strengthening our foothold in the
online market in Mainland China. Going forward, we will put more effort into
developing e-business strategies and channels to boost the online-to-offline and
offline-to-online synergies.

Malaysia

Our retail business in Malaysia recorded a growth in turnover of 19.3% year-on-year,
supported by the spectacular marketing event “The Expressions of Love” and
special in-store craftsmanship demonstration for Malaysian customers held last
summer, which helped to partially offset the negative effects deriving from the
subsequent nationwide compulsory business closure due to the coronavirus that
the Malaysian government imposed in mid-March 2020. After our store opening at
the Mid Valley Southkey Megamall, the number of retail stores in Malaysia increased
to 6 as at the end of the Year. We will continue endeavouring to maintain our brand
presence beyond the Greater China region going forward.

B (A 1
REBEPERNMHNBELER LKiJ*E’JM%%EfiT&
20.8%  FIEHERBIER 3% BEHEE FENTERE

EFEREZHFABRGER D Ii%/ﬁézliifﬁ%ﬂ,ﬁﬁﬂﬁ&% ©
B 7 [ /8 2020 51 A SRANG BB ITE i KR BRI R 1
CIHEERK - BRER @ﬁéﬂﬁ%%m&éﬁﬁ‘ﬁﬂ?&ﬁfﬁ A
ZBYPOMEEALMFEEETEENEREFTLEE
o,

RAFE BB RHEHFEEER7SEFTMBAERE &
Etﬂlﬁqitﬁaﬁmﬁ,i@%mztzsfﬁ?ﬁi5445?3(@%192@@%

JEX 253 NBEIE) - B EEBERLECEANTERE R
RARFEE ZUEBRBERMNEME MG HSE
) o

AEENMEZEFEANBEFHEERMCOBRELT ARDE
ERPMRMBE IR MRTRMANTSELEE  LER
FEMG - BAARMIRENFR - R20195F8 ARI AL
§$$Aﬁrﬁ*ﬂ Eﬂﬁ’ﬁﬂmETE‘ﬁTﬁﬁﬂ’Jiigﬁﬂﬁ%g
= E—SEERARMNETEABER EHISHNMA - BEXR
x’ ﬁﬁﬁﬂ#%?ﬂfrﬁ BHETHENREMERE - LMJD%@%?L
BT R T B4R e 175 R U

BRAE

BMESKRATTEEXRBHNESERIRFILRI03% EHY
REFERFIABRATES RN T 58BN aiﬁﬁm‘@b
[The Expressions of Love| FFRIA) G A TEREHS - 3
DEBTHEESRATBFENE S RASE 2020634
FEBENZIEEEEESIBNAEETE - ERMATR
Mid Valley Southkey Megamall i JEF &% @+ BARAGEMHE
EERBERATFERENEZ6M - RIS BGEERNE
NP ER DN BT REE N -



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) | 32 E 7 55 M i (48 )

Wholesale Business

Despite a year-on-year growth trend since the commencement of our Mainland
China franchise business, the turnover of our wholesale business decreased by
27.8% during the Year due to the coronavirus outbreak, which decimated franchisee
sales and resulted in some shop closures in the last quarter. The total number of our
franchised stores increased from 230 as at the end of 2018/19 to 253 by the end of
the Year. As a responsible business partner, we have implemented relief plans to
help franchisees ride out the pandemic together. Strategies for boosting sales in the
franchised stores are also being formulated to improve our wholesale business
performance when the coronavirus epidemic in China stabilizes and eventually
subsides.

Other Businesses

Our e-business has been steadily growing in recent years and achieved a 17.2%
year-on-year increase in turnover for the Year. Apart from our own official website,
which registered booming sales, the Group has also cooperated with popular
e-commerce platforms, such as JD.com, Tmall, Taobao and HKTVmall, to further
expand our online presence. As the retail landscape transforms, we believe that
e-business will become a significant and sustainable source of revenue for the
Group. We will continue to expand our online presence through various channels
and strengthen our collaboration with other e-commerce platforms as the
opportunity arises, while maintaining the high quality of our products and an
exceptional customer experience to further bolster the online-to-offline and offline-
to-online effects.

OUTLOOK

The global economy and retail market, particularly for luxury goods, have been
devastated by the coronavirus pandemic. Although we are starting to see signs that
the tide of the pandemic may be beginning to turn in some regions, caution is still
required as uncertainty abounds. It will still take time for consumer confidence to
return even after the outbreak subsides, in order to drive any retail recovery. The
worldwide economy in the upcoming financial year is expected to stay under the
shadow of further trade negotiations between the United States and China, exerting
more pressure on our businesses. In addition, no end is in sight for the social unrest
in Hong Kong, which has undermined the local economy and consumer sentiment,
at this time. While the recovery of our retail business in Mainland China mainly
depends on the abatement of the coronavirus outbreak, the recovery of our Hong
Kong business hinges on the resolution of both the pandemic and social unrest,
making it much more difficult to predict in the near term.
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In this challenging situation, the Group will continue to put in place more effective
cost saving measures and streamline the workflow and organizational structure to
enhance cost effectiveness and our business efficiency as a whole. Staying alert to
the volatile economic and market conditions, we will also adjust our business
strategies and optimize our retail network in a timely and forward-looking manner.
In particular, the Group’s management will take a cautious approach to retail
business development and make decisions on any lease renewal, store opening or
closure after careful consideration of various factors that could bring synergistic
effect to the Group’s performance. With our solid foundation and brand presence,
we are confident that the Group will overcome the current difficulties and thrive in
the long run.

At this critical juncture, we will continue to provide customers with new and
exquisite products and personalized services, adhering to the Group’s brand
positioning of “Trendsetting Craftsmanship”. To embrace the new retail era is to
create a seamless shopping experience for customers to shop anytime and
anywhere. Therefore, going forward, we will attach greater importance to
e-business development and seek to elevate customer experience in an online
environment. We believe that this will help attract consumers and strengthen brand
equity, contributing to the future success of the Group.

FINANCIAL STRUCTURE

Capital expenditure, comprising mainly store renovation and expansion, furniture &
fixtures and machinery, incurred during the Year amounted to approximately
HK$98.6 million (2018/19: HK$105.9 million), which was mainly financed by
borrowings and funds generated from internal resources.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s total interest-bearing liabilities increased from
approximately HK$787.7 million (as at 31 March 2019) to approximately HK$1,013.8
million, which included current interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of
HK$446.2 million and also non-current interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
of HK$567.6 million. Net borrowings (total interest-bearing liabilities less cash and
cash equivalents and time deposits) increased from HK$377.1 million (as at 31 March
2019) to HK$445.0 million.

Internally generated funding and borrowings have mainly been applied during the
Year to finance the enhancement of the Group’s inventory, the opening of new
stores and capital expenditure incurred.
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The net gearing ratio (the ratio of total interest-bearing liabilities, which excludes
lease liabilities, (less cash and cash equivalents and time deposits) to total equity)
increased from 35% to 49% during the Year. All borrowings of the Group are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars or Renminbi. Interest on bank borrowings is
calculated on either the inter-bank interest rate or the prime rate or the benchmark
interest rate.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had time deposits, cash and bank balances, and
undrawn banking facilities of approximately HK$568.8 million and HK$247.2 million
respectively which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, should be
sufficient to meet the Group’s present working capital requirements.

Exchange Rates

During the Year, the transactions of the Group were mainly denominated in Hong
Kong dollars, Renminbi and United States dollars. Renminbi is not a freely
convertible currency and any significant exchange rate fluctuation of Renminbi may
have financial impacts on the Group. The Board believes that such foreign exchange
exposure is manageable by using natural hedges that arise from holding assets and
liabilities denominated in the same foreign currencies, and that the Group’s
exposure to foreign exchange fluctuation remains minimal. We will continue to
closely monitor the Group’s foreign exchange position.

Charge on Group Assets and Contingent Liabilities

Charges on the Group’s assets during the Year are disclosed in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Group did not have any material contingent
liabilities which have not been provided for in the financial statements as at 31
March 2020 (as at 31 March 2019: Nil).

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2020, the total number of employees of the Group was approximately
2,870 (as at 31 March 2019: 3,300). The decrease was mainly attributable to the
reorganization and streamlining of the Group’s manpower structure with due regard
to our business strategies and the natural turnover under stressed market conditions.
There were no major changes in human resources policies.

The Company offers competitive remuneration packages including salary,
allowances and discretionary bonus. Employees are rewarded on a performance
basis with reference to market rates. Other employee benefits include medical cover
and subsidies for job-related continuing education. Retail frontline staff are
provided with formal on-the-job training by internal senior staff and external
professional trainers. There are discussion forums and in-house seminars for
experience sharing.
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THE BEST VIEW COMES
AFTER THE HARDEST CLIMB.



TSE, SUI LUEN
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Tse Sui Luen, aged 83, is the Group’s Founder. Mr. Tse
provides general advisory & strategic advice to the Group. He
was the Chairman of the Group from 1987 to 2000 and
re-joined the Group in September 2011. He is a veteran
jewellery expert having over 50 years of experience in
jewellery industry. He has a wide range of experience in gem
setting, quality control, administration, operations,
management and marketing. He also has very good personal
networks with the peers and suppliers, which facilitate the
Group’s business development. He is the father of Mr. Tse Tat
Fung, Tommy, the Deputy Chief Executive Officer and the
controlling shareholder of the Group, and the father-in-law of
Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie, the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Group.
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Chairman & Chief Executive Officer Deputy Chairman, Chief Strategy Officer &
FE RITEAREL Chief Financial Officer,

Company Secretary and Executive Director
BlEE  BHEERENBE -
NAMERRITES
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Deputy Chairman and Non-Executive Director
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CHOW,
CHEE WAI CHRISTOPHER

EaE

Independent Non-Executive Director

B IFNTES

CHUI, CHAN,

CHI'YUN ROBERT YUE KWONG MICHAEL
BEC BR1A Y

Independent Non-Executive Director Independent Non-Executive Director
BNIERITES BNIEMITES
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CHAIRMAN &
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
EERITHER

YAU, ON YEE ANNIE
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Yau On Yee, Annie, aged 49, is the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer, the
chairman of the Executive Committee and a member of both the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. She joined the Group
in 2002, and became an Executive Director of the Company in 2006. She is also a
director of most subsidiaries of the Company. In the early years at the Company,
she pioneered the Group’s Jewellery ERP discipline and modernised the Company’s
management through business process reengineering. Prior to joining the Group,
she worked for multi-national companies such as Motorola Semiconductors and
IBM. She has over 27 years of management experience in the USA and Hong Kong.
She is a director of each of Partner Logistics Limited and Blink Technology Limited
which have discloseable interests in the Company under provisions of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”). She graduated from Boston University, USA
and holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Computer Engineering. Ms. Yau is the
spouse of Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy, the Deputy Chief Executive Officer and the
controlling shareholder of the Group, and the daughter-in-law of Mr. Tse Sui Luen,
the Founder of the Group.

Ms. Yau currently serves as the chairman of Hong Kong Retail Management
Association and a director of GS1Hong Kong. She is also a nominated member of
Hong Kong Brand Development Council and a member of Jewellery Industry
Training Advisory Committee and Jewellery Advisory Committee of Hong Kong
Trade Development Council. She was appointed as the vice convenor of the Retail
Industry Consultative Networks of Employees Retraining Board with effect from 1
April 2020.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ng Yi Kum, Estella, aged 62, is an Executive Director, the Deputy Chairman, the
Chief Strategy Officer & Chief Financial Officer, the Company Secretary and a
member of both the Remuneration Committee and the Executive Committee of the
Company. She joined the Group in 2015 and is responsible for Group Finance and
other administrative functions as well as defining corporate strategies of the Group.
She is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

From January 2008 to April 2014, Ms. Ng was the Chief Financial Officer of Country
Garden Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 2007), a company whose shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
From September 2005 to November 2007, she was an executive director of Hang
Lung Properties Limited (“Hang Lung”) (Stock Code: 101), a company whose shares
are listed on the Stock Exchange. Prior to her joining in Hang Lung in 2003, she was
employed by the Stock Exchange in a number of senior positions, most recently as
Senior Vice President of the Listing Division. Prior to that, she gained valuable
auditing experience with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. Ms. Ng is a qualified accountant
and holds a Master of Business Administration degree from the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology. She is an associate of The Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and The Chartered Governance
Institute (formerly known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators), a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and a member of the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She has been an elected
member of Quality Tourism Services Association Governing Council (Retailer
Category) since February 2019. She has also contributed her time to various public
service appointments, including being a co-opted member of the audit committee
of the Hospital Authority until November 2013.

Ms. Ng is an independent non-executive director of Tianjin Development Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 882), Comba Telecom Systems Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
2342), CT Vision (International) Holdings Limited (formerly known as Win Win Way
Construction Holdings Ltd.) (Stock Code: 994), CMGE Technology Group Limited
(Stock Code: 302), and she was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Powerlong Commercial Management Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
9909) with effect from 10 December 2019, all companies whose shares are listed on
the Stock Exchange. Besides, she has ceased to be an independent non-executive
director of China Power Clean Energy Development Company Limited (Stock Code:
735) with effect from 26 October 2019, the shares of which were listed on the Stock
Exchange until they were delisted on 20 August 2019.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Huang Erwin Steve, aged 54, is a Non-executive Director and the Deputy Chairman
of the Company. He was the Chief Executive Officer of the Company for the period
from 24 April 2008 to 28 February 2010. Prior to joining the Group in March 2005,
he was a seasoned entrepreneur in different industries, including publishing,
education, telecom and information technology. Mr. Huang has built and developed
multiple companies in London, San Francisco, Tokyo and Hong Kong in the past
years. He holds double degrees in Science in Business Administration and Business
Administration and Management from Boston University, USA.

Mr. Huang has retired as a non-executive director of Sky Light Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 3882), a company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange, with
effect from 24 May 2019.

Mr. Huang is actively engaged in social entrepreneurship with a view to bridging
social needs through innovation and information technology. He is currently
Associate Professor of Engineering Practice of the Department of Electronic &
Computer Engineering and Senior Advisor to Centre for Education Innovation of
The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology. From April 2009 to March
2020, he served as the Deputy Chairman of Junior Achievement Hong Kong,
dedicated to inspiring and preparing young leaders to succeed in the global
economy through entrepreneurship. In 2011 and 2016, he was elected as an Election
Committee Member (Information Technology) for the Legislative Council and Chief
Executive of HKSAR.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Chui Chi Yun, Robert, aged 63, is an Independent Non-executive Director, the
chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee of
the Company, who joined the Group in 1999.

Mr. Chuiis a practising Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong. He holds a
Bachelor’s degree in Commerce (Major in Accounting) and is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom. Mr. Chui is an independent
non-executive director of each of National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group
Limited (Stock Code: 8228), Wing Lee Property Investments Limited (Stock Code:
864), F8 Enterprises (Holdings) Group Limited (Stock Code: 8347) and Asia Cassava
Resources Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 841), all of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange. He served as an independent non-executive director of PPS International
(Holdings) Limited (Stock Code: 8201) and a non-executive director of Addchance
Holdings Limited (currently known as GTI Holdings Limited, Stock Code: 3344),
both companies whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange, until 31 July 2018
and 23 May 2017 respectively. He served as the Commissioner of the Hong Kong
Road Safety Patrol and a member of the Road Safety Campaign Committee of the
Road Safety Council, until 30 November 2016. He is also a director of a number of
private companies and associations.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, aged 68, is an Independent Non-executive Director, the
chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of both the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee of the Company, who joined the Group in 2010.

Mr. Chan was the former chairman and is currently a non-executive director of Café
de Coral Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 341), and is a non-executive director of Tao
Heung Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 573) and an independent non-executive
director of each of Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1382), Starlite
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 403), Modern Dental Group Limited (Stock Code:
3600) and Human Health Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1419), all companies whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan has worked as a professional
town planner with government bodies in Hong Kong and Canada. He holds a double
major degree in Sociology and Political Science, a Master degree in City Planning
from the University of Manitoba, Canada, an Honorary Doctorate degree in Business
Administration, as well as being bestowed the Honorary Fellow from Lingnan
University. Mr. Chan has many years of professional experience in the public sector
and over 30 years of management experience in the food and catering industry. He
is the Adviser of the Quality Tourism Services Association, the Honorary Chairman
of the Hong Kong Institute of Marketing and a council member of the Hong Kong
Management Association.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Chow Chee Wai, Christopher, aged 53, is an Independent Non-executive Director,
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of both the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company, who joined the Group
in 2013.

Mr. Chow is the Founding Partner of TCC Capital, an advisory and private equity
fund management company. He holds a Diploma of Investment and Finance from
The Securities Institute of Australia, a Bachelor of Economics degree from The
University of Sydney and is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chow has over 20 years’ experience in auditing
and merger and acquisition advisory. Prior to founding TCC Capital, he worked for
two of the “Big Four” international accounting firms in Sydney, Hong Kong and
Beijing and was the Partner in charge of the mergers and acquisitions practice. He
possesses in-depth understanding of financial and capital markets and has built up
substantial experience in advising multinational companies, state owned enterprises
and private companies in Hong Kong and Mainland China on a number of direct
investments, and mergers and acquisitions transactions.
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DEPUTY CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER
AlTT AR E

TSE, TAT FUNG TOMMY

A E L

Tse Tat Fung, Tommy, aged 52, is the Group’s Deputy Chief Executive Officer. He is
responsible for the Group’s sales and operations in all markets plus the Group’s
creative directions and supply chain management. He joined the Group after
returning from the USA in 1994. He was the Chairman of the Group from 2000 to
2008 and was, during that time, responsible for the Group’s overall strategy and
business development. During his absence, his life had been enriched through
touching the hearts and souls of the inmates. He re-joined the Group in September
2011 Mr. Tse graduated from Boston University and holds a Bachelor of Science
(Business Administration) degree, Bachelor of Science (Mathematics) degree, and
Master of Arts (Mathematics) degree. He is a director of Partner Logistics Limited
and Blink Technology Limited which have discloseable interests in the Company
under provisions of the SFO. He is the son of Mr. Tse Sui Luen, the Founder of the
Group, the spouse of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie, the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Group, and is the controlling shareholder of the Group.
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FHREHBBEBMAREE - R 2000 F = 2008 FHEHE
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Partner Logistics Limited & Blink Technology Limited 1% | 2
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Hong Kong Retail Management Association
2019 Mystery Shopper Programme
Excellence Award
Service Retailers of the Year — Watch & Jewellery Category

2019 Service & Courtesy Award
Excellent Service Star
Junior Frontline Level — Individual Gold Award Winner
Junior Frontline Level — Individual Bronze Award Winner
Supervisory Level — Individual Gold Award Winner
The Best Team Performance Award — Bronze Award

Guangzhou Radio & TV Media Group
Asia Pacific Outstanding Employer Award
Best Corporate Cultural Innovation Award
Best Organizational Change Practice Award
Outstanding Chief Talent Officer Award
Sing Tao Daily
Asia Pacific Outstanding Employer Award

2019 Bazaar Jewelry

Eternity — 2 HE X R

Papilio — Outstanding jewellery design of the year
IDA Design Award

The 12 Treasures — IDA 2019 Bronze Award
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2019/20 ANNUAL REPORT AWARDS
ARC Awards 2019:

Gold Cover Photo/Design: Retail: Specialty Stores

Gold lllustrations: Retail: Specialty Stores

Gold Interior Design: Retail: Specialty Stores

Bronze Printing & Production: Retail: Specialty Stores

Honors Non-traditional Annual Report: Retail: Specialty Stores

IADA Awards 2019:

Gold Non-traditional format — Luxury Product — Illustrations

Silver Non-traditional format — Luxury Product — Cover Design

Silver Non-traditional format — Luxury Product — Printing & Production
Bronze Non-traditional format — Luxury Product — Interior Design
Bronze Non-traditional format — Luxury Product — Typography

LACP (Spotlight Awards) 2019:

Platinum Print — Book/Booklet

Gold Report — Annual Report
Galaxy Awards 2019:

Gold Print: Retail — Other & General

Mercury Awards 2019:
Silver Interior Design: Non-traditional
Bronze Overall Presentation: Retail

Astrid Awards 2019:

Gold Corporate — Non-traditional: Unique Format
Silver Covers — Special Treatment

Bronze Covers — Artistic

Honors Covers — Unique Format

T

&
MERCURY
EXCELLENCE AWARDS
L1 EXCELLENCE IN DESIGN
AWARDS
GOLD WINNER Stloer Wirmner

REF Financial Press Limited

30TH ANNMIVERSARY COMPETITION

AWARDS AND ACCOLADES (CONTINUED) | 4215 8252 A

2019/20 £ #H{ L 1E
ARC Awards 2019 :
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Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Limited
REF Financial Press Limited

201 9 SPOTLIGHT AWARDS
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GOLD WINNER

REF Financial Press Limited
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THE TSL | & 3 B
FOUNDATION
TSL |HmBmES

The TSL | #i¥m 8 Foundation (“TSLF”) was founded with an original objective of
conserving the traditional jewellery craftsmanship. Over the years, TSLF expands its
scope to support and promote the sustainability and development of the creative
industries.

To preserve and promote the cultural heritage of the jewellery industry, TSLF is
providing TSL Scholarship to students with excellent academic performance in the
Creative Management in Luxury Industry Programme at The University of Hong
Kong. TSL Scholarship can facilitate students for further training in the creative field
including jewellery industry, so as to cultivate local talents in the industry and
innovation in design and excellence in craftsmanship. During the Year, TSLF also
continued to invest in Cantopop preservation and astronomy promotion events.

CANTOPOP PRESERVATION

Cantopop, being a good companion to many Hong Kong people, strings along with
our growth both in times of happiness and sadness. Just as TSL experienced many
ups and downs with Hong Kong people over the past 60 years, Cantopop as a
music genre also reflected the prosperity and adversities faced in the Hong Kong
society through its lyrics, giving generations of Hong Kong people a sense of
belonging.

Being one of the signature elements in the creative industry in Hong Kong,
Cantopop was once boomed across South East Asia, where the overseas Chinese
community lives and loves Cantopop. During the Year, TSLF was honored to
sponsor a mini concert in Malaysia orchestrated by Mr. Alan Cheung in the summer
of 2019 in promoting the Hong Kong Cantonese pop music.

Mr. Alan Cheung, a Hong Kong renowned composer, has written many popular
Cantonese pop songs and was awarded over 70 music works with over 1 billion
online hits. In the mini concert, 7 of his popular creations were performed with an
aim to awaken people’s love of Cantopop. During the concert, Mr. Cheung also
shared his inspiration in song composition for sowing the seeds of interests in
Cantopop for the younger generation. Through the event, TSLF wished to
demonstrate that Cantopop is rich in cultural and social values with creativity; which
is worthy in preserving it.
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THE TSL | &% FOUNDATION (CONTINUED) | TSL | it s i E & (48)

ASTRONOMY PROMOTION

Astronomy is not just a scientific study of the universe and the celestial objects in
space, it is also a way seeking to explain everything we observe in the universe and
a journey to understand where we came from and where we are going to. With the
help of the ever-advancing technology, we are now able to enjoy the captivating
astronomical phenomenon and the magnificent scenery of the jewel-like skies
through different astronomical equipments.

Sponsored by TSLF and jointly organized by The Hong Kong Astro Forum and
Queen’s College, “The 1st Hong Kong Astronomical Equipment Expo” took place on
13 April 2019. This educational event featured numerous astronomical telescopes
and star-trackers from various brands of different sizes, facilitating knowledge and
experience sharing on observing and exploring the outer space using astronomical
equipments among more than 80 amateur astronomers from Hong Kong, Macau
and Shenzhen. Astronomy photographer Mr. Mew Chu gave a talk on
astrophotography to share his expertise in image processing to create stunning
astronomical photos and breathtaking astronomical time-lapse videos.

Mr. Chan Yuk-lun, the teacher-in-charge of Queen’s College Astronomy Society, also
took the participants on a tour of the observatory, which is located at the rooftop of
the College and was built by the College’s teachers and students.
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Borderless sharing among the
Chinese and APEC amateur
astronomers to demonstrate
their love and passion for
astronomy
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Another exciting lecture series supported by TSLF is the sharing on “A Review of
the U.S. Amateur Astronomical Equipment Development for the Past 30 Years” held
during early September 2019. Mr. Chris Houghton, the amateur telescope making
judging chairman for the Stellafane Convention, delivered special lectures in
Shenzhen, Kunming and Hangzhou on “Amateur Telescope Making in the U.S.: From
Backyard Visual Telescope Setup to Fully Automated Remote Observatory”. He
combined his electrical engineering background with his passion for astronomy to
develop an integrated telescope control system, providing help to the automation
of telescopes for amateur and professional astronomers. This fascinating lecture
covered obstacles one may come across when building an automated remote
observatory and how amateur astronomers overcome them.
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Mr. Chris Houghton shared his insights on amateur telescope making with over 500 participants in cities including Shenzhen, Kunming and Hangzhou

Chris Houghton 5 A fE B T 2 1 A Y|
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THE TSL | &% FOUNDATION (CONTINUED) | TSL | it s i E & (48)

Dr. Alan Holmes, also known as the father of modern charged-coupled device
("CCD”) astronomical cameras for the worldwide amateur markets, was also invited
to go on the China Lecture Tour and gave a special lecture titled “The Amateur CCD
Imaging Revolution” in the Hong Kong Space Museum as the last stop of the Tour.
Trained in engineering physics and received his PhD in Optical Sciences at the
University of Arizona in Tucson, Dr. Holmes shared his experience on developing
CCD cameras and instrumentation for the amateur. Many astrophotographs were
shown to the public, illustrating the advances in CCD imaging and how CCD
cameras evolved from the ST-4 guider in 1989 to the present day. Dr. Holmes ended
his speech by presenting his latest enchanting color images of the Earth from the
Hawkeye instrument onboard the SeaHawk-1 Satellite.

WEME SPECIAL LECTURE

R CCO RXMBNBE r CCD Imaging Revoluion

Dr. Alan Holmes finished his China Lecture Tour on “The Amateur CCD Imaging Revolution”

at the Hong Kong Space Museum, with around 50 Hong Kong experienced astrophotographers
attended and acquired knowledge on capturing the beauty of the night sky

Alan Holmes T =LAl 282 CCO R B M E E R B P BIXGRERE L IR BB K AR -
RSO ERBBRXBYENEREYS  BEERNEREERENEENH

Aside from the abovementioned events, TSLF also sponsored the Local Volume
Mapper design study project of Carnegie Science in August 2019 in support of
decoding the history of the Milky Way Galaxy, tracing the emergence of the
chemical elements, revealing the inner workings of stars, seeking their black hole
companions and the investigation of the origin of planets.
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Over 90 audience attended the lecture, featured Dr. Alan Holmes, held
in Kunming

Alan Holmes 1+ . BARI A BE R 5| T #8190 B 24

HImBE SR T BB EUEEHI - IR 2019F8AEBN T
Carnegie Science & Local Volume Mapper#ff 5ot 2l - bAfRE
BARENES  BEEBITENRE THEENEE S
HKERFMAFTITENRIR -
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REPORT OF
THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) have pleasure in presenting their
report together with the audited consolidated financial statements for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities
and other particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year and the financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2020 are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 86 to 203
of this annual report.

No interim dividend was declared during the Year, and the Directors do not
recommend the payment of final dividend for the Year (2018/19 total dividend: 10.4
HK cents per ordinary share of the Company).

The Board has adopted a dividend policy with the principles and guidelines as
follows:

(@) Inrecommending or declaring dividends, the Company shall maintain
adequate cash reserves for meeting its working capital requirements and
future growth as well as the value of the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”);

(b)  The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend payout ratio;

(c)  The Board has the discretion to declare and distribute dividends to the
Shareholders, subject to the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”) and
all applicable laws and regulations as well as the factors set out below;

(d)  The Board shall also take into account the following factors of the Group
when considering the declaration and payment of dividends: (i) financial
performance, (ii) cash flow position, (iii) business conditions and strategies,
(iv) future operations and earnings, (v) capital requirements and expenditure
plans, (vi) market benchmark, (vii) the Shareholders’ interests and (viii) any
other factors that the Board may consider relevant;

(e)  Depending on the financial conditions of the Company and the Group and the
factors as set out above, the following dividends may be proposed and/or
declared by the Board for a financial year or period: (i) interim dividend, (ii)
final dividend, (iii) special dividend and (iv) any distribution of net profits or
contributed surplus where applicable, that the Board may deem appropriate;
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() The Board may from time to time pay to the Shareholders any interim
dividends as appear to the Board to be justified by the Company’s profits.
Save as the foregoing, payment of dividends will be subject to the
Shareholders’ approval;

(g)  The Company may declare and pay dividends by way of cash or scrip or by
other means that the Board considers appropriate; and
(h)  Any unclaimed dividend shall be forfeited and shall revert to the Company in

accordance with the Bye-laws.

BUSINESS REVIEW

An overview and the outlook of the Group’s business are provided in the sections
headed “Letter to Shareholders” and “Management’s Discussion & Analysis” of this
annual report. Certain financial key performance indicators can be found in the
section headed “Financial Highlights”.

The financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group are shown in
note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

An account of the Group’s relationship with its key stakeholders and discussions on
the Group’s environmental policies and performance are included in the section
headed “Corporate Governance Report”, and in a separate “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report” which will be published in compliance with the stipulations
under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

The Company is in compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Company for the Year.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 3
September 2020 to Tuesday, 8 September 2020 (both days inclusive), for the
purpose of ascertaining Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday, 8
September 2020 (the “2020 AGM”). During the above closure period, no transfer of
shares will be registered. In order to be entitled to attend and vote at the 2020
AGM, all completed transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited of Rooms 1712-1716,
17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than
4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong Time) on Wednesday, 2 September 2020.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the Year are
set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or the laws in
Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing Shareholders.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme of the Company as disclosed in the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” of this report of the Directors and in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked agreements were entered into
by the Group during the Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year amounted to HK$23,000
(2018/19: HK$87,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the
Year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2020, the Company’s reserves available for distribution, calculated in
accordance with the provisions of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (as amended
from time to time) (the “Bermuda Companies Act”) and the Bye-laws, amounted to
approximately HK$557,029,000, which represented the contributed surplus and
retained profits of the Company.

Under the Bermuda Companies Act and the Bye-laws, the contributed surplus of
the Company is available for distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or
pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of this contributed surplus if: (i) it is, or
would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or (ii)
the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium.

Details of the above are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The five largest customers in aggregate accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s
turnover for the Year. The five largest suppliers in aggregate and the largest
supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 67.0% and 23.9% respectively by
value of the Group’s total purchases.

Rosy Blue Hong Kong Limited, one of the Group’s five largest suppliers, is a fellow
subsidiary of Rosy Blue Overseas Holdings Limited, which is the preference
shareholder of Partner Logistics Limited (the Company’s immediate holding
company).

Except for the above, none of the Directors or any of their associates or any of the
Shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the

Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the major customers
and suppliers noted above.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Yau On Yee, Annie (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)

Ng Yi Kum, Estella (Deputy Chairman, Chief Strategy Officer &
Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary)

Non-executive Director
Huang Erwin Steve (Deputy Chairman)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Chui Chi Yun, Robert

Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

Chow Chee Wai, Christopher

In accordance with the provisions of the Bye-laws and to comply with the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Huang Erwin
Steve and Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert will retire, and are eligible for re-election, as
Directors at the 2020 AGM. It is noted that Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert will offer
himself for re-election as an independent non-executive Director for a term of three
years; whereas Mr. Huang Erwin Steve will not offer himself for re-election and he
will therefore retire at the 2020 AGM. All other Directors continue in office for the
ensuing year.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from each of the
current independent non-executive Directors and as at the date of this report still
considers them to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the 2020 AGM has a service contract with
the Group which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief
executive and/or their respective associates of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be
entered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, or which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”), were as
follows:

EECRBEYN

BN 2020 FIRBFAGRERETNES  HIEEAE
BRI SZAEB AT R —FREARECEERERIN) ML
LR RIBAH -

EERESTBRAEBRARTAZRG - HEAK
REEENEERAR

HZE2020F3 83181t EERARARSTHRAER, &

EAZEMBEAL(EERBLHRIMEEMEXVER)
RAR RS EE RS EE 2 & - BERGD RERER %
*ﬁ‘*ﬁ%‘”%&ﬁﬁiﬂwﬁﬂ%XV*B%7&8/“BZ%E ZER 1NN
NE RBRFT Em & )‘E‘(ﬁ%ﬁé EH5 R EEOIARE
TE?%%&%WEBE%%E!‘H& KAE)  RBREBEES K
BEEMEIS2IGEELZRBEAR Tfﬁzyjpaﬂﬁ AR IE
im%ﬁﬂ'JMTﬁ-f—ﬁﬁ%zZtm AT AEITEFR HWIRE
SFAN(MZESFR] D) ME AR R MBIz #m AR T ¢

(i) Interests and long positions in ordinary shares of the Company (i) RARBIR L@ 2w TR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each
BREEB% 0.5 THZER
Approximate
Derivative percentage of
Personal Family Corporate interest Other total issued
Name of Director interest interest interest  (share options) interest share capital*
HE 8T
TETAEER RAEEH
EEME AR Rk AR &R (BRHE) HniE s BABE D
Yau On Yee, Annie 130,553 180,691,775 - - - 72.57%
BB % % (Note fii7E)
5,219
(Note fi&E)
* The percentage was calculated based on 249,182,030 ordinary shares of - B ot 2R R2020F3A3H AR A B #ET

the Company inissue as at 31 March 2020.
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(i)

Note:

180,691,775 ordinary shares of the Company are held by Partner Logistics Limited,
a company which is owned and controlled by Blink Technology Limited. Blink
Technology Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy,
the spouse of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie, an executive Director. By virtue of the SFO,
Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie is deemed to be interested in all the shares of the Company
held by Partner Logistics Limited.

5,219 ordinary shares of the Company are held by Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy. By
virtue of the SFO, Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie is deemed to be interested in all the
shares of the Company held by Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy.
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B3E

KX 180,691,775 % & i@ % J5 A Partner Logistics Limited
BAE  ZAfA#EREE(ARTESZEL T 2R
B)2&E %A 2 Blink Technology Limited B &% 4% -
RIEEF R HARIGH - 58% & 2 T H R A A i Partner
Logistics Limited R AR BIFH < FIA IR YD < s ©

K AS29 BB MAIEEE LR - REBEEFSR
BB R EBK{*ZZ:H&%EEH%EEuﬁ]‘Lﬂéﬁ'ﬁiﬁAK’RﬁT
BA 2 AR 2 s -

Interests and long position in underlying shares of the Company (i) WA RABFEBEIKMD RS RITE
Details of the Director who had interests in options to subscribe for ordinary EENANEEHRES AR 2B AN T LB MDA E
shares of the Company during the Year were set out as follows: PRERE BT -
Number of share options
BRENHE
Outstanding Adjusted
Outstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed asat exercise Exercise
Date of Grant as at during during during during 31March price Period
Name of Director  (dd/mm/yyyy)  1April 2019 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2020 per share (dd/mm/yyyy)
RREZ
REAH R2019F rEE rEE rEE REE  R2020F BRTE Eigid
EIpE (B/B/F) 4B1B&R BEEH HETE LR HEAN 3A3BHEH B (B/B/%)
(Note BifzE1)
Yau On Yee, Annie 01/03/2013 1,411,666 - - - 1,411,666 - HK$B®E 354 15%:01/09/2014 -
BEE& 29/02/2020
15%: 01/03/2015 -
29/02/2020
30%: 01/03/2016 -
29/02/2020
40%: 01/03/2017 -
29/02/2020
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Notes:

1. On 19 July 2017, an ordinary resolution was duly passed by the Shareholders
at the annual general meeting of the Company to approve the issuance of
bonus shares on the basis of one bonus share for every six existing ordinary
shares (“Bonus Issue”). As a result of the Bonus Issue, adjustments were
made to the exercise price and the number of shares to be allotted and
issued upon full exercise of subscription rights attaching to the outstanding
share options with effect from 4 August 2017. For details of the
adjustments, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 4
August 2017.

2. The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until the
commencement of exercise period.

Save as disclosed above and in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”, as at 31
March 2020, none of the Directors, chief executive and their respective associates
of the Company had any other interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which required notification to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which any such Director or chief executive of the
Company is taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO); or
which were required pursuant to section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the
register maintained by the Company; or which were required, pursuant to the Model
Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ FTERRREMALTREAR TR KBERG
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND HREREXE

UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2020, the interests, all being long positions, of any substantial HZE202063 3181 FAEERRFEMA T (WIE
Shareholders or other persons (not being Directors or chief executive of the ERARBNZETRAE) ERRARRGD R RAEEERG

Company) in the shares and/or underlying shares of the Company which have been — F#H B RIEFEH K EBEIEHIZE XV 5% 2 X 39 S H IR E M
disclosed to the Company pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV =~ AR BHELRFE - RERIEFEF LS 102 336 15B2 A
of the SFO and have been recorded in the register required to be kept by the AREEFRERMANERZ (BRIFA)IAT :

Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each

EREEE®0.55THEER
Approximate
Number of  percentage of
ordinary total issued
Name Capacity shares share capital*
HERT
RAAH
£ % ZERRHEA BHEA
() Partner Logistics Limited (Note FifzE1) Beneficial owner 180,691,775 72.51%
EmaA
(i) Blink Technology Limited (Note Bi7E1) Interest of controlled corporation 180,691,775 72.51%
SR A
(i) Tse Tat Fung, Tommy (Note Ffi5E 1) Interest of controlled corporation 180,691,775 72.57%
HEE ZEH QAR
Interest of spouse 130,553
BB A m
Beneficial owner 5,219
EmEaA
(iv)  Rosy Blue Overseas Holdings Limited (Note Ff 5 2) Interest of controlled corporation 180,691,775 72.51%
ZEH QAR
(v)  Rosy Blue Jewellery (HK) Limited (Note fi#5E2) Interest of controlled corporation 180,691,775 72.51%
ZEH QAR
(vi)  Prime Investments S.A. (Note fff5¥ 2) Interest of controlled corporation 180,691,775 72.51%
ZEH QAR
(vii) Rosy Blue Investments S.a.R.L. (Note fff 5 2) Interest of controlled corporation 180,691,775 72.51%
ZEH QAR
(viii) Elmas Hong Kong Limited (Note Fff5F 2) Trtistee 180,691,775 72.51%
fFHEA
(ix)  Viraj Rusell Mehta (Note Fff 5 2) Settlor of discretionary trust 180,691,775 72.51%
MEEEZHERTA
* The percentage was calculated based on 249,182,030 ordinary shares of the * AP REN2020F 3 A 31 H AR T 2 317 249,182,030
Company in issue as at 31 March 2020. REmARETE -
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Notes:

180,691,775 ordinary shares of the Company are held by Partner Logistics Limited,
a company which is owned and controlled by Blink Technology Limited. Blink
Technology Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy,
the spouse of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie, an executive Director. By virtue of the SFO,
Blink Technology Limited, Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie (her deemed interest is disclosed
under the section headed “Directors” and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company”) and Mr.
Tse Tat Fung, Tommy are deemed to be interested in all the shares of the
Company held by Partner Logistics Limited.

130,553 ordinary shares of the Company are held by Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie. By
virtue of the SFO, Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy is deemed to be interested in all the
shares of the Company held by Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie.

5,219 ordinary shares of the Company are held by Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy.

These ordinary shares of the Company, relating to the same block of shares
mentioned in note 1above, are held by Partner Logistics Limited, a company which
is owned and controlled by Blink Technology Limited. Rosy Blue Overseas
Holdings Limited is the preference shareholder of Partner Logistics Limited. Rosy
Blue Overseas Holdings Limited is wholly owned by Rosy Blue Jewellery (HK)
Limited, which in turn is wholly owned by Prime Investments S.A.. Prime
Investments S.A. is wholly owned by Rosy Blue Investments S.a.R.L., which in turn
is wholly owned by Elmas Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Viraj Rusell Mehta is the settlor
of a discretionary trust (the “Trust”), which in turns holds the interest in Rosy Blue
Investments S.a.R.L. through Elmas Hong Kong Limited, as trustee of the Trust. By
virtue of the SFO, each of Rosy Blue Overseas Holdings Limited, Rosy Blue
Jewellery (HK) Limited, Prime Investments S.A., Rosy Blue Investments S.a.R.L.,
Elmas Hong Kong Limited and Mr. Viraj Rusell Mehta, is deemed to be interested in
all the shares of the Company held by Partner Logistics Limited.

Save as disclosed above and in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”, as at 31

March

2020, the Company had not been notified of any persons who had interests

or short positions in the shares and/or underlying shares of the Company, which
were required to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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CHANGES OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION PURSUANT TO RULE RELETRAEBSBONKNEEZERES
13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes of information on the BiE FHRAIE 35BN EE 2 ERESFHWT ¢
Directors are as follows:

— Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie, an executive Director, has been appointed as the vice —  HTEBISLEL LT - B2020F 4 A1H#E - BE T
convenor of the Retail Industry Consultative Networks of Employees REEFBIIRZZEXTEANRBIBEA -
Retraining Board with effect from 1 April 2020.

- Ms. Ng Yi Kum, Estella, an executive Director, has been appointed as an - HTEEEGELLT B209F 12 A108E  ERE
independent non-executive director of Powerlong Commercial Management BEERETEZERAER AR (MRS  9909) 2
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 9909), a company the shares of which are BIUIERITES » ZAR 2RO LT -
listed on the Stock Exchange, with effect from 10 December 2019.

—  Mr.Huang Erwin Steve, a non-executive Director, resigned as the Deputy —  ERTESFEEKSEA - B2020F3I AR BEFF
Chairman of Junior Achievement Hong Kong in March 2020. BT EI BB B2 EFE -

Changes in Directors’ emoluments during the Year are set out in note 9 to the AEEHEESME B E NG M EIREM L -

consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME AR RE ST 2

A.  The 2003 Share Option Scheme A 2003 FRERXHERTE
The Company adopted a share option scheme on 26 November 2003 (the AT 20034F 11 A 26 B RN EERR 5T 2] ([2003 F
“2003 Share Option Scheme”). The following is a summary of the principal FERRHERTE]]) - 2003 FIEREFT BN EEGTRLEN
terms of the 2003 Share Option Scheme: Nk
1. Purpose of the 2003 Share Option Scheme: 1.  2003FBRETEBR :

The purpose of the 2003 Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives 2003 F BRI EIMBE MR AT HE S EER

or rewards to participants thereunder for their contribution to the ZETH2HREHAEBOER L S EEAE

Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre BEURELERBESRSES  URAREERE K

employees and attract human resources that are valuable to the Group AEBRBERENEB(HITEERE]) RAE

and any entity in which the Group holds any equity interest (“Invested BAL ©

Entity”).

2. Participants of the 2003 Share Option Scheme: 2. 2003FEREFTENSEHEA :

(a)  any employee (whether full time or part time employee, @ ARFE - EEMAKBARSKERERE
including any executive directors but not any non-executive ERNEANEE(THeBMFEE
director) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested 8 AR ITESKETBETMIE
Entity; WITESR)
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(b)  any non-executive director (including independent non-
executive directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or
any Invested Entity;

(c)  any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity;

(d) any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(e) any person or entity that provides research, development or
technological support or other services to the Group or any
Invested Entity; and

) any shareholder or any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity.

Total number of shares available for issue under the 2003
Share Option Scheme and the percentage of issued share
capital as at the date of this report:

As at 23 June 2020, no ordinary share is available for issue under the
2003 Share Option Scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the 2003
Share Option Scheme:

The maximum entitlement of each grantee in any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the total number of shares in issue of the Company.

The period within which shares must be taken up under an

option:

The Board may in its absolute discretion determine, save that such

period shall not be more than 10 years from the date of grant of the
option.

The minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised:

The Board may at its discretion determine the minimum period for
which the option has to be held or other restrictions before the
exercise of the subscription right attaching thereon.

(0 ARF - BAEFAKER R REFERE

(o AEEEAKE QA EMEKRERLR
EE R E YRR SR

() AEEREFARBEERNEFZS

(&) MAEENERMBEHRETBREHAS
B 2 S R S IR S HL A IR O (AT A
HER R

(h  AEBEREAHFIREEEOTAKRRSR
EAKERE - RAEEERKE R
FERBEREEROTAEEITESD
FAA e

2003 FHEREE T I FHITHR G
BURARFFRABLERITRGAHE S
20209 6 A23H » B &R ¥ 2003 4 B I% 4%
FTEIRT FRITH L R -

2003 FERENE T EEZSHANTER
i ER

PEAREASRMA  SHARAERZ L@
BROBE T SHBBAARBEEHITROEER
1% °

BRETAZBRAOGHR -

FEGAMEAT - 1 GE L BRIE BB
HE - FAZRI0F -

TRBRENSRIFEHRERIR

BEEeNHBEAERAEBREZRERRRIA
T AT R B RE AT 2 E AR o



The amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option and the period within which payments must be made:

An offer of an option shall be deemed to have been accepted within 28
days from the date of offer upon acceptance of the option duly signed
by the grantee together with a remittance of HK$1.

The basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price of the option shall be determined by the Board and
such price shall not be lower than the higher of (i) the closing price of
the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the offer date, which must be a trading day; (ii)
the average closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five trading days
immediately preceding the offer date; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share of the Company.

The remaining life of the 2003 Share Option Scheme:

The 2003 Share Option Scheme was expired on 25 November 2013.
Subsequent to the expiry of the 2003 Share Option Scheme, no further
option can be granted thereunder but in all other respects, the
provisions of the 2003 Share Option Scheme shall remain in force and
all options granted prior to such expiry shall continue to be valid and
exercisable in accordance therewith.
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BYHE - RADAARRNDOERE -

2003 FIEIRIETT Bl R B AT -
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The movements in the number of share options under the 2003 Share Option 2003 FREARMEGTEI TR L M BB E RN AN FE BHE A
Scheme during the Year were as follows: FEIBEREHNTE
Number of share options
BREHA
Date of grant  Outstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed  Outstanding Adjusted
(dd/mm/yyyy) asat during during during during asat exercise price Exercise period
Name or category BRE  1April 2019 the Year the Year the Year the Year 31March 2020 per share (dd/mm/yyyy)
of participant R A R2019%F REE rEE REE REE R2020%F "Ry Eigid
SEATHERER (B/R/%) 4B1B&H BERL BETRE LB HEXN 3ANALEH SROEESR (B/R/%)

(NotefffzE1)

Substantial Shareholder

TERR

Tse Tat Fung, Tommy 01/03/2013 1411,666 - - - 1,471,666 - HK$BHE354  15%: 01/09/2014 - 29/02/2020

Higie 15%: 01/03/2015 - 29/02/2020
30%: 01/03/2016 - 29/02/2020
40%: 01/03/2017 - 29/02/2020

Sub-total 1411,666 - - - 1,471,666 -

Nt

Associate of Director/

Substantial Shareholder

EE/ITERRNHEA

Tse Sui Luen (Note B3 2) 01/03/2013 933,333 - - - 933,333 - HK$BH354  15%: 01/09/2014 - 29/02/2020

Eiifil 15%: 01/03/2015 - 29/02/2020
30%: 01/03/2016 - 29/02/2020
40%: 01/03/2017 - 29/02/2020

Sub-total 933,333 - - - 933,333 -

it

Employees

-]

In aggregate (Note A3 3) 01/03/2013 2,345,001 - - - 2,345,001 - HK$BHE354  15%: 01/09/2014 - 29/02/2020

A3t 15%: 01/03/2015 - 29/02/2020
30%: 01/03/2016 - 29/02/2020
40%: 01/03/2017 - 29/02/2020

Sub-total 2,345,001 - - - 2,345,001 -

Nt

050



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED) | & & i &5 (48)

Number of share options
BREZE
Date of grant  Outstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed  Outstanding Adjusted
(dd/mm/yyyy) asat during during during during asat exercise price Exercise period
Name or category BARAE  1April 2019 the Year the Year the Year the Year 31March 2020 per share (dd/mm/yyyy)
of participant R AES R2019%F REE rEE rEE REE #2020 "REY Eigid|
SHEALHRRER (B/B/€) 4B1REH HERH BRETE R HBEAX 3ANALH SRTEER (B/RA/%)
(Note fif&E1)
Service Providers
PR ft R
Inaggregate 01/03/2013 933,333 - - - 933,333 - HK$E®E 354 15%: 01/09/2014 - 29/02/2020
CHI 15%: 01/03/2015 - 29/02/2020
30%: 01/03/2016 - 29/02/2020
40%: 01/03/2017 - 29/02/2020
Sub-total 933,333 - - - 933,333 -
Nt
Total 5,623,333 - - - 5,623,333 -
2y
Notes: BiaE
1. As a result of the Bonus Issue, adjustments were made to the exercise price 1. AL AR EETT - MRITEERE Z1TEEBR EZE
and the number of shares to be allotted and issued upon full exercise of BREAMMREREREITENS FRERETZ
subscription rights attaching to the outstanding share options with effect DEE WAL B20I7FE8 A4BEEM - A
from 4 August 2017. For details, please refer to the announcement of the BAEEE  F2HARRRN20I7TESA4BZA
Company dated 4 August 2017. ®o
2. Mr. Tse Sui Luen is the father of Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy, a substantial 2. SEB T EATFEREHEREE I RXBRAITE
Shareholder, and the father-in-law of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie, an executive EMLELT RS - BRIBELTHRAUVFEUAE - H
Director. Pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, Mr. Tse Sui Luen is an ImBEES R ABMEREERDZEL L2 BE
associate of Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy and Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie A e
respectively.
3 This aggregate number includes the number of share options granted to 3. RSP B ER TRITERRLEL T 2 BRER
Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie, an executive Director. g e
4, The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until the 4. EREZGBEHARLBHEERTHEHRGAA
commencement of exercise period. 1k e
Details of share options granted to the Directors and the relevant movements RAFEHERTES 2 ERENFAER RABEE
during the Year are set out in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief BHAAEEERE [EFNERTHRABRARR]
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and 2D - BERG REEFEOER AR ] —8A -

Debentures of the Company” in this report of the Directors.
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The 2016 Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a new share option scheme at its annual general
meeting held on 21 July 2016 (the “2016 Share Option Scheme”). Terms of the
2016 Share Option Scheme are substantially the same as the 2003 Share
Option Scheme. As at the date of this report, no options have been granted
under the 2016 Share Option Scheme. The following is a summary of the
principal terms of the 2016 Share Option Scheme:

1. Purpose of the 2016 Share Option Scheme:

The purpose of the 2016 Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives
or rewards to participants thereunder for their contribution to the
Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre
employees and attract human resources that are valuable to the Group
and any Invested Entity.

2. Participants of the 2016 Share Option Scheme:

(@) any employee(s) (whether full time or part time employee(s),
including any director or executive director but not any non-
executive director) of the Company, its subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity;

(b) any non-executive director (including independent non-
executive directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or
any Invested Entity;

(c)  any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity;

(d) any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(e) any person or entity that provides research, development or
technological support or other services to the Group or any
Invested Entity;

) any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity;

(g) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any
area of business or business development of any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity; and
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(h)  any other group or classes of participants who have contributed
or may contribute by way of joint venture, business alliance or
other business and/or financial arrangement to the development
and growth of the Group.

Total number of shares available for issue under the 2016
Share Option Scheme and the percentage of issued share
capital as at the date of this report:

Pursuant to the term of the 2016 Share Option Scheme, the total
number of ordinary shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the 2016 Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue on 21 July 2016 (the
“Adoption Date”) (i.e. not exceeding 21,033,622 shares on the basis
that the total issued share capital of the Company as at the Adoption
Date is 210,336,221 shares). Options lapsed in accordance with the
term of the 2016 Share Option Scheme or any other share option
scheme of the Company will not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the 10% limit. However, the maximum number of ordinary
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the 2016 Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company must not exceed
30% of the total number of shares in issue from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the 2016
Share Option Scheme:

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the option granted to each participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of

the total number of shares in issue of the Company.

The period within which shares must be taken up under an
option:

The period would be commencing from the date of grant of an option
and ending on such date as the Board may determine in granting the
option but in any event not exceeding 10 years from the date of grant.
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6. The minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised:

The Board may at its discretion determine the minimum period for
which the option has to be held or other restrictions before the
exercise of the subscription right attaching thereto.

7. The amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option and the period within which payments must be made:

Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the
Company by way of consideration for the grant. Any offer may be
accepted in respect of less than the number of shares for which it is
offered provided that it is accepted in a board lot for dealing in the
Company'’s shares on the Stock Exchange or an integral multiple
thereof. An offer is open for acceptance within 28 days from the date
of offer provided that no offer shall be open for acceptance after the
expiry of the 2016 Share Option Scheme or after the 2016 Share Option
Scheme has been terminated.

8. The basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price of the option shall be determined by the Board and
such price must be at least the higher of (i) the closing price of the
shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the offer date, which must be a trading day; (i)
the average closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five trading days
immediately preceding the offer date; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share of the Company.

9. The remaining life of the 2016 Share Option Scheme:

The 2016 Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a period of 10
years, which will expire on 21 July 2026.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Apart from the share option schemes operated by the Company as disclosed in the
section headed “Share Option Scheme” and in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements, neither at the end of nor at any time during the Year did there subsist
any arrangement to which the Company, any of its subsidiaries or holding
companies, was a party, and the objects of or one of the objects of such arrangement
are/is to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

With effect from 1 September 2011, (i) Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy (“Mr. Tommy Tse”),
the substantial Shareholder and the spouse of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie (“Ms. Annie
Yau”), the executive Director, has been employed by a subsidiary of the Company
as the Chief Merchandising Officer (subsequently, re-designated as Deputy Chief
Executive Officer with effect from 1 November 2016) (“Tommy Tse Employment”);
and (ii) Mr. Tse Sui Luen, the father of Mr. Tommy Tse and father-in-law of Ms. Annie
Yau, has been employed by a subsidiary of the Company as the Founder (“Tse
Senior Employment”). Both Tommy Tse Employment and Tse Senior Employment
have been revised on 22 June 2012, further details are disclosed in the
announcement dated 22 June 2012. Both Tommy Tse Employment and Tse Senior
Employment constituted continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

During the Year, the amounts in respect of Tse Senior Employment is below de
minimis threshold for the purposes of Rule 14A.76 of the Listing Rules, Tse Senior
Employment is fully exempt from Shareholders’” approval, annual review and all
disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules.

With effect from 1 November 2016, the roles and functions of the senior
management of the Group have changed due to the continued development of the
Group, Mr. Tommy Tse has taken up the role in supply chain and wholesale business,
as well as the leadership of China retail, travel trade, alternate channels and the
Group’s branding and creative directions.

In alignment with the abovementioned change of the roles and functions of Mr.
Tommy Tse, the Company through its subsidiary, entered into an employment
agreement with Mr. Tommy Tse on 31 October 2016 (“Tommy Tse Employment
Agreement’), which superseded his previous employment agreement. According to
Tommy Tse Employment Agreement, Mr. Tommy Tse’s basic salary amounts to an
approximately annualised aggregate of HK$2,400,000 per annum. There is also the
prospect of his being awarded a bonus under the Discretionary Management Bonus
Scheme (at the discretion of the Company’s Remuneration Committee). To cater for
the possibility of such a bonus being awarded, the Board has revised an annual cap
on the total amount (inclusive of bonus) that may be paid to Mr. Tommy Tse under
the Tommy Tse Employment Agreement for each of the financial year ended 28
February 2017 and 2018 of HK$4,500,000.
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On 29 March 2018, a renewed employment agreement (the “Renewed Employment
Agreement”) was entered into for a further term of 25 months commencing on 1
March 2018 and expiring on 31 March 2020 in light of the change of the Group’s
financial year end date, but is terminable on three months’ notice in writing by
either party. According to the Renewed Employment Agreement, Mr. Tommy Tse’s
maximum basic salary amounts to an approximately annualised aggregate of
HK$2,730,000 for the thirteen months ended 31 March 2019 and HK$2,646,000 for
the financial year ended 31 March 2020. There is also the prospect of his being
awarded a bonus under the Discretionary Management Bonus Scheme (at the
discretion of the Company’s Remuneration Committee). To cater for the possibility
of such a bonus being awarded, the Board has revised an annual cap on the total
amount (inclusive of bonus) that may be paid to Mr. Tommy Tse under the Renewed
Employment Agreement for each of the thirteen months ended 31 March 2019 and
the financial year ended 31 March 2020 of HK$4,700,000.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules, all of the relevant percentage ratios
for the aggregate annual package of Mr. Tommy Tse is less than 5%, the Tommy Tse
Employment Agreement, the Renewed Employment Agreement and the annual
caps are only subject to the disclosure in annual report, announcement and annual
review by independent non-executive directors and auditors requirements, but are
exempt from the circular and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements.

On 26 March 2020, a renewed employment agreement (the “New Employment
Agreement”) was entered into for a further term of 2 years commencing on 1 April
2020 and expiring on 31 March 2022, which is terminable on three months’ notice in
writing by either party. According to the New Employment Agreement, the total
amount (including salary and discretionary bonus) payable to Mr. Tommy Tse in
each of the financial year ending 31 March 2021 and 2022 shall not exceed the de
minimis threshold for the purposes of Rule 14A.76 of the Listing Rules. The New
Employment Agreement is therefore fully exempt from Shareholders’ approval,
annual review and all disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules.
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During the Year, the Company has complied with the relevant disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The independent non-
executive Directors have reviewed Tommy Tse Employment and confirmed that the
continuing connected transaction has been entered into:

(a) inthe ordinary and usual course of the business of the Company;
(b)  onnormal commercial terms; and
(c)  inaccordance with the relevant agreement governing such employment on

terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.

Ernst & Young (“EY”), the Company’s auditor, was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transaction in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and with reference to Practice
Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. EY has issued an unqualified letter containing its findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transaction disclosed above by
the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above and disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements, there was no connected transactions, arrangement or contracts of
significance to which the Company, its holding company or subsidiaries was a party,
and in which a Director had a material interest or interest in competing business,
whether directly or indirectly, nor contracts of significance between the Company
or its subsidiaries and a controlling Shareholder or its subsidiaries, subsisted at the
end of the Year or at any time during the Year and up to the date of this report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Certain significant related party transactions entered into by the Group during the
Year, which do not constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules are disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed as at
the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, every Director or other officers of the Company shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company against all
losses or damages which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of
the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has
arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage, which is
currently in force and was in force throughout the Year, for the Directors and
officers of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the listed securities of the Company during the Year.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 March 2020 are
set out in notes 24 to 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 204 to 205 of this
annual report.

PROPERTIES

Particulars of the major properties of the Group are shown on pages 206 to 207 of
this annual report.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the Human
Resources Department and the employees’ emoluments are determined on the
basis of their qualifications, experiences and area of expertises.

The emoluments of the executive Directors and senior management of the
Company are determined by the Remuneration Committee of the Company, having
regard to the Group’s operating results, individual expertises, professional
experience and comparable market statistics.

The emoluments of the non-executive Directors, including independent non-
executive Directors, were decided by the Board as recommended by the

Remuneration Committee of the Company having regard to comparable companies,

time commitment and responsibilities.

The emoluments of the Directors and employees of the Group include a share
option scheme, details of which are disclosed in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” of this report of the Directors.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Directors as at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float as required under the Listing Rules.
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SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE BY THE CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

A.

060

Acting as guarantor for the facilities agreement with O-Bank
Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Industrial Bank of Taiwan Co.,
Ltd.)

In 2016, the Company as guarantor and certain subsidiaries of the Company
as borrowers (the “Borrowers”) entered into a facilities agreement (the
“Facilities Agreement”) with O-Bank Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Industrial
Bank of Taiwan Co., Ltd.) acting as mandated lead arranger, facility agent,
original lender and security agent, pursuant to which term loan facilities in
the aggregate amount of HK$573,000,000 (the “Facilities”), inclusive of an
exercised greenshoe option upsize of HK$23,000,000, has been granted to
the Borrowers for a term of 5 years from the date of the first utilisation of the
Facilities.

Pursuant to the Facilities Agreement, among other things, it will be an event
of default if (a) Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie, the spouse of Mr. Tse Tat Fung,
Tommy (being the controlling Shareholder) ceases to (i) be the chairman of
the Board, (ii) have control of the Company (which includes the right to
determine the composition of a majority of the Board); or (b) Ms. Yau On
Yee, Annie and her immediate family members, together, ceases to (i) be,
directly or indirectly, the single largest Shareholder, or (ii) have the ability to
cast, or control the casting of 60% or more of the maximum number of votes
that may be cast at any general meeting of the Company.

Upon the occurrence of such an event of default which is continuing, the
agent under the Facilities Agreement may, and shall if so directed by the
majority of the lenders, cancel the Commitments (as defined in the Facilities
Agreement) or any part thereof, and/or declare all or part of the loans
outstanding under the Facilities together with accrued interest and other
amounts be immediately due and payable, and/or declare all or part of the
loans outstanding under the Facilities be payable on demand, and/or exercise
any or all of its rights, remedies, powers or discretions under the Finance
Documents (as defined in the Facilities Agreement), as the case may be.

On 26 April 2019, all outstanding amount arising from the Facilities was fully
prepaid.
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Acting as guarantor for the subscription agreement with two
institutional investors

In 2016, the Company as guarantor and TSL Manufacturing and Distribution
Limited as issuer (the “Issuer”), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a subscription agreement (the “Subscription
Agreement”) with two institutional investors (collectively “Subscribers”)
pursuant to which the Issuer has agreed to issue, and the Subscribers have
agreed to subscribe from the Issuer, senior secured notes in an aggregate
principal amount of up to HK$200,000,000 (the “Notes”) maturing on the
second anniversary of the issue date of the Notes. On 5 December 2018, the
Notes have been extended for a further term of one year by the Issuer with
the consent of the Notes holders.

Pursuant to the Subscription Agreement, among other things, it will be an
event of default if Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie: (i) ceases to be the chairman of the
Board; or (ii) together with her close relatives (being her parents, spouse or
children), cease to beneficially own, directly or indirectly, the largest
percentage or proportion of the entire issued share capital of the Company
(excluding any part thereof that carries no voting rights) or to control the
Company (where “control” is defined as meaning the power or right (whether
by way of ownership or shares, proxy, contract, agency or otherwise or
directly or indirectly) to: (a) cast or control the casting of more than 50% of
the votes that might be cast at a general meeting of the Company; (b)
appoint or remove all or a majority of the directors or remove any director of
the Company; and/or (c) direct or cause the direction of the operations,
management and financial or other policies of the Company).

Upon the occurrence of such an event of default, each Notes holder shall
have the right to require the Issuer to either redeem all or a part of such
Notes held by such Notes holder or in addition to and without prejudice to
any of the Issuer’s other payment obligations, pay default interest to such
Notes holder in the amount pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
Notes.

On 26 April 2019, all outstanding amount due from the Notes was repaid and
the Notes was fully redeemed.
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Acting as guarantor for the facilities agreement with Hang
Seng Bank Limited, China CITIC Bank International Limited,
China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited, Fubon
Bank (Hong Kong) Limited, United Overseas Bank Limited,
Chong Hing Bank Limited and Bangkok Bank Public Company
Limited, Hong Kong Branch

On 29 March 2019, the Company and a subsidiary of the Company as
guarantors and certain subsidiaries of the Company as borrowers (the “New
Borrowers”) entered into a facilities agreement (the “New Facilities
Agreement”) with Hang Seng Bank Limited, China CITIC Bank International
Limited, China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited, Fubon Bank
(Hong Kong) Limited, United Overseas Bank Limited, Chong Hing Bank
Limited and Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited, Hong Kong Branch
acting as mandated lead arrangers and original lenders, pursuant to which
certain loan facilities, comprising a term loan and a revolving loan, in the
aggregate amount of HK$820,000,000 (the “New Facilities™), has been
granted to the New Borrowers for a term of 3.5 years from the date of the
first utilisation of the New Facilities.

Pursuant to the New Facilities Agreement, among other things, it will be an
event of default if Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie, the spouse of Mr. Tse Tat Fung,
Tommy (being the controlling Shareholder) ceases to be the chairman of the
Board; or Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie and her immediate family members taken as
a whole cease to (i) be, directly or indirectly, the single largest Shareholder;
or (ii) have control of the Company (where “control” is defined as meaning
the power (whether by way of ownership of shares, proxy, contract, agency
or otherwise) to: (a) appoint or remove all, or the majority of, directors on the
board of directors or such other persons who may be charged with or entitled
to exercise central management and control of that corporate person; or (b)
directly or indirectly to otherwise direct or cause the direction of
management and policies of that corporate person) (which, for the avoidance
of doubt, includes the right to determine the composition of a majority of the
Board); or Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie and her immediate family members taken
as a whole cease to remain as the direct or indirect, legal and beneficial
owner of at least 36% of the issued share capital of the Company which is
free from any Security (as defined in the New Facilities Agreement).
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Upon the occurrence of such an event of default which is continuing, the
agent under the New Facilities Agreement may, and shall if so directed by
the Majority Lenders (as defined in the New Facilities Agreement), cancel the
Commitments (as defined in the New Facilities Agreement) or any part
thereof, and/or declare all or part of the loans outstanding under the New
Facilities, together with accrued interest, and all other amounts accrued or
outstanding under the Finance Documents (as defined in the New Facilities
Agreement) be immediately due and payable, and/or declare all or part of
the loans outstanding under the New Facilities be payable on demand, and/
or exercise or direct the security agent to exercise any or all of its rights,
remedies, powers or discretions under the Finance Documents (as defined in
the New Facilities Agreement).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance. Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report”.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year have been audited
by EY. EY will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of EY as independent auditor of the Company will
be proposed at the 2020 AGM.

By Order of the Board
Yau On Yee, Annie
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 June 2020
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CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REPORT

MLz Al S
TEERME

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
The Board has committed to achieving high corporate governance standards.

The Board believes that high corporate governance standards are essential in
providing a framework for the Company to safeguard the interests of shareholders
and to enhance corporate value and accountability.

During the Year, the Company has applied the principles and complied with all the
code provisions, except for the code provision A.2.1, as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
The offices of chairman and chief executive officer of the Company are held by Ms.
Yau On Yee, Annie. The Board believes that Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie can provide the
Company with strong and consistent leadership and allows for effective and
efficient planning and implementation of business decisions and strategies. The
Board also considers that the current structure of vesting the roles of chairman and
chief executive in the same person will not impair the balance of power and
authority between the Board and the management of the Company.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code for dealing in securities of
the Company by the Directors.

Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and all the Directors have
confirmed their compliance with the Model Code throughout the Year.

The Company has also established written guidelines no less exacting than the
Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for securities transactions by
employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information of
the Group. No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by
the employees was noted by the Company during the Year under review.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The composition of the Board during the Year and up to the date of this report is as
follows:

The Board

Executive Directors:
HTES:
Ms. YAU On Yee, Annie
(Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
HE3 Son
(EERITBAEE)
Ms. NG Yi Kum, Estella
(Deputy Chairman, Chief Strategy Officer &
Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary)
hEELt
(BIE/E - BERBENHERAFAWE)

The biographical information of the Directors is set out in the section headed
“Directors Profile” of this annual report. None of the members of the Board is
related to one another.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.

The offices of chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company are held by
Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie. The Board considers that the current management structure
has operated efficiently. According to the Company’s practice, all major strategic
decisions are taken by the Board, or relevant committee of the Board, as duly
constituted.

The Board considers that the current structure of vesting the roles of chairman and
chief executive in the same person will not impair the balance of power and
authority between the Board and the management of the Company.
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Non-executive Director:

FHITES :

Mr. HUANG Erwin Steve (Deputy Chairman)
BEKEE(BIFE)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
BIYFHTES:

Mr. CHUI Chi Yun, Robert

BEECEE

Mr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael
BRA8 S S 4

Mr. CHOW Chee Wai, Christopher
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Independent Non-executive Directors

During the Year, the Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors,
representing one-third of the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of his independence in accordance
with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert and Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, independent non-
executive Directors, have served the Board for more than nine years. Both of them
are not connected with any director or substantial shareholder of the Company.
Notwithstanding their long term services, given their extensive experience as a
professional accountant and a seasoned business leader respectively, would
significantly contribute to the strategy development and continuous improvement
on internal controls and other relevant financial and corporate governance matters
of the Company, the Board is of the opinion that they continue to bring independent
and objective perspectives to the Company’s affairs.

Non-executive Directors and Directors’ Re-election

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive directors shall be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election, whereas code provision A.4.2
states that all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election
by shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment and that every
director, including those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years.

Each of the Directors is appointed for a specific term of three years and is subject to
retirement by rotation once every three years.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the Board
and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company and oversees
the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance and is collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Company by directing and supervising
its affairs. The Directors make decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.
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All Directors, including non-executive Director and independent non-executive
Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the Company as
well as the services and advice from the Company Secretary and senior
management. The Directors may, upon request, seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for discharging
their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held by them
and the Board regularly reviews the contribution required from each Director to
perform his/her responsibilities to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy matters,
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management, material transactions
(in particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of Directors and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and
coordinating the daily operation and management of the Company are delegated to
the management.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director and of the conduct, business
activities and development of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and full awareness of
Director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant. All Directors are encouraged to attend
relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses.
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A summary of training received by Directors during the Year according to the
records provided by the Directors is as follows:

REESRHENLE  SEFTRNAFERREZEIOMR
mr

Attending briefings/
trainings/seminars and/
or reading materials

HEENE 1Bl
Directors g MR SEEME
Ms. YAU On Yee, Annie {2z + v/
Ms. NG Yi Kum, Estella h@EEz+ v/
Mr. HUANG Erwin Steve EEKEE v/
Mr. CHUI Chi Yun, Robert EHCEE 4
Mr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael FRAA Y A v/
Mr. CHOW Chee Wai, Christopher ARELEE 4

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
All the said Board committees of the Company are established with defined written
terms of reference, which are posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange and are available to shareholders upon request.

All or the majority of the members of the said Board committees are independent
non-executive Directors and the list of the chairman and members of each Board
committee is set out in the section headed “Corporate Information” of this annual
report.

Audit Committee
The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee include the following:

. To review the financial statements and reports and consider any significant
or unusual items raised by the Company’s staff responsible for accounting
and financial reporting function, internal auditor or external auditors before
submission to the Board;

. To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, risk management and internal control systems and internal
audit function; and

. To review the relationship with the external auditors with reference to the
work performed by them, their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of external auditors.
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The Audit Committee oversees the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group, reviews the internal audit report submitted by the Group’s Internal
Audit Department (the “IA Department”), reports to the Board on any material
issues, and makes recommendations to the Board.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the Year to review the final results
and annual report for 2018/19 and the interim results and interim report for the six
months ended 30 September 2019 respectively, to approve the audit fee quotation
from external auditors for 2018/19, as well as to review the significant issues on
financial reporting and compliance procedures, risk management and internal
control systems, scope of work and re-appointment of external auditors, and audit
plan for the Year.

Remuneration Committee
The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include the following:

. To make recommendations to the Board on the establishment of formal and
transparent procedures for developing the remuneration policy and structure
for all Directors and the senior management, which shall ensure that no
Director or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration;

. To determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of
the executive Directors and the senior management with reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as market practice
and conditions;

. To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
the non-executive Directors by reference to the performance of the individual
and the Company as well as market practice and conditions; and

. To review and approve the compensation arrangements for the executive
Directors and the senior management in connection with any loss or
termination of their offices or appointments.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the Year to review and approve the
discretionary bonus to the executive Directors and the senior management as well
as the remuneration packages of the executive Directors and the senior
management, to review and recommend to the Board on the remuneration of the
non-executive Directors, and to note the remuneration package of the Group’s
Founder. The Remuneration Committee has also reviewed and approved the
renewal of employment agreement of Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy and made
recommendation to the Board of such renewal.
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The remuneration of the members of senior management of the Company by band
for the Year is set out below:

ARARRERANERTFENFHBELT :

Number of Persons

Range of Remuneration N E AE
HK$2,000,000 to HK$2,999,999 7B 2,000,000 ST E B 5 2,999,999 7T 1
HK$3,000,000 to HK$3,999,999 753,000,000 7T = ¥ 3,999,999 7T 2

Nomination Committee
The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include the following:
. To review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board;

. To make recommendation to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors;

. To identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members; and
. To assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would take into
account various diversity aspects under the Board Diversity Policy that complement
the Company’s corporate strategy, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, talents, skills, knowledge and
length of service. All Board appointments would be based on meritocracy, and
candidates would be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Board has adopted the Director Nomination Policy, which aims to set out the
procedures, process and criteria for nomination and appointment of Directors, and to
ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the Company’s business and succession plan. In identifying, evaluating
and selecting suitable candidate for directorship, the Nomination Committee would
consider the candidates’ character and integrity, potential contributions to the Board in
terms of qualifications, skills, knowledge, experience and time commitment, diversity
aspects under the Board Diversity Policy, independence (for independent non-executive
Director) and other relevant criteria before making recommmendation to the Board. The
Nomination Committee would also rank the candidates by order of preference based on
the Company’s needs and the candidates’ reference check where required.

The Nomination Committee met once during the Year to review the structure, size,
composition and diversity of the Board and the Director Nomination Policy as well
as to assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors. During the
meeting, the Nomination Committee has also reviewed the retiring Directors’ overall
contribution and service to the Company and level of participation and performance
on the Board, and determined that the retiring Directors continue to meet the above
criteria and recommended their re-election at the 2019 annual general meeting.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code provision
D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices,
the training and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and the Employees
Written Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in this Corporate Governance Report.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEE
MEMBERS

A5F AL 57 AMESTE D3 MEFTE A

EE2CEHAR ﬂﬂ’]ﬁ%%ﬁéﬂl%&%‘%ﬁ ERENERE

BAENENIRBEEREES  FAOREETERREER
EHEHNBREER - BTRE —rﬁ‘ LEEEMIES - UK

AR FEEFLEEETARERRRALEEARERD
BEER -

EESRZEENENHFELE

The attendance record of each Director at the Board and Board committee EEENAFEHHLRESSREEEZTESEAULA
meetings and the general meeting of the Company held during the Year is setoutin AT BHARE A SN TR ©
the table below:
Attendance/Number of Meetings
HE 83 XH
Annual
Nomination = Remuneration Audit General
Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
5= EEE REEEE FMESE BEREEE RRBFXAE
Ms. YAU On Yee, Annie 4/4 1/1 1/ - 1/1
mMREL+
Ms. NG Yi Kum, Estella 4/4 - 11 - 1/1
mHE Lt
Mr. HUANG Erwin Steve 4/4 - - - 1/1
EEKEE
Mr. CHUI Chi Yun, Robert 4/4 - 11 2/2 /1
EECKE
Mr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael 4/4 1/1 0/1 2/2 1/1
Mr. CHOW Chee Wai, Christopher 4/4 1/1 1/ 2/2 il
ARREEAE

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held a meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other Directors
during the Year.
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TEERTT LA EMERHFENEH -

on




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED) | 13 B A (48)

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the Year.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of annual and interim reports, inside information announcements and
other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other statutory and
regulatory requirements.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and information as
are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed assessment of the
Company’s financial statements, which are put to the Board for approval.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report”.

The remuneration paid/payable to Ernst & Young, the external auditors of the
Company, was approximately HK$2,940,000 for audit services during the Year. No
other assurance services fee was paid/payable to EY. The remuneration paid/
payable to EY was approximately HK$230,000 for non-assurance services during
the Year.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and reviewing their effectiveness at least
annually through the Audit Committee. The Group’s executive management and the
IA Department have been delegated the responsibility of identifying and evaluating
the risks faced by the Group and of designing, operating and monitoring an
effective internal control system that covers governance, compliance, risk
management, financial as well as operational control.
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The risk management process includes risk identification, risk evaluation, risk
management measures and risk control and review. The management is delegated
to identify, analyze, evaluate, respond, monitor and communicate risks associated
with any activity, function or process within its scope of responsibility and authority.
It is endeavoured to evaluate and compare the level of risk against predetermined
acceptable levels of risk. For risk control and monitoring, it involves making
decisions regarding which risks are acceptable and how to address those that are
not. Any material risk identified by the management or the IA Department will be
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board. The management and the IA
Department assist the Audit Committee and the Board to manage and control such
risks by ensuring an effective risk management system is maintained and operated
within the Group.

The internal control system is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance on the effectiveness and efficiency of operations in achieving the
established corporate objectives, safeguarding the Group’s assets, providing reliable
financial reporting information and complying with the applicable laws and
regulations. Systems and procedures are also established to identify, measure,
manage and control, rather than eliminate, different risks arising from different
business and functional activities.

The IA Department plays an important role in enhancing internal control system of
the Group. It assists the Board in determining whether sound internal control
system is maintained and operated in compliance with the established processes
and standards by performing periodic audits over all major operations of the Group,
under a rotational cycle. An annual audit plan (comprising annual audit focus and
audit frequencies) is prepared based on the department’s independent risk
assessment. Such work plan is discussed and agreed with the Audit Committee at
the beginning of each financial year. If any material risks or internal control defects
are found, the IA Department will discuss with respective department heads to have
actions agreed and subsequently followed up, in order to ensure that satisfactory
controls are maintained. Major internal audit findings will be submitted to the Audit
Committee for review and all improvement actions will be properly followed up by
management to ensure that they are implemented within a reasonable period of
time.

In addition, the Group has engaged an independent consulting firm to assist the 1A
Department to provide professional internal audit services to the Group. Such
appointment aims to provide leadership to and enhance professionalism and
independence of the IA Department.
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The Group complies with the requirements of the SFO and the Listing Rules. The
Group will disclose inside information to the public as soon as reasonably
practicable unless the information falls within any of the “safe harbours” provisions
and satisfies the conditions under the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed
to the public, the Group will ensure that the information is kept strictly confidential.

The Group has strictly prohibited unauthorized use of confidential or inside
information and established and implemented procedures for responding to
external enquiries about the Group’s affairs, so that only the executive Directors are
authorized to communicate with parties outside the Group.

Through the Audit Committee, the Board has conducted annual review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems for the
Year, covering all material financial, operational and compliance controls, and it has
considered the Group’s risk management and internal control system to be effective
and adequate. There were no suspected material irregularities found or significant
areas of concern identified during the Year that might affect shareholders of the
Company.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene a Special General Meeting
("SGM”)

Pursuant to bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws and the Bermuda Companies Act, registered
shareholders of the Company holding not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company (“SGM Requisitionists”) can deposit a written request to convene a SGM at
the registered office of the Company (the “Registered Office”), which is presently
situated at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The SGM
Requisitionists must state in their request(s) the purposes of the SGM and such
request(s) must be signed by all the SGM Requisitionists and may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more of the SGM Requisitionists.

The share registrars of the Company will verify the SGM Requisitionists’ particulars
in the SGM Requisitionists’ request. Promptly after confirmation from the share
registrars of the Company that the SGM Requisitionists’ request is in order, the
Company Secretary will arrange with the Board to convene a SGM by serving
sufficient notice to all the registered shareholders of the Company in accordance
with all the relevant statutory and regulatory requirements. On the contrary, if the
SGM Requisitionists’ request is verified not in order, the SGM Requisitionists will be
advised of the outcome and accordingly, a SGM will not be convened as requested.
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The SGM Requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one-half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a SGM if within twenty-
one (21) days of the deposit of the SGM Requisitionists’ request, the Board does not
proceed duly to convene a SGM provided that any SGM so convened is held within
three (3) months from the date of the original SGM Requisitionists’ request. A SGM
so convened by the SGM Requisitionists shall be convened in the same manner, as
nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are to be convened by the Company.

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at a general
meeting

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act, either any number of the registered
shareholders of the Company holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the
paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company (“Requisitionists™), or not less than 100 of such registered
shareholders, can request the Company in writing to (a) give to shareholders of the
Company entitled to receive notice of the next annual general meeting notice of
any resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting; and (b) circulate to shareholders of the Company entitled to have notice
of any general meeting any statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to
the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at
that meeting.

The requisition signed by all the Requisitionists may consist of several documents in
like form, each signed by one or more of the Requisitionists; and it must be
deposited at the Registered Office with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company'’s relevant expenses, not less than six weeks before the meeting in case of
a requisition requiring notice of a resolution or not less than one week before the
meeting in the case of any other requisition. Provided that if an annual general
meeting is called for a date six weeks or less after the requisition has been
deposited, the requisition though not deposited within the time required shall be
deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.
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Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the Board in
writing through the Company Secretary whose contact details are as follows:

The Company Secretary

Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Limited
Ground Floor, Block B, Summit Building,

30 Man Yue Street, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Fax: (852) 2356 0215

Email: enquiry@tslj.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general meetings of
the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company’s constitutional documents have been posted under the sub-section
“Constitutional Documents” of “Corporate Governance” section on the Company’s
website at ir.tslj.com. There are no changes in the constitutional documents of the
Company during the Year under review.

076

BRABFSELERNIEF

RERABERERBARNWEAEALABEEARMERRE
=g RAWEZBEFBENOT

NEE

HmBA IR E (BIFR) BRA A
BERNEAMRBAI0N
BT AEH T BEE
fE 5 : (852) 2356 0215

EE : enquiry@tslj.com

BERIRAERRRZBRAEG EREFSIEHEH

BEXH

AR RBEM AR ABIirtsl.com[ REEE BT
2 [BEX] HEHR - RABBEEER - AARANBEL
PF 3 A AT B -



INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR'S REPORT
BB ES

>
EY:

To the shareholders of Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tse Sui Luen Jewellery
(International) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 86 to 203, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

Ernst & Young
22/F, CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2020, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs™)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description
of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report, including in
relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

BEETEEHG

Key audit matter
ARETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
REEEEN TR OMELN

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

Y BERREREFEEEZEFG

As at 31 March 2020, the Group recorded property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets mainly from the lease of retail shops amounting to HK$132
million and HK$280 million, respectively. The Group recorded net loss during the
year ended 31 March 2020 which was principally generated in Hong Kong as a
result of the negative impact from social unrest and outbreak of COVID-19.
Management had performed impairment assessment on individual shops with
impairment indicators and the Group recorded impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets amounting to HK$3 million and HK$13 million,
respectively, during the year to write down the carrying amounts of these assets
to the recoverable amounts. The recoverable amounts were determined based on
the value in use calculation. Significant judgement is required to determine the
value in use amounts based upon the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit estimated. The estimation process is highly based on
assumptions, which are influenced by projected future market and economic
conditions.
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The accounting policies and disclosures of the impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are included in notes 2.4, 3,14 and 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Our audit procedures included evaluating the Group’s policy
and procedures in identifying impairment indicators and
assessing management’s significant assumptions adopted in
the cash flow forecasts by reviewing the Group’s business
plan, comparing with the market discount rate and inflation
rate, evaluating the sales growth rate by comparing with the
forecasted number of tourists. We also compared the cash
flow forecasts with historical data of the Group.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

E )

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BREEE ZEEETETPRNMESH
Recognition of deferred tax assets
RIEL PR A B

As at 31 March 2020, deferred tax assets regarding tax losses carried forward
recognised by the Group amounted to approximately HK$11 million. The tax
impact of unrecognised tax losses at the applicable tax rates at 31 March 2020 was
approximately HK$78 million. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and amount of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies.
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The accounting policies and disclosure of the recognition of deferred tax assets in
respect of tax losses are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 27 to the consolidated
financial statements.

EHERTEBENECHBEENSHECRUREBRERHRGRA SRS
MisE2.4 ~ 3% 27 o

080

Our audit procedures included reviewing the Group’s latest
profit forecast and approved strategic business plan to
evaluate management’s assessment that there will be
sufficient taxable profits in the future to utilise the tax losses
recognised and that it is probable that the deferred tax
assets would be recoverable within the statutory time frame
in the countries for which the tax losses have arisen.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

3 GRS

(&)

BEETEEG

Key audit matter
BREESEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
ZEEEES PR NMELRN

Recognition of deferred tax liabilities regarding withholding tax on unremitted
earnings of subsidiaries established in Mainland China

PR B3 2 FY B 2 2 K 3 B B e TR 15 IR A B R B R B 1B

As at 31 March 2020, the Group recognised a deferred tax liability of
approximately HK$13 million for withholding taxes that would be payable in
respect of the unremitted earnings of the Group’s subsidiaries established in
Mainland China that are subject to withholding taxes. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount and timing of the payment of
dividends that will be distributed in the foreseeable future. The estimation process
is highly based on assumptions, which are influenced by projected future market
and economic conditions.
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The accounting policies and disclosures of the recognition of deferred tax liabilities
are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

FHERRERBRAEN G BRARBBEENENGAVBEMEMT24 3
27 °

Net realisable value of Inventories

FRZAE%FE

As at 31 March 2020, the Group recorded inventories of approximately HK$1,506
million before provision for impairment of approximately HK$52 million. The write-
down of inventories to net realisable value is estimated by management through
the application of judgement and the use of highly subjective assumptions. During
the year ended 31 March 2020, a net reversal of provision for impairment of
inventories of approximately HK$12 million was credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss based on management’s assessment.

R-ZZF-ZE=ZA=+—H  BXENEFEEHN/EETRE EBET KitA
T‘%’i@ﬁ%’]%ﬁé%ﬁ? E&%fm E.EEiﬁiﬁ#u%ﬁﬂmFI&MEJ‘”XfEuHM%
E’Mépﬁr A% é%@ﬁnilﬂﬂ’]ﬁ Tﬁﬁ@%é%ﬁﬁgﬂjﬁlﬁﬁ% ¥f5§ﬁ°

The accounting policies and disclosure for the impairment provision on inventories
are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

FHTERBNEIBERARKREERENGAPBRENT24 3 &7 -

Our audit procedures included evaluating the management’s
assumptions and estimates in relation to the likelihood of the
Group’s operations in Mainland China remitting their earnings
in the foreseeable future, which included the ability of the
Company to generate sufficient cash flows for dividend
distribution and other financing needs of the Group, based
on the latest approved strategic business plan. We also
assessed the historical accuracy of the management’s
assumptions used.

ﬁfﬁﬁl’ﬂ%?ﬁ% BREFEEREERESNIZE 2 REER

i RERkGEt ERERTEEBRAERLSEDE

”ﬂz—f“’”\i BBE BERFELRAKBREZRS

MEVEE) - AR BEEEEMBETE - MM EER
[ERREE L ERE -

Our audit procedures included reviewing the Group’s
procedures in identifying and valuing obsolete, damaged,
slow-moving, excess and other inventory items whose costs
may not be fully recoverable; evaluating inputs and
assumptions used by the Group in calculating the
impairment; and assessing the adequacy of the impairment
recorded by reviewing subsequent sales after the year end
and comparing with historical sales records.

BB RFREFEERBSIMNEERE  BR F
e BFAREMARERBREKRAZFENZS -

ity EREFERESMANBENRR  BHEREE
T BAFE S SHE AL SR LL B - RAFHAE ARRRE 2 R H1E
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED) | B/ AZ EiEM R & & (48)

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, other than
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do
S0.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

082

HERFEREAEMBES

E=THHEMEERE - AES B TEHNFEREAN
B8 ETBESAVERER R MOZEE®RE -

HPEEGRAMBERANERL PREEMESR - RATFAE
FZEHMESBEREANANERER

BABMYERAMBHERNET  RMANEEEHELME
B EIEET - EREMESES BRSMBWRIIHMM
EEHBETMERNERFEEREBIEUTFEEX
HREAER - ERBRASRITHNTE  MRAEMRBAE
MESFEERERRL  RMFERELZETE-CEES
o BYRE RS

ESHARESUBBRRARENER

EXZRRARBELGAASRMHNE BV BHRELEL)
REECARGIDOBREREREAEMT BENGEANT
ik UHERARELESPBRROBE T FEARKE
SRR MG BB ARHERBAFATFOAIEHEE -

ERBEEMBHRERE  EFEEAME EXERELED
B TAEEMBEATHREESELEEMNER ARk

RFELERe AR RIEEAEH BEEEBELN
e RpEEMERNERTE -
B REEMPESETRE - BEE SRENMBEHREE

[E



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED) | &7 1% 8l ff ¥ &5 = (45)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

BREMRET G BRREAENEE
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report
is Chau Suet Fung, Dilys.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

23 June 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

PROFIT OR LOSS

= A S 3L
:%/T\lzl Eﬁﬂ

Year ended 31 March 2020

HE2020F3 A3 IEFE Notes
ihg=s
Turnover = 5
Cost of sales SHER A
Gross profit ER
Other income and gains/(losses), net Hib g A R Uezk(E518) -
FEE 6

Selling and distribution expenses HERDHE
Administrative expenses 1THEA
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS KEBR
Finance costs B EA 8
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBLAT (E51R), BT 7
Income tax expense st &R n
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR TEE (BB)BR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: RIS

Owners of the Company FiN/NETEZZ SN

Non-controlling interests JEIE R AR R AE
(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE RATEEAEBEER

ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF (&5]|)BA

THE COMPANY

Basic and diluted EAR#E 13

086

2020

2020 &

HK$°000 &% F 7T
2,913,827
(1,765,431)
1,148,396

37,518
(1,036,780)
(145,814)

3,320
(63,348)

(60,028)
(29,726)

(89,754)

(89,670)
(84)

(89,754)

(36.0 HK cents 78l )

2019
20194
HK$'000 B T 7T

4,064,920
(2,445,558)

1,619,362

(272)
(1,299,234)
(170,054)

149,802
(50,360)

99,442
(45,275)

54,167

54,161
6

54,167

21.9 HK cents /&l




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e ZEWER

Year ended 31 March 2020 2020 2019
HZE20200F83 210 IEFE Notes 2020 £ 20194

Bt HK$’000 & ¥ T 7t HK$'000 ¥ F 7T
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REE (FE),BA (89,754) 54,167
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Hit2mEEE

Other comprehensive (loss)/income that HEFAREFISEZERE
will not be reclassified to profit or loss in  ZH# 2 & (&8)

subsequent periods: b=
Remeasurement (l0ss)/gain on defined AERAGFEINER
benefit plan (B8B), /WA 26 7,339
Income tax effect FREHiE 27 a.21m
Net other comprehensive (loss)/income ARTAREH S EEBEER
that will not be reclassified to ZHMEE(EHE),
profit or loss in subsequent periods R 6,128
Other comprehensive loss that may be HATNREEHF P EZRRERE
reclassified to profit or loss in ZHMEEER !
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of BMEEINER 2 EH R
foreign operations (74,644) (97,775)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR AEEHMEHEERE
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX MNBRFIE (75,302) (91,647)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR AEE2HEHEBBRAHE
THE YEAR (165,056) (37,480)
Attributable to: PEh4EEE -
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE Y N (164,968) (37,461)
Non-controlling interests JE1R AR AR R AE RS (€:1)) 19
(165,056) (37,480)

087




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

AR e SRR Ak

At 31 March 2020
R 20203 A 31H

Notes
BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB MERE 14
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 15(a)
Intangible assets EmEE 16
Other asset HEthEE 17
Prepayments and deposits AR RZS 20
Deferred tax assets ELERIBEE 27
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories eSS 18
Trade receivables FEULAR X 19
Prepayments, other receivables and B - Hab s &
other assets Hh&EE 20
Tax recoverable AT UK B 5 TH
Time deposits TEHIFR 21
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEeEEY 21
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade payables FENTBR IR 22
Other payables and accruals HEtENRRETER 23
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings T E8R1T R E M E =X 24
Finance lease payables ENRERE 25
Lease liabilities HEEsE 15(b)
Tax payable e IR
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES A& ERABERE

088

At 31 March

2020

72020 %
3A31H

HK$’000 & ¥ T

132,157
280,303
99

500
41,506
40,526

495,091

1,453,755
77,783

98,745
14,788
232,003
336,750

2,213,824

(245,718)
(284,966)
(446,150)

(155,162)
(3,355)

(1,135,351)
1,078,473
1,573,564

At 31 March

2019

P 2019 FF
3A31H

HK$ 000 B F T

181,843

99
500
53,165
49,275

284,882

1,436,259
148,116

159,575

17,771
159,302
251,242

2,172,265

(224,503)
(316,578)
(786,984)
(680)

(16,550)

(1,345,295)

826,970

1,111,852




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED) |

At 31 March 2020
20203 A31H

Notes
B EE
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBERE
Other payables and accruals Hh R ETEA 23
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings &+ 84817 R E M B 24
Employee benefit obligations EERBHNEY 26
Lease liabilities HEaE 15(b)
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEEE 27
NET ASSETS EEFE
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners of EATEE AELESR
the Company
Issued capital BEEBITIRA 28
Reserves ki 30
Non-controlling interests FERREERS
TOTAL EQUITY SR

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23 June 2020.
EBEEN2020F 6 B 23 BAZ I ] T3 o

Yau On Yee, Annie Il 22 &
Ng Yi Kum, Estella B &=

NN NG AN

Directors %

At 31 March

2020

#2020 &
3A31H

HK$’000 B ¥ T T

(4,278)
(567,611)
(1,639)
(84,070)
(15,879)
(673,477)

900,087

(62,296)
(837,918)

(900,214)
127

(900,087)

=
e

sARon R (8)

At 31 March

2019

20195
3A3A
HK$'000 ¥ F 7t

(5,770)

(2,655)

a7,7117)

(26,142)

1,085,710

(62,138)
(1,023,611)

(1,085,749)
39

(1,085,710)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CHANGES IN EQUITY

GAEE

2Bk

Year ended 31 March 2020
HZ2020F3A3BILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AREHER AER
Share Capital Non-
Issued Share option and other Retained Proposed controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserves profits dividend Total interests equity
EARR FEER
BRIIRA BROEE BRERZE HibFE REEF FORRR 8 af R R BnEE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Mz YT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
(note 38 (note 38 (note 38
(note 28) ©@) ©)(iv)) (c)iy) (note 12)
(FizE38 (Fzt38 (K38
(FizE28) (o) W) (o)) (B&E12)
At1April 2018 R2018E4A1H 61,709 117,966 15,719 242,767 696,654 18,019 1152,834 (20) 1152814
Effect of adoption of new RamesEalz e
accounting standards - - - - (3,328) - (3,328) - (3,328)
At 1 April 2018 (restated) 201854 A1H (E7)) 61,709 117,966 15,719 242,767 693,326 18,019 1,149,506 (20) 1,149,486
Profit for the year HEEBH - - - - 54,161 - 54,161 6 54167
Other comprehensive loss for ZEEEMZAESE:
the year:
Exchange differences on BEENEBZ
translation of foreign EREE
operations - - - (97,750) - - (97,750) (25) (97,775)
Remeasurement gain on RERMFEIOER
defined benefit plan, gk - RREIIE
net of tax - - - - 6,128 - 6,128 - 6,128
Total comprehensive loss for FEEEAEEEE
the year - - - (97,750) 60,289 - (37,461) (19) (37,480)
Scrip shares under 2017/18 2017/18 % IR
second interim dividend BER B 28 280 2,243 - - - (2,523) - - -
Scrip shares under 2018/19 2018/19 1 Bk B B R
interim dividend 12,28 149 953 - - (1702) - - - -
Dividends paid B2IRRE - - - - (10,800) (15,496) (26,296) - (26,296)
Final dividend (2018/19) KR (2018/19) 12 - - - - (13,919) 13,919 - - -
At 31 March 2019 R201953A318 62,138 121162* 15,719* 145,017 727,794* 13,919 1,085,749 (39) 1,085,710
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED) | 45 & ## 2 &

= (&)

Year ended 31 March 2020
HZE200F3838LFE

Notes
Wizt
At 1April 2019 R2009F4A1H
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 ¥ E B KBS ER|
FOFNTE 22
At April 2019 (restated) M20196 4 1A (£31)
Loss for the year AFEER
Other comprehensive loss for AEEEMEARE:
the year:
Exchange differences on BERINERZ
translation of foreign ERESE
operations
Remeasurement 10ss on AREBFFENER
defined benefit plan, 18 - MRHIE
net of tax
Total comprehensive loss for AEERAFBERLEE
the year
Scrip shares under 2018/19 2018/19 A B E B R B i
final dividend 12,28
Forfeiture of share option BRMzERE
upon expiry 29
Dividends paid BIRKRE 2

At 31 March 2020

R2020F3A31H

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$837,918,000 (31 *
March 2019: HK$1,023,611,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Share
premium

Issued
capital
BRT
R
HK$'000
BETT

R EE
HK$’000
BETT
(note 38
©))
(Bi=E38
(o))
121,162

(note 28)

(Ff=E 28)
62,138

62,138 121,62

849

62,296 122,011

Attributable to owners of the Company

FRRHEAEL

Capital
and other
reserves
BER
Htbfk e
HK$’000
BETR
(note 38
(c)(ii))
(BfaE 38
(c)(ii))
145,017

Share
option
reserve

Retained
profits

BRERE
HK$'000
BETT
(note 38

(€)(iv))
(B 38
(©)
15,719

REBH
HK$'000
BB

727,794

- (7,655)
145,017 720,139

(89,670)

(74,640)

(658)

(74,640)

(90,328)

(15,719) 15,719

= 645,530*

Proposed
dividend

RRBRS
HK$’000
BETT

(note 12)

(H&£12)
13,919

(1,007)

(12,912)

I EHEREEAREZA
837,918,000 7T (20194 3 A 31 8 : ##1023,611,000 7T) °

Total
Bt

HK$'000
BB

1,085,749

(7,655)
1,078,094

(89,670)

(74,640)

(658)

(164,968)

(12,912)
900,214

Non-
controlling
interests
FER
RRER
HK$’000
BETT

(39)

(84)

4)

(88)

(127)

Total
equity

it

HK$'000
BETT

1,085,710

(7,655)
1,078,055

(89,754)

(74,644)

(658)

(165,056)

(12,912)
900,087

BBRARZEERFBEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS
mERTRER

Year ended 31 March 2020

HE2020F3A3IHIEFE Notes
B 5E
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES B4 %K v RERE
(Loss)/profit before tax BELAT (B18), /& F|
Adjustments for: P
Finance costs M58 A 8
Interest income U A 6
Loss on disposal of items of property, BEWME - WBENERE
plant and equipment IHE EiE 7
Depreciation of property, plant and ¥ BEREEITE
equipment 7
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRREERE 7
Impairment allowance of trade receivable  FEURBESXRE « F%8 7
Impairment of property, plant and YIZE -~ BB KRR ERE
equipment 7
Impairment of right-of-use assets ERAREEERE 7
Movements in employee benefit obligations B T~ & 8&) 26
Reversal of provision for impairment of PO B E R n B 18
inventories FE  OFE 7
Fair value loss on gold loans designated EEAEAFEBEEAE
at fair value through profit or loss ZESHENATERTF
] 7
(Increase)/decrease in inventories &M, Wb
Decrease in trade receivables FEUBR O
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TERTR - bR R H A
other receivables and other assets BERD,(380)

Increase/(decrease) in trade payables
(Decrease)/increase in other payables

FERBRFIE I, O )
BN R R ER & A

and accruals CRA) /0
Cash flows generated from operations CEEBEENRS
Hong Kong profits tax paid EX A EBFEH

Taxes paid other than Hong Kong
Interest element of lease payments

ENEEAIMEERIA
THEN A F 8 B

Net cash flows from operating activities

BEEBELZADREFR

092

2020
2020 &
HK$°000 &% F 7T

(60,028)

63,348
(3,849)

364

60,613
198,171
1,116

3,447
13,011
(1,016)

(12,499)

262,678
(58,089)
61,749

62,021
22,727

(13,481)
337,605
(3,313)
(27,837)
(14,625)

291,830

2019
20194
HK$'000 B T 7T

99,442

50,360
(3.808)

1,364
58,103

12,654

228

(4,951

2,509

215,901
128,737
15,217

(27,345)
(42,969)

41,338

330,879
(7.812)
(35,670)

287,397




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED) | &2 A IR & mE R (&)

Year ended 31 March 2020 2020 2019
HZE20200F83 210 IEFE Notes 2020 £ 20194
Bt HK$’000 & ¥ T 7t HK$'000 ¥ F 7T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREZE2HERE
Interest received AL 3,849 3,808
Increase in time deposits TE BATF RO (81,454) (110,465)
Purchases of items of property, BEWE - W MREEE
plant and equipment 14 (68,532) (105,851
Purchases of prepaid land lease BEEMIHAE 15(a) (30,062) -

Proceeds from disposal of items of property, ZEE ¥ - e MR EBEB
plant and equipment 8308 100 154

Net cash flows used in investing activities ~ REEBFMA RS REFE (176,099) (212,354)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES REEZBEZHERE
Proceeds from interest-bearing bank and Mgt BIRTT N EME RS

other borrowings IE 831,973 160,000
Repayment of interest-bearing bank and BB BIRITREME R

other borrowings (605,196) (161,060)
Principal portion of finance lease payments gt &M &N R A4 2015 - (643)
Principal portion of lease payments HENRN A2 EHD (185,008) -
Interest paid B E (48,723) (50,304)
Dividends paid ERRE (12,912) (26,296)
Interest element of finance lease payments g & M & XY F 22515 - (57)
Net cash flows used in financing activities MEEHACIRS RE R (19,866) (78,360)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH REeRRSEEY2EmM

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (R2) F8 95,865 (3,317)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of RFEYIZEREERIRESEEY

the year 251,242 268,073
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net SMNESHE SR Eh g2 28 » J5iE (10,357) (13,514)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END RELRCHRERRESEY

OF THE YEAR 336,750 251,242
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERRSEEYEFIN

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEED 21 336,750 251,242
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1.  CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the
Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is located at
Ground Floor, Block B, Summit Building, 30 Man Yue Street, Hunghom,

Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture, sale and marketing
of jewellery products and the provision of service.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company is Partner
Logistics Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BV1”),
and the ultimate holding company is Blink Technology Limited, which is
incorporated in the BVI, and the ultimate controlling party is Mr. Tse Tat

Fung, Tommy (“Mr. Tommy Tse”).

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

RAREEESR

HIRBRE (BB BRAR (AR IR BERED
MR zBEREERA - ARAA 2 M EELR
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda ° ARRBZEEWERABBNEAMRS
A0 EE T REM TBEE

AEBEzTEERARE  HE HEREERKIER
RIS o

FERE NEBERE B B Partner Logistics
Limited BEBIZER AR KRB A EREBREKL
B% B 5E A 32 A9 Blink Technology Limited » M & &R 2
AL AR EELE -

B ARz &M
ARRMBDRZFERT :

Place of
incorporation/

Issued ordinary/

registration and registered Percentage of equity
Name business share capital  attributable to the Company  Principal activities
R/ EMK ERTEE
g E 3k BAEMBRAR EARFERET DL TEEHK
Direct Indirect
HE i
TSL Investment (B.V.I.) Limited® BVI HK$1,000 100 - Investment holding
RBRIES 7E11,0007T RAER
Ankenne Jewelry Co. Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Jewellery trading
HEREER AT B BT KEES
Beijing Qi Li Yun Jewellery Company The People’s Republic Renminbi (“RMB”) - 100 Jewellery retailing
Limited#**@ of China (“"PRC”) 20,000,000 HKETE
IEREFMEHREAR AT hE AR EAE AR 20,000,0007T
(T E D)
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1.

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

ARAREBER (B
MEBARZER (@)

ARFMBARZFBENAT  (8)

Place of
incorporation/

Issued ordinary/

registration and registered Percentage of equity
Name business share capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
R/ MR ERTEE
a8 =301 B AR A AARMERET A TEEHK
Direct Indirect
HE B
Beijing Qi Li Yun Trading Company PRC RMB3,000,000 - 100 Jewellery retailing
Limited™*e i AR 3,000,0007T KETE
IREANEREERAR
Beijing Tse Sui Luen Jewellery Company ~ PRC United States dollars - 100 Jewellery manufacturing
Limited*@(“"BTSL") & (“US$”) 2,000,000 and trading
ERARBRERRAFC 2,000,000 7T HEHERES
Concepts Management (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Trademarks holding and
Bl EE(BE)BRAR) B BT investment in trademarks
BAEREREEEE
Excellent Ford Development Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Jewellery trading
(“EF”) B% 75 #10,0007C KEEZH
BHERERAA ([BHER])
Guangzhou Hong Yun Jewellery PRC RMB7,800,000 - 100 Jewellery retailing
Company Limited**e e AR#7,800,0007C HKETE
BENBEHREAR AR "
Guangzhou Tai Yi Trading Company PRC HK$8,000,000 - 100 Jewellery trading
Limited™®@ HE 751 8,000,000 7T KEES
BMNREHERRAR
Guangzhou Xi Yun Jewellery Company PRC RMB2,000,000 - 100 Jewellery retailing
Limited#**@ e AR# 2,000,000 KREZTE

EHEEREERAT
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1.

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

ARREBER (&)
BB A a2 ER ()
AATIMBATZ HBMT « (8)

Place of
incorporation/

Issued ordinary/

registration and registered Percentage of equity
Name business share capital  attributable to the Company  Principal activities
R/ EMK ERTEE
g B BA/EMBRAR EARFERET DL TEEHK
Direct Indirect
HE i
Guangzhou Xi Yun Trading Company PRC RMB3,000,000 - 100 Jewellery retailing and
Limited#**@ A E AR#3000,0007T franchising
BNEEREAR AR KETERMBER
Guangzhou Xiang Yun Jewellery PRC RMB3,000,000 - 100 Jewellery trading
Company Limited#+e i AR#3,000,0007T HKEESH
BNEZKREARR AR
Impromptus Asia Pacific Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Goldsmith and jewellery
B 7 #£10,0007T trading
ReRHKEES
Infinite Assets Corp® BVI HK$277,254 - 100 Investment holding
REBRXES B’ 277,254 7T BEER
Liberty Mark Limited® BVI US$1 - 100 Investment holding
REBRIES 17T REER
Richfun Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
LLPEFRAT B BT "AER
Shanghai Fu Yun Jewellery Company PRC RMBI1,000,000 - 100 Jewellery retailing
Limited™*@ F AR#1,000,000 7T HKETE
FEREKRERRARC
Shanghai Fu Yun Trading Company PRC RMB3,000,000 - 100 Jewellery retailing
Limited#**@ FE AR#3,000,0007T KETE

LAREERARAR



CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

ARAREBER (B
MEBARZER (@)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) | 84 74 ¥ 2% [ 5T (48 )

ARFMBARZFBENAT  (8)

Place of
incorporation/

Issued ordinary/

registration and registered Percentage of equity
Name business share capital  attributable to the Company  Principal activities
R/ MR ERTEE
28 =301 BA MR AR AARERET A TEEHK
Direct Indirect
HiE Sk
Shenzhen Jingyan Jewellery Company PRC HK$8,000,000 - 100 Manufacturing and
Limited™¢ i E 7 #8,000,000 7T distribution of jewellery
RIEHEKEEHER AT KERERDH
Shenzhen Qianhai Tse Sui Luen Trading PRC RMB100,000 - 100 Jewellery trading
Company Limited#*e P AR#100,000 7T KEEH
FIENEIHHE HBR AT e
Shenzhen Qianhai Tse Sui Luen Logistic ~ PRC RMB100,000 - 100 Logistics and supply chain
Company Limited#*@ I AR#100,000 7T management
RYIENE R RARA R e W R ERE T
Tse Sui Luen Jewellery Company Limited  Hong Kong HK$46,982,090 - 100 Jewellery trading and
(“TSLJ")# B 5% 46,982,090 T retailing
HIBHKEARAR ([HIRBRE]) KBEESHRTE
Tse Sui Luen (Guangzhou) Jewellery PRC HK$21,000,000 - 100 Manufacturing, distribution
Company Limited (“TSLGZ”) #@ H 75 #£21,000,000 7T of jewellery and
AR (BN KEFR AT franchising
(THmBEEM 1) e RERE 5
KREEHMMNBEH
Tse Sui Luen Investment (China) BVI US$6,863 - 100 Investment holding
Limited® RBRTHEE 6,863%7T REER

AmBRE (PE) ARAAC
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1.

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

ARREBER (&)
BB A a2 ER ()
AATIMBATZ HBMT « (8)

Place of
incorporation/

Issued ordinary/

registration and registered Percentage of equity
Name business share capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
R,/ MK ERTEE
7B S A/ EmBRAR EARFERET D TEER
Direct Indirect
HiE B
Tse Sui Luen Jewellery Retailing Malaysia Malaysian Ringgits - 100 Jewellery retailing
Sdn. Bhd.® SRADE 3,300,000 KBETE
SRERTE
3,300,0007¢C
Tse Sui Luen (Shenzhen) Jewellery PRC HK$12,500,000 - 100 Manufacturing and
Company Limited#@ e 712,500,000 7T distribution of jewellery
i ORI IRBEBR AT e RERERDH
Tse Sui Luen (Shenzhen) Trading PRC RMBI1,000,000 - 100 Jewellery trading
Limited#**@ + AR #100,0007T KEESH
#inEE ORI AEER AR e
TSL Jewellery (Export) Company Limited Hong Kong HK$19,824,775 - 100 Jewellery trading and
HIHBIRE (HO)BRAR B 75 1#519,824,775 70 retailing
KBEHRETE
TSL Jewellery (Macau) Limited® Macau Macau Pataca ("MOP”) - 100 Jewellery retailing
TSLHKRE CRF) AR QA SR 100,000 KETE
SR P9%100,000 7T
TSL Jewellery Retailing (Macau) Limited® Macau MOP100,000 - 100 Jewellery retailing
R SR F9%100,000 7T KEZE
TSL Jewellery Commercial (Macau) Macau MOP100,000 - 100 Jewellery retailing
Limited® R SRP95100,000 7T KETE
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1.

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

ARAREBER (B
BB A aEz &R (#E)

ARFMBARZFBENAT  (8)

Place of
incorporation/

Issued ordinary/

registration and registered Percentage of equity
Name business share capital  attributable to the Company  Principal activities
R/ #MmE ERTEE
=g SR BA MR AAFERER DL TEEK
Direct Indirect
HiE Sk
TSL Jewellery (H.K.) Co. Limited Hong Kong HK$42,000,390 - 100 Jewellery retailing
HWBIRE (BB) BRAA 0 742,000,390 7T KETE
TSL Management Services Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Management and
HIEBMERREER AR 55 B2 administrative services
B RITBUR
TSL Manufacturing and Distribution Hong Kong HK$67,000,000 - 100 Investment holding,
Limited (“TSL M&D") B8 7% 67,000,000 7T procurement,
HImBEE R D AR AR manufacturing and
(T@mBEERnE]) distribution of jewellery
RAER - 5KE -
SERDHEIRE
TSL Properties Management Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 - 100 Property holding and
B EERERAR B #B#1,0007T investment
HAEMERKE
TSL Trading Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Property holding
B BT BEWE
TSLJ Kabushiki Kaisha (“TSLJKK”)***@ Japan Japanese Yen - 96.5  Jewellery retailing and
TSLIBRA 244 ([ TSLIKK]) e BA 75,000,000 wholesales
75,000,000 H7T KETERIE
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1.  CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

# Unofficial translation

w In addition to the ordinary shares, the issued deferred share capital of TSLJ
is HK$36,574,000

* Registered under the laws of the PRC as foreign enterprise

o Registered under the laws of the PRC as limited liability company

Registered under the laws of Japan as limited liability company

@ Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the
Ernst & Young global network

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of

the directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a

substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other

subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention. These financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2020. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

ARREBER (&)
BB A a2 ER ()
AATIMBATZ HBMT « (8)

: FEEA =S
O BETAEBRN BREBREZETCRARBE
36,574,000 7T

: RIEPBEDEREM AN EDZE

o REPEAEEMREREEAF

= REAREEAMABREEAR

o Bt R R IR A 2K AN AT sk B 22 K
BB AR ER °

BEERA/LRMIIEARTZHBER T%IE Z N

FEEGIRRASEFEETIRMNNAR - BEF

REREEMHBARZFBERE §1F5¢mﬂ5f§ °

mBLEE

tﬁﬁﬁ‘“i&%ﬂﬁiﬂ”%% TR AR T BT
%Q‘EE‘J(“%ﬁﬁ*ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%#&%ﬁiﬂ” FEEAE
E'J&ﬁ%ﬁ) EEERRMN 2GR NEEQAE
PIREERRREMRE - &t%ﬁ?ﬁ%#&i’%%f@ﬁiﬁ%$
FHRERE - WS BBRERIAETER - BRI
B AEEBEORABRERBEN TR -

WIN I/:l\ﬁ

M EMBREBREARRREMBLAR (KA A
EEDHZ2009F3ANBIEFEZHBEIRE - B
RAElBARREEEREETS R (BIEEENT
B EAKENESBKREHRMASZRGER
SAIEEIR - WHEHBREIRELH R 2D (BN
FAREEEEREHSIEEEES RN R AR
FFEHEDR - BDEAGHEHIE -
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts
and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(a)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests,
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount
of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be
required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

i BLELE (1)
4R A B ()

EARAAREEXHAZEEREHRAS B ER
SRR - NEEEEAEERRERRBERAF
HERTEHEREYHREREN B85

(a) HERBEHRIHMOREERFBEAZBZENZ
B

(b)  REMEDZEPEEZEN : &
© AEHIREENBEREFRE -

B8 X B RO B TS R R IR A A B 2 AR R s HAR e SR A
BARNBE WG ERERYE - WEARZEAAR
SERSEETIRZ ARG AR  EABEHER
kzHIE-

BahEMEEWEEE R 2 SAKE D BERARQF]
R AREEIR RS - AR E S EEORERARR
REEHREBRTTER - FEEEARRMZEE -
BEEED  AREBARERBE LR ZERZ SN
A RAXERERE  REARE AR -

(CESY PR &b ulli i) = FNCik-g)o6- 35 pute)
BEGETR AR -BERZARREY  AEEE
EFFHERT DA ERERENE - T RKE
EHEZIMBARIMEEERES  AFREIS A

AR EERENE AR 26 - BT BRER O ZM
BRAAZEE(BERE) REE () EMIFEBRAR
Rism 2 REE: RGADFFARRZ RETELZ8
THERODBREZAFEE: (DEMERERE
ZAFEERG)BRER EARLESZ BB
1B AEEBENEMEERAERZEGID - 1%
AEFERHERHEERBEMERZARELS
MOBEBRERREEN (WER) -
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the first
time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation
HKFRS 16 Leases

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11, HKAS 12
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle and HKAS 23

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 19 and HKAS 28 and Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle, which are not relevant to the
preparation of the Group’s financial statements, the nature and the impact of
the new and revised HKFRSs are described below:

(a) HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating
Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets
out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under
a single on-balance sheet model to recognise and measure right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities, except for certain recognition
exemptions. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from HKAS 17. Lessors continue to classify leases as either
operating or finance leases using similar principles as in HKAS 17.

22 EBERREZSH

REBEARERE 2 HHBE S REM T T RE
R 2 B -

BB REER BB B FERIEN
FIRBIIA

BB REER HE
F165%

BB EREER FEIEET - RS AEE
EACEHACHFN

EHGHENF 285 REBELARAEIPE
CHEN REER

5 (BRUBRERE FEREES TREH
ZEE)-REBEBHR

BB SR EER EEMISRELREIH

2015 F 2017 4 EREMBRELRE NS -
BT FEEXR BRI ENE LK REE

GATERIE 23RETA
BAEBMBREERFE IR - BB GHERIFE195% M
BFREGENE 28R ZIEFTAN - URBBHBHEE
B2015 4 = 2017 FiEE] - FEEN 0 BREALEY
FAFBRELTETIN AT REETEBH R
SEMZME R BT

(a) BAEMBHREERBE6HNARELGIERNE
THREE - BA(BRMBHREREZES) -
REFIREELHELEREHE BB (KR
REBZEY) -REBESRLEHY - FBR
BEHARBERE]) -RBE2/RTELL
HEZREAZRGZANE - xERH I
BoRTE - 2NERWEREZRE) I B
HARBEEEE -UEERBRANERXA
R NERLGTEEREEENEERE
BETHRRRRI - BB RS ELF16
FARBEABEBEAERFE 7 REAHBAZE
AEREL N o HEASEEEREET B
A7 RBACUNRAFEE D B R ERON
BEEL
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)

(@

(continued)

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective
method with the date of initial application of 1 April 2019. Under this
method, the standard has been applied retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of initial adoption recognised as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained profits at 1 April 2019, and the
comparative information for 2019 was not restated and continued to
be reported under HKAS 17 and related interpretations.

New definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from use of the identified asset and the right to direct the use
of the identified asset. The Group elected to use the transition practical
expedient allowing the standard to be applied only to contracts that
were previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-
Int 4 at the date of initial application. Contracts that were not identified
as leases under HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 were not reassessed.
Therefore, the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16 has been applied
only to contracts entered into or changed on or after 1 April 2019.

22 ENBEREEZEH (8

(@

(&)

AEBERALETBPRMERNE B 53R
EEBIE 165 - WHN2019F 4 A1HERER -
RIBI T - BHE A ER S & RN TER
W22 EEAE 201944 A1 BRB T H)
R TR M2019FMLEBEN Y EESE
BERBERESSTENE 7R REEERESR
o

HENFEE
BIEBBEMEREERFE6 - MELOETH#
FIE —ER IS BA OIS I B 38 1) & 2= 66 R DU ER AR
B AlZABHEpEHE - MEFAE
WEAD S RIE EPEIRERB DR S &
ERETECHJNEENFER  BIRTEFZS
e AEERIEEBBERIITETFEUAG
ZEAEEBREANENERBBERES
BT EAFTREEE(ERGERERE
ZES) REFEIFHENAMAENESL - BRI
BEBASHENZTHRLES(BRHBHRER
BZE8e) REFIFARTARENAHT
RFAEFTE - Bt - BB IBEREERSE
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RZBEINBEE AL o

103




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) | Bf % R R B 5+ (48)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)

(a)

(continued)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as operating
leases

Nature of the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for various items of land, offices, retail
shops, warehouses, factory and motor vehicle. As a lessee, the Group
previously classified leases as either finance leases or operating leases
based on the assessment of whether the lease transferred substantially
all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets to the Group. Under
HKFRS 16, the Group applies a single approach to recognise and
measure right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all leases, except
for an elective exemption for leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less (“short-term leases”) (elected by class of underlying asset).
Instead of recognising rental expenses under operating leases on a
straight-line basis over the lease term commencing from 1 April 2019,
the Group recognises depreciation (and impairment, if any) of the
right-of-use assets and interest accrued on the outstanding lease
liabilities (as finance costs).

Impact on transition

Lease liabilities at T April 2019 were recognised based on the present
value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the
incremental borrowing rate at 1 April 2019. The right-of-use assets for
leases were recognised based on the carrying amount as if the
standard had always been applied, except for the incremental
borrowing rate where the Group applied the incremental borrowing
rate at 1 April 2019.

All these assets were assessed for any impairment based on HKAS 36
on that date. The Group elected to present the right-of-use assets
separately in the statement of financial position. This includes the lease
assets recognised previously under finance lease of HK$1,104,000 that
were reclassified from property, plant and equipment.

22 B HBEXREEZEEHH)
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)

(@

(continued)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as operating
leases (continued)

Impact on transition (continued)

The Group has used the following elective practical expedients when
applying HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019:

. Using hindsight in determining the lease term where the
contract contains options to extend/terminate the lease

. Excluding initial direct costs from the measurement of the
right-of- use asset at the date of initial application when
applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(i)

. Applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with
reasonably similar characteristics when measuring the lease
liabilities at T April 2019

. Relying on the entity’s assessment of whether leases were
onerous by applying HKAS 37 Provision, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets immediately before 1 April 2019 as an
alternative to performing an impairment review

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as finance
lease

The Group did not change the initial carrying amount of recognised
assets and liabilities at the date of initial application for leases
previously classified as finance leases. Accordingly, the carrying
amounts of the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities at T April 2019

were the carrying amounts of the recognised assets and liabilities (i.e.

finance lease payables) measured under HKAS17.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

106

(continued)

(a)

(continued)

Financial impact at 1 April 2019

(a

The impact arising from the adoption of HKFRS 16 as at 1 April 2019

was as follows:

22 B BEXREEZEEHH)

(&)

R2019F 4 1B 2B &

R20196F 4 A1 BIRMBE B R EERIF 1655
IREMT

Increase/(decrease)
Em R
HK$' 000
BET T
Assets BE
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 362,039
Property, plant and equipment (note 14) WE - HE RRE (HEE14) (51,380)
Prepayment, other receivables and other assets TER - Htb R R E M EE (3,283)
Deferred tax assets (note 27) EEFRIEAE (M15E27) 2,345
Total assets HWEE 309,721
Liabilities =F
Lease liabilities HEARE 325,783
Finance lease payables ENmERE (680)
Other payables and accruals Hi e R ERT &R (7,727)
Total liabilities wasE 317,376
Equity =
Retained profits REBF (7,655)
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)
(a)  (continued) (@

The lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 reconciled to the operating lease
commitments as at 31 March 2019 are as follows:

22 ENBEREEZEH (8

(&)

M2019F 4 A1HNEEABFER 2019F 3 A 31
AR ST AEEMBERIDT ¢

HK$'000
BT
Operating lease commitments as at 31 March 2019 20195 3 B 31 A S QAR 355,603
Less: Commitments relating to short-term leases B RS RERFSAEY
and those with a remaining lease term ending 72020 3 A 31 B ek 2 Bl E M A ER&E
on or before 31 March 2020 (535)
355,068
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate MR2019F 4 AR TS EEFE
as at 1 April 2019 4.88%
Discounted operating lease commitments M 2019F 4 A1 B MR & BT L AIE
as at 1 April 2019 325,103
Add: Finance lease liabilities recognised o R2019E 3 ANENEMNRERE
as at 31 March 2019 680
Lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 R2019%F481ANEEER 325,783
(b)  HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income taxes (current and by BB (BB REREZES) -REF2IH
deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the M EHREREESRZERBAB B ERNE
application of HKAS 12 (often referred to as “uncertain tax positions™). RFzTEEN (—RBAE [ THEEREMKR])

The interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of
HKAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to interest
and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments. The
interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an entity considers
uncertain tax treatments separately; (ii) the assumptions an entity makes
about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities; (iii) how
an entity determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax
losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity considers
changes in facts and circumstances. Upon adoption of the interpretation,
the Group considered whether it has any uncertain tax positions arising
from the transfer pricing on its intergroup sales. Based on the Group’s tax
compliance and transfer pricing study, the Group determined that it is
probable that its transfer pricing policy will be accepted by the tax
authorities. Accordingly, the interpretation did not have any impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that have
been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

Definition of a Business'
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform'

Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture®

Insurance Contracts?

Definition of Material

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
E No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable
to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance on the
definition of a business. The amendments clarify that for an integrated set of
activities and assets to be considered a business, it must include, at a
minimum, an input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed to create outputs. The
amendments remove the assessment of whether market participants are
capable of acquiring the business and continue to produce outputs. Instead,
the focus is on whether acquired inputs and acquired substantive processes
together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on goods
or services provided to customers, investment income or other income from
ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance to assess
whether an acquired process is substantive and introduce an optional fair
value concentration test to permit a simplified assessment of whether an
acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 April 2020. Since the
amendments apply prospectively to transactions or other events that occur
on or after the date of first application, the Group will not be affected by
these amendments on the date of transition.

2.3
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 address the effects of
interbank offered rate reform on financial reporting. The amendments
provide temporary reliefs which enable hedge accounting to continue during
the period of uncertainty before the replacement of an existing interest rate
benchmark. In addition, the amendments require companies to provide
additional information to investors about their hedging relationships which
are directly affected by these uncertainties. The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2020. Early application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an inconsistency
between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or
joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that
do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is
recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to
be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of
amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA
in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective date will be determined after
the completion of a broader review of accounting for associates and joint
ventures. However, the amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKAS 1and HKAS 8 provide a new definition of material. The
new definition states that information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements. The amendments clarify that materiality will
depend on the nature or magnitude of information. A misstatement of
information is material if it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions made by the primary users. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments prospectively from 1 April 2020. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

2.3
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair value which
is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by the
Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to
measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed
as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and
liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held equity
interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an
asset or liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of
the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-controlling
interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests in
the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
If the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of
the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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24

(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 March. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to
those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the goodwill
relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on
the relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.4

(continued)

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence
of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would
use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the
financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input

that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a
recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole)
at the end of each reporting period.
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24

(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing
for an asset is required (other than inventories, deferred tax assets and
financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to
the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether
there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of
an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment
loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

(o))

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and
that person

0]
()
(D)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or
of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

M

@i

(i)

(iv)

V)

(vi)

(vi)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity
is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group or to
the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) | 84 74 ¥ 2% [ff 5T (48 )

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of
each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as
follows:

Buildings Over the shorten of the
lease terms and 2% to 5%
3to 7 years

1to 10 years

4 to 10 years

Plant and machinery
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among
the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives
and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year
the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) | Bf % R R B 5+ (48)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at
cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is the
fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment
annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such
intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with
an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life
assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Trademarks with indefinite useful lives are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) | 84 74 ¥ 2% [ 5T (48 )

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 April 2019)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all
leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use
assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms
and the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

50 years
4 t0 10 years
1to 10 years
2 to 3 years

Prepaid land lease payments
Motor vehicle

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Buildings

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end of
the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) | Bf % R R B 5+ (48)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Leases (applicable from 1 April 2019) (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)  Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the lease
at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term.
The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to
be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to
be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for termination
of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to
reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in lease
payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting from a
change in an index or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

(c)  Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its
short-term leases of furniture and fixtures (that is those leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) | 84 74 ¥ 2% [ 5T (48 )
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(continued)

Leases (applicable before 1 April 2019)

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets to the Group, other than legal title, are accounted for as finance leases.
At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised
at the present value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance leases are included in
property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the lease
terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss so as to provide a
constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets
remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of any
incentives received from the lessor are charged to the statement of profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured
at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income, and fair
value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the
financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group’s
business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) | Bf % R R B 5+ (48)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.4

(continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost
or fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the
principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not
SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it
manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business
model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and
measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are held within a business model with the objective of
both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the
trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) | 84 74 ¥ 2% [ff 5T (48 )

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a
group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position) when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in
full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset
or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what
extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of
the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be
required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) for all
debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based
on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or
other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) | Bf % R R B 5+ (48)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has
not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are
provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. When
making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments
are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider
a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by
the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) | 84 74 ¥ 2% [ff 5T (48 )

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages for
measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the simplified
approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or when the Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect
of a significant financing component, the Group applies the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does
not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) | Bf % R R B 5+ (48)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.4

(continued)
Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of
loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, other payables and
accruals, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, lease liabilities and
finance lease payables.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined on the weighted average basis for homogenous items while it is
determined on an actual unit cost basis for certain unique or specific items
and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads, and
where appropriate, subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.4

(continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidation statement of financial position, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term
deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to
use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the future
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in
the discounted present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items
recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current
tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
the income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of goods
or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the amount
of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be entitled in exchange
for transferring the goods or services to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is
highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24

(continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which provides the
customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at the
present value of the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between the
Group and the customer at contract inception. When the contract contains a
financing component which provides the Group with a significant financial
benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For a contract where the period between the
payment by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or services
is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a
significant financing component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(@)  Sale of jewellery products

Revenue from the sale of jewellery products is recognised at the point
in time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the jewellery products.

Some contracts for the sale of jewellery products provide customers
with rights of return. The rights of return give rise to variable
consideration.

O] Rights of return

For contracts which provide a customer with a right to return
the goods within a specified period, the expected value method
is used to estimate the goods that will not be returned because
this method best predicts the amount of variable consideration
to which the Group will be entitled. The requirements in HKFRS
15 on constraining estimates of variable consideration are
applied in order to determine the amount of variable
consideration that can be included in the transaction price. For
goods that are expected to be returned, instead of revenue, a
refund liability is recognised. A right-of-return asset (and the
corresponding adjustment to cost of sales) is also recognised
for the right to recover products from a customer.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4

(continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(@)  Sale of jewellery products (continued)

(i) Customer loyalty programmes

The Group maintains loyalty points programmes within its retail
shops in Hong Kong and the PRC, which allow customers to
accumulate award credits upon purchase of goods in the shops
and joining the programmes. The award credits can then be
redeemed for goods or other gifts, subject to certain terms and
conditions. Under HKFRS 15, the customer loyalty program gives
rise to a separate performance obligation because they provide
a material right to the customer and allocated a portion of the
transaction price to the loyalty credits awarded to customers
based on the relative stand-alone selling price.

(b)  Service income

Service income is recognised over the scheduled period on a straight
line basis because the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Company.

Revenue from other sources

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a payment is
due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group transfers the
related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when
the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related
goods or services to the customer).
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24

(continued)

Right-of-return assets

A right-of-return asset is recognised for the right to recover the goods
expected to be returned by customers. The asset is measured at the former
carrying amount of the goods to be returned, less any expected costs to
recover the goods and any potential decreases in the value of the returned
goods. The Group updates the measurement of the asset for any revisions to
the expected level of returns and any additional decreases in the value of the
returned goods.

Refund liabilities

A refund liability is recognised for the obligation to refund some or all of the
consideration received (or receivable) from a customer and is measured at
the amount the Group ultimately expects it will have to return to the
customer. The Group updates its estimates of refund liabilities (and the
corresponding change in the transaction price) at the end of each reporting
period.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item,
it is recognised as income on a systematic basis in which the periods that the
costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Share-based payments

The Company issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain
employees and suppliers. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby
suppliers render goods or services as consideration for equity instruments
(“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants after 7
November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer
using a binomial valuation model (the “Binomial Model”), further details of
which are given in note 29 to the financial statements.

FESHBERE @)

REEEE
RERAERFAERGRERENEHEFPROZE
me ZAERKTREERANREERKLDE R
ERFEMA AR (BEERRE R 2 EMEEBERD) &
E - AEEBEAETEREETEESRARRENX
Fo AR EREZ SR B EREIMEERD

BHREEREDUMBEER (LAEFEL) /D%
E2HREBLRASESKRARERANTFPREZS
BB - REMEYR  AEEEMERRABE M
RS ERIAEES) -

B 4 A

18 & TR A IR RE - AT A & R AT T
e - BIBUF BN IR A FEERERANR o f# R 6
SHEBEM  AIREREDNRAELERRAAE K
B HER AU -

EOGEEE

AEE RS TEE R E R R L AR S E 0B A
R AREEE (BRES) WBRNMENINR S
A tERE - Mt EERIEHE R R RB AR
TANRE(EREERS])

R2002FNA7HEBEEBETHRELEEZIZHKAE
N2EREENEBNAFEBESE -  AFEBER
SNVRIGEMEANZBER | R cERAETE 7
BEH RIS REMIFE3 -

131




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) | Bf % R R B 5+ (48)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee benefit
expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the
statement of profit or loss for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account
when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of
the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated service
requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting
conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or
performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance
and/or service conditions have not been met, no expense is recognised.
Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions
are treated as vesting irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an
expense is recognised as if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payments,
or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on
the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for the award is
recognised immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or the employee are not
met. However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is
designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share
dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits

Salaries

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, leave passage and the cost to the
Group of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees of the Group. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are
discounted and stated at their present value.

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in the PRC, Malaysia
and Japan are required to participate in central pension schemes operated by
the local municipal government. Contributions are made based on the
requirements of the respective local municipal government. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension schemes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.4

(continued)
Other employee benefits (continued)

Long service payments

The Group’s net obligations in respect of lump sum long service amounts
payable on cessation of employment in certain circumstances under the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance represent the amount of future benefits
that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior
periods. The obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit method
by a qualified actuary, discounted to its present value, and the fair value of
any related plan assets is deducted. The discount rate is the yield of
Exchange Fund Notes at the end of the reporting period that have maturity
dates approximating the terms of the Group’s obligations.

Remeasurements arising from long service payment obligations, comprising
actuarial gains and losses, are recognised immediately in the consolidated
statement of financial position with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained profits through other comprehensive income in the period in which
they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined
benefit liability or asset. The Group recognises the following changes in the
net defined benefit obligation under “cost of sales” and “administrative
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss by function:

. service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs,
gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements

. net interest expense or income
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs
ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate
allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the statement of
financial position, until they have been approved by the shareholders in a
general meeting. When these dividends have been approved by the
shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the
Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant the directors the
authority to declare interim dividends.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company'’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary
item measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the
item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of initial
transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises the non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the
Group determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the
advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries located other than Hong
Kong are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of
a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income relating
to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair
value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on
acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the closing rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could require
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has
made the following judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements:

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group applied the following judgements that significantly affect the
determination of the amount and timing of revenue from contracts with
customers:

Determining the method to estimate variable consideration and assessing the
constraint for the retail of jewellery

Some contracts for the sale of jewellery products provide customers with a
right of return that give rise to variable consideration. In estimating the
variable consideration, the Group is required to exercise judgement to
determine the use of either the expected value method or the most likely
amount method based on which method better predicts the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled.

The Group determined that the expected value method is the appropriate
method to use in estimating the variable consideration for the sale of
jewellery with rights of return, given the large number of customer contracts
that have similar characteristics.

Before including any amount of variable consideration in the transaction
price, the Group considers whether the amount of variable consideration is
constrained. The Group determined that the estimates of variable
consideration are not constrained based on its historical experience, business
forecast and the current economic conditions. In addition, the uncertainty on
the variable consideration will be resolved within a short time frame.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

Variable consideration for returns

The Group estimates variable consideration to be included in the transaction
price for the sale of jewellery products with rights of return.

The Group developed a statistical model for forecasting sales returns. The
model used the historical return data of each product to come up with
expected return percentages. These percentages are applied to determine
the expected value of the variable consideration. Any significant changes in
experience as compared to historical return pattern will impact the expected
return percentages estimated by the Group.

The Group updates its assessment of expected returns semi-annually and the
refund liabilities are adjusted accordingly. Estimates of expected returns are
sensitive to changes in circumstances and the Group’s past experience
regarding returns entitlements may not be representative of customers’
actual returns entitlements in the future. As at 31 March 2020, the amount
recognised as refund liabilities was HK$6,189,000 for the expected returns
(note 23).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various
customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography,
product type, customer type and rating).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical observed
default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit
loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast
economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic products) are expected to
deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number of
defaults in the retail sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At each
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes
in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default rates,
forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount
of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast economic
conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of
economic conditions may also not be representative of a customer’s actual
default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade
receivables is disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements.

Useful lives and depreciation of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation
charges of its property, plant and equipment. These estimates are based on
the historical experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. The Group will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives are less than previously estimated
lives, and will write off or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ
from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result in a change in
depreciable lives and, therefore, depreciation charge in the future periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment testing of property, plant and equipment and right-of
use assets

The Group determines whether property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets are impaired when there are indicators that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying values of
these assets exceed their recoverable amounts, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair
values less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding sales
transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value-
in-use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for all
non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period. Indefinite life
intangible assets are tested for impairment annually and at other times when
such an indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair
value less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding sales
transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value in
use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows.

FESEEE)
ERROLEEEISEIE )
Y BERREREHELTERE

AEERENRETYE BELRRERERREE
ZAREEA TR B EERE - ML FEEZR
EEBE AW E SR (RE A FEER SR EE
EREBEEzREE)  BEFERE A FEEREH
ERETIRBUEEARTRAZSHAEHORN 2
ERGABEEXUBAETENGRHEEE ZELEK
AEtE - SHECRABERN  EEEAMGGRERE
BESRSELEMZAKRASRE  LEBEEW
FREAFEZEFREREBZIE

FHBEERE

FAEERBFFRAGERHIEUNBEERT FHEMR
MENSR - AEERFHz BV EAESFRHERE
PREETRENR - R IEMBEENE T RER
FEREER T RE R ETTRERR - WEESRE
ELELzREEBAETKRESE(REATEE
BHEERAEEGFREEzRSE)  BFERE -
RFEERELERATIRBUEEARTFRIZS
RENRNZHERZAFEEXAIBRETENR L
EEEZRIEKRAGTE - EtERMAEEN 2
BEFRREEEXRSELSNZ RARE SR
8 REBEENITREGIEZSHReREZRE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) | 84 74 ¥ 2% [ff 5T (48 )

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can
be utilised. Significant judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon estimate and the
level of future taxable profits. The carrying value of deferred tax assets
relating to recognised tax losses at 31 March 2020 was HK$11,247,000 (2019:
HK$17,409,000). The amount of unrecognised deferred tax assets relating to
tax losses at 31 March 2020 was HK$77,538,000 (2019: HK$37,278,000).
Further details are contained in note 27 to the financial statements.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and variable
selling expenses. These estimates are based on the current market conditions
and the historical experience of manufacturing and selling products of a
similar nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in customer
taste or competitor actions in response to a significant downturn in the
industry sector. The directors reassess the estimations at the end of each
reporting period.

Customer loyalty programmes

The Group measures the cost of the loyalty award credits by reference to the
fair value of goods and gifts redeemed in the prior years and the probability
of redemption is estimated by the directors based on past experience. Actual
results may differ from the estimation.

Income tax

Significant judgements on the future tax treatment of certain transactions are
required in determining income tax provisions. The Group carefully evaluates
tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are recorded accordingly.
The tax treatment of such transactions is reconsidered periodically to take
into account all changes in circumstances and tax legislation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Equity-settled share option expenses

The fair value of the share options granted to certain directors, employees
and service providers determined at the date of grant of the respective share
options is expensed over the vesting period, with a corresponding adjustment
to the Group’s share option reserve. In assessing the fair value of the share
options, the Binomial Model was used. The Binomial Model is one of the
generally accepted methodologies used to calculate the fair value of the
share options. The Binomial Model requires the input of subjective
assumptions, including the expected dividend yield and expected life of
options. Any changes in these assumptions can significantly affect the
estimate of the fair value of the share options.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a lease, and
therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure lease
liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to
borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to
obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would
have to pay”, which requires estimation when no observable rates are
available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing
transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and
conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s
functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs
(such as market interest rates) when available and is required to make certain
entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).

Deferred tax liability

Deferred tax liability relating to withholding tax of undistributed earnings of
certain subsidiaries established in the PRC is provided to the extent that it is
probable that distribution is made according to the relevant tax rules enacted
in the relevant jurisdiction, and is subject to management’s judgement on the
timing and level of such distribution. Such judgement is made with reference
to the Group’s business plan and cash flow requirements for the holding
companies of the subsidiaries. The carrying amount of deferred tax liability
provided relating to such withholding tax amounted to HK$12,588,000 as at
31 March 2020 (2019: HK$13,320,000). Further details are contained in note
27 to the financial statements.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based
on business nature and has three reportable operating segments as follows:

(@)  Retail Business (including Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland China and
Malaysia);

(b)  Wholesale Business; and
(c)  Other Businesses.

Retail Business includes direct retail sales of jewellery products to end
consumers through the physical outlets carrying the trademark of
TSL | # 5w B . It also includes the service fee income received from the
provision of retail management services to other retailers.

Wholesale Business includes wholesale sales of jewellery products to
customers, including franchisees.

Other Businesses includes E-business and others.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment profit/(loss), which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss)
before tax. The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured consistently
with the Group’s profit/(loss) before tax except that unallocated expenses,
non-lease-related finance costs and income tax expense are excluded from
such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets and tax recoverable as these
assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude gold loans, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, tax payable, deferred tax liabilities, finance lease payables and
employee benefit obligations as these liabilities are managed on a group
basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the selling
prices used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing market
prices.
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4,
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Year ended 31 March 2020

BZE2020F3H31H

ILEE
Segment revenue: DEEERE .
Sales to external customers HERE TINRER
Other revenue HUA
Segment results D ERELE
Reconciliation: gD -
Unallocated expenses Aol
Finance costs (other than BigER(TeE

interest on lease liabilities)
Income tax expense

HEBENFE)
P8

2,079,576
49,915

2,129,491
(75,736)

Loss for the year REEER
Segment assets: DEEE : 2,476,383
Reconciliation: FED -
Deferred tax assets RERIBEE
Tax recoverable AT ERHIE
Total assets wEE
Segment liabilities: PHEE: (662,995)
Reconciliation: E
Interest-bearing bank and FTERITREMER
other borrowings
Tax payable FERBIIR
Deferred tax liabilities EERIE A
Employee benefit obligations & B &%
Total liabilities waE
Other segment information:  H#ir 5 &R :
Depreciation of property, ME - BELRETE
plant and equipment 54,036
Depreciation of right-of-use FRELEENE
assets 185,261
Capital expenditure* BERFAL 65,570
Disposal of fixed assets ZERTEE (305)
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment

and prepaid land lease.

ReEFHER ()

Retail Business Wholesale Business  Other Businesses Total
SEEK
HK$’000 B ¥ T 7t

REBER Hth3 5% gt

HK$’000 B¥ T+t HK$000E¥TF T HK$'000 BT T

592,454 191,882 2,863,912
= = 49,915

592,454 191,882 2,913,827
105,704 13,825 43,793

(55,098)

(48,723)
(29,726)

(89,754)
103,548 2,653,601

40,526
14,788

2,708,915

(104,109) (7,090) (774,194)

(1,013,761)
(3,355)
(15,879)
(1,639)

(1,808,828)

60,613

198,171
98,594
(464)
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, RESWER B
Retail Business Wholesale Business Other Businesses Total
Year ended 31 March 2019 BZE2019%43A31R TEER HEEH Hofth 275 a5t
LFE HK$'000B# T HK$000BHETFIT HK$000B#TF L HK$000 BT
Segment revenue: DL
Sales to external customers HERE TINEEF 3,031,899 821,038 156,008 4,008,945
Other revenue HnA 55,975 - - 55,975
3,087,874 821,038 156,008 4,064,920

Segment results DEPHELE 94,703 147,813 22,905 265,421
Reconciliation: JEED -
Unallocated expenses KOBXIH (115,619)
Finance costs &R (50,360)
Income tax expense FriSHt (45,275)
Profit for the year REZRF 54,167
Segment assets: DEWEE - 2,229,944 90,584 69,573 2,390,101
Reconciliation: SHED
Deferred tax assets RIETRIBEE 49,275
Tax recoverable A E IR 17,771
Total assets BEE 2,457,147
Segment liabilities: PHEE (458,905) (83,034) (4,912) (546,851)
Reconciliation: JARD -
Interest-bearing bank and FTERITREMER

other borrowings (786,984)
Tax payable JERTFLIE (16,550)
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEA & a7,17)
Finance lease payables ENmERE (680)
Employee benefit obligations & B f&FI& 5 (2,655)
Total liabilities waeE (1,371,437)
Other segment information: Hibp &SR :
Depreciation of property, ME - BELRRENE

plant and equipment 55,379 1,460 1,264 58,103
Capital expenditure* VN 68,126 - 37,725 105,851
Disposal of fixed assets BEETERE (1394) - (124) (1,518)

- Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment. - BEARMYBIERNEDE  BEREE -
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4., RBEIIERE)
(a) Geographical information (@) H@EEFR
Revenue from external customers I REFEHXEE

Hong Kong and Macau BB RIBEMN
Mainland China PR
Other countries HAuBIR

The revenue information above is based on the locations of the
customers.

Non-current assets

Hong Kong and Macau BB RIBEMN
Mainland China PRI
Other countries HABIR

The non-current asset information above is based on the locations of
the assets and excludes rental deposits and deferred tax assets.

(b) Information about major customers (b)

The turnover from the Group’s largest customer amounted to less than
10% of the Group’s total turnover for the years.
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2020

2020 F

HK$’000 7 ¥ T 7t
847,988
1,992,246

73,593

2,913,827

2019
20194
HK$'000 B F 7t

1,492,030
2,511,694
61,196

4,064,920

PEREERNREFPAAEEES -

HhBEE

2020
2020 F
HK$°000 & # T 7T

285,206
120,770
12,715

418,691

2019
20194
HK$' 0008 # T 7T

138,237
51,027
3,095

192,359

FRERBEEEMNIREERTHMEES
WA BEEERE MEERIBEE

ERIEEPZEHN

RAFERARFE  RERNKESAEFPZ
BEBEAREBEEHTDRI0%
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5. TURNOVER 5. EXEH
An analysis of turnover is as follows: BEBEIOWMT

2020 2019
2020 & 2019 4F
HK$’000 & ¥ T 7T HK$'000 B8 F 7t

Revenue from contracts with customers KEARXFAEAZ Was
Sales of jewellery products SHERE HED 2,863,912 4,008,945
Service income BRAUA 49,915 55,975
2,913,827 4,064,920

Revenue from contracts with customers

KEEPAK WS

(i) Disaggregated revenue information (i) HBEBUmEF
Retail Business Wholesale Business  Other Businesses Total
HZE20205 ZEXER B 7 HAibh 2 st
Year ended 31 March 2020 SAZBALEE HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Segments 2B BETT B¥TT BT BETT
Type of goods or services EmRsER
Sales of jewellery products IHERE M 2,079,576 592,454 191,882 2,863,912
Service income BRE WA 49,915 = = 49,915
Total revenue from contracts  RERFPA#XZ
with customers Wzs 2,129,491 592,454 191,882 2,913,827
Geographical markets thE S
Hong Kong and Macau BB RIBM 828,470 - 19,518 847,988
Mainland China Bl 1,228,902 592,454 170,890 1,992,246
Other countries iETES 72,119 - 1,474 73,593
Total revenue from contracts  RERFPA#IZ
with customers &= 2,129,491 592,454 191,882 2,913,827
Timing of revenue recognition Y & 7 52 &5
Goods transferred at a point & FEEE
in time 2,079,576 592,454 191,882 2,863,912
Services transferred RFERE s —E
over time A A 49,915 49,915
Total revenue from contracts  RETBFAXZ
with customers W zs 2,129,491 592,454 191,882 2,913,827
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5.

148

TURNOVER (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

0]

Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

5. EX#FE®

KEBFEH W (#)
() PEKZRER (B

Retail Business  Wholesale Business Other Businesses Total
BZE2019F TEER BB HMER wBEr
Year ended 31 March 2019 3A3BLEE HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Segments 2E BT T BT T BT T BB T T
Type of goods or services EmSREER
Sales of jewellery products HEREEH 3,031,899 821,038 156,008 4,008,945
Service income I8 TON 55,975 - - 55,975
Total revenue from contracts  RERPA#XZ
with customers g &5 3,087,874 821,038 156,008 4,064,920
Geographical markets HEMS
Hong Kong and Macau BB MR 1,482,671 - 9,359 1,492,030
Mainland China PR A 1,544,747 821,038 145,909 2,511,694
Other countries HER 60,456 - 740 61196
Total revenue from contracts  REBRP&EH 2
with customers g 3,087,874 821,038 156,008 4,064,920
Timing of revenue recognition U752
Goods transferred at a point A& REEE
in time 3,031,899 821,038 156,008 4,008,945
Services transferred over time IR #E:E 2 —&
A5 55,975 - - 55,975
Total revenue from contracts  REXPEXZ
with customers g 3,087,874 821,038 156,008 4,064,920
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TURNOVER (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

0]

(i)

Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in the
current reporting period that were included in the contact liabilities at
the beginning of the reporting period and recognised from
performance obligations satisfied in previous periods:

v

EEREE)
REEFAEH W @)

(i)

Revenue recognised that was included

in contract liabilities at the beginning BRI
of the reporting period:
Sale of jewellery products HEKREEH

RBRERVBINAGDEEZ

Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is summarised
below:

Sale of jewellery products

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the goods and
payment is mainly on cash and credit card settlement. Some contracts
provide customers with a right of return which gives rise to variable
consideration subject to constraint.

Service income

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are
rendered and short-term advances are normally required before
rendering the services. Service contracts are for periods of one year or
less, or are billed based on the time incurred. All the performance
obligations are expected to be recognised within one year.

(i)

ZEUZEEH (&)
TRETRAREREANERER RS HNR
JIAGHBEZERESE  ARSBERRET
RZEHEERRBZ WG

2020 2019
2020 & 2019 £

HK$°000 & % F 7t HK$'000 ¥+t
18,044

BYEME
REEEOBEZBRERBMT -

HEREE A

BHEER RN EmEFER - HEKAEEEN
RERERAREE - SN ANAREPRHERE
B RBEEZEORATERE -

IRIFHA

RHOEERREREAMERX - RERHRBEA
—RFBERHEHEAN - RBERZFHR—
FROR—F  JIRBFERZE - 2HEL
BERMAIR —FAHER -
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6. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS/(LOSSES), NET 6. HihARWE (FHE) 358
2020 2019
2020 £ 2019 4
HK$000 &% T T HK$'000 B # T 7T
Interest income F B U A 3,849 3,808
Foreign exchange differences, net FE R AR (6,893) (6,566)
Government grants* DR 11,150 437
Fair value loss on gold loans designated as  #8F AR AFEBEIERE &S
at fair value through profit or loss HEMNRATFEEFEE = (2,509)
Gain on sales of scrap gold SHEFESBERIRA 8,499 484
Repair service income HIEWA 821 1,041
Others Hitb 20,092 3,033
37,518 (272)
- This represents subsidies from municipal governments in Mainland China. * It T 36 FR P B Ot T BT R AR O M RS o X SRR
There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these KA NE R AT (A R BT 2 16 -
subsidies.
7. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BB (BE) BF
The Group’s (loss)/profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): REEZBREA(BIE) /BREMERGGEA) ¢
2020 2019
2020 & 2019 4
HK$’000 &% T 5t HK$'000 & ¥ F 7T
Cost of goods sold* SHERAR " 1,777,930 2,450,509
Reversal of provision for impairment of BELBRGFESASRFE  F5E
inventories, net (12,499) (4,951)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BB RBETE (MiiE14)
equipment (note 14) 60,613 58,103
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE (:E15@)
(note 15(a)) 198,171 -
Minimum lease payments in respect of CERE RERENR
operating leases** 217,291
Lease payments not included in the rEHEABERTERIETACEE
measurement of lease liabilities (note 15(c)) 338 (Ft:E15(c)) 3,321 -
Auditor’s remuneration I EREM B & 2,940 2,970
Employee benefit expense (including BEEBMAZ (BREEEME
directors’ remuneration (note 9)): (FF3£9)) =
Wages, salaries and other benefits TE  FHekHEMmER 539,351 630,839
Pension scheme contributions*** VATE BEFGR IRET B R 7,585 8,486
Employee benefit obligations (note 26) BRERFAEM (ME26) 127 339
547,063 639,664
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7. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 7.

The Group’s (loss)/profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
(continued)

BB (B51R) BRI (@)
AEE BB (EE), BHNEME, (A © (&)

2020 2019
2020 2019 4
HK$’000 7% ¥ F 5t HK$'000 B8 F 7T
Impairment of property, W - BB R ERE (FEE14)
plant and equipment (note 14) 3,447 -
Impairment of right-of-use-assets fFAREEREMF150)
(note 15(a)) 13,011 =
Impairment of trade receivables, FEWERFORE - SF 8 (KisE19)
net (note 19) 1,116 12,654
Fair value loss on gold loans designated BEAEATEEIICAEBEZES
at fair value through profit or loss**** HEHN A FEBEFERE 2,509
Loss on disposal of items of property, Z2EBYE  BELLEER ZEBE
plant and equipment 1,364

* Cost of goods sold includes HK$95,451,000 (2019: HK$103,198,000) relating :

*k

Hkkk

to employee benefit expense, depreciation on property, plant and
equipment, and depreciation on right-of-use assets (2019: operating lease
payments), which are also included in the respective total amounts
disclosed separately above under each of these types of expenses.

This included contingent rental in relation to shopping malls of
HK$1,628,000 while the commission payables in relation to sales counters
in department stores were not included for the year ended 31 March 2019.

At 31 March 2020, there were no forfeited contributions available to the
Group to reduce its contributions to pension schemes in future years (31
March 2019: Nil).

This was included in “Other income and gains/(losses), net” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. The purpose of the above gold
loans entered into by the Group was to manage the Group’s gold price
exposure. Such loans did not meet the criteria for hedge accounting.

wok

ko

$H5 6 B AN AR B IE A 808 15 95,451,000 7T (2019 4F -

75 1103,198,000 T) WIEEBFIFAX - 1% - BE
RENERERREENE(Q09F  KEHE

BERH) BESENRES IR AL LAY EEHEE

B -

HE209F3AJNBILFE  BEZNTESZHN

RIE RBEE1628000T  BETRELINFHE

BEEBNEEARINAS -

M2020F 3 A31H » A% BB KR FRAT

BARFERRKGTEIMEFK(2019F3 /218 &) -

mAEBEERLETHMBRARYE (BE)  F8E]
FEESEE LUESHESHEERAEEZ
HeERAR - ZFHERSHE AT LTS
B2 2 et -
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8. FINANCE COSTS 8.
An analysis of finance costs is as follows:
Interest on bank loans, overdrafts RITER B REMER
and other loans B A2
Interest on finance leases BEHENF B
Interest on gold loans HeHEENFS
Interest on lease liabilities (note 15(b)) HEaENF L (FiFE150))
Other charges HE
9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION 9.

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules,

section 383(1)(a), (b), (¢) and () of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

Fees e

Other emoluments: E AN -
Salaries and allowances e KRR
Performance related bonuses MRIFARME 2 IELL

Pension scheme contributions VETE HFGRIRET B R
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B8 A
MBEAZAMMT :

2020
2020 F
HK$’000 &% T 5T

43,332

14,625
5,391

63,348

EEMe

2019
2019 4F
HK$'000 ¥ T 7T

38,648
57
1,034

10,621

50,360

BELEHHRE - BB RBEPDE 3830 ~ ()~ (©)
ROBARAR(REEENRER) RABIFE 28 - K

FEZEEHMeRENT :

2020
2020 £
HK$’000 &% T 5t

864

7,435

36

2019
2019 £
HK$ 000 B # T 7T

720

8,559
3,240
36

11,835

12,555
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION 9. EEME
(continued)
Included in the directors’ remuneration were fees of HK$648,000 (2019: EEMEBRENFASINMTFBELIFNTES LIEHTT
HK$540,000) and HK$216,000 (2019: HK$180,000) paid to independent non- FEENMEE DR ABE6480007T (20194 & & #&
executive directors and a non-executive director respectively during the year. 540,0007T) & ##216,0007T (2019 : 7##£180,0007T) °
Salaries Performance Pension
and related scheme
Fees allowances bonuses contributions Total
BRI EEMR
Hwe HeRER HEZEA  BAGHEIAR wma
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°’000
BET T BET T BET T BET T BT T
Year ended 31 March HZ2020F3H31H
2020 IHEE
Executive directors: HITES:
Yau On Yee, Annie! %!
Ng Yi Kum, Estella mE=E

Non-executive directors: JEHITESE :

Huang Erwin Steve EEK

Chow Chee Wai, B AR
Christopher*

Chui Chi Yun, Robert* B

Chan Yue Kwong, PR S *
Michael*
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION 9. EEME£
(continued)
Salaries Performance Pension
and related scheme
Fees allowances bonuses contributions Total
HB15RIR EERN
e e MR M2 RREHEHER Bz
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETIT BETIT BETIT BT T BT T
Year ended 31 March HZ2019F3H31H
2019 LEFE
Executive directors: HITES
Yau On Yee, Annie! P - 4,525 1,881 18 6,424
Ng Yi Kum, Estella hE=E - 4,034 1,359 18 5,41
- 8,559 3,240 36 11,835
Non-executive directors: FEHITEDSE :
Huang Erwin Steve EHEK 180 - - - 180
Chow Chee Wai, AaE"
Christopher* 180 - - - 180
Chui Chi Yun, Robert* B 180 - - - 180
Chan Yue Kwong, PR A S *
Michael* 180 - - - 180
720 - - - 720
720 8,559 3,240 36 12,555
* Independent non-executive directors * BN IEHITES
! Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie is also the chief executive officer of the Group. ! BLEL T IREANEBENITRAEE -
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non-executive FRNWEEME S EN T IBLIEHNTTES (20194 -
directors during the year (2019: Nil). fm) -
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive FRAEFUETVEMRESRERETANHNENZ
any remuneration during the year (2019: Nil). PE(20194F « 4) -
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10. ZEGREFMES
The five highest paid employees during the year included two directors (2019: FRALEEREESFTMEE R2IE24(2019F : 24)
two), details of whose remuneration are set out in note 9 above. Details of EF HFAMSERSEN ElHE - KFEHEKS
the remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2019; three) non- FZQOVF 3R ) e TNEEREEFAMNEER
director, highest paid employees are as follows: s
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$’000 &% F 1t HK$'000 B Tt
Salaries and allowances e R, 4,456 7,675
Performance related bonuses HRIBIE/ 2 AL - 2,247
Pension scheme contributions A TE HERURIRET B HE R 36 159
10,081
The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose remuneration fell MENTFUTER S HMIEESEE 2 AHW
within the following bands is as follows: T
2020 2019
2020 2019
Number of employees Number of employees
EE A BB AH
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 75 1#51,000,001 7T &2 71,500,000 7T -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 751,500,001 T2 # 2,000,000 7T -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 752,000,001 7T £ 74 2,500,000 7T -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 7B 2,500,001 T E A # 3,000,000 7T 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 7B 2,000,001 T EB ¥ 3,500,000 7T 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 781 3,500,001 70 278 # 4,000,000 7T -
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 A5 4,000,001 T2 % 4,500,000 7T 1
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 7 4,500,001 7T 2 8% 5,000,000 7T -
3
No emolument was paid by the Group to any of the top five highest paid FRNAEERMEAATFNIERa T MEE NS
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as (2019 : &) » EABBHIMAREIMAREFZE 2
compensation for loss of office during the year (2019: Nil). s - sSESBEREE -
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1.

156

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) on

the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes

on profits assessable in places other than Hong Kong have been calculated at

the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Current — Hong Kong
Charge for the year
Overprovision in prior years
Current — Other than Hong Kong
Charge for the years
Underprovision in prior years
Deferred (note 27)

KE — FE
FABIEA
BEFEBERE

AH — FAB A
FABIEA
BEFERBTR

T (P EE27)

A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable to profit/(loss) before
tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the Company and the
majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective

tax rate is as follows:

(Loss)/profit before tax

Tax at the statutory rates
Lower tax rates enacted by local authority
Expenses not deductible for tax
Income not subject to tax
Tax losses utilised from previous periods
Tax losses and temporary differences
not recognised
Adjustments in respect of current tax of
previous periods

BRI AT (B51R), BT

BEERE
B 2 SRR R
TR 2 2
BB Z WA

158 FR AL B 2 B TR B 1B
AERRABEREHER

FhUATE HAR) 2 BIRVE AR HA T8 2

Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate of
49.5% (2019: 45.5%)

R B 495% BB R

(20194 : 455%) & 2 Hi1E

FrEHE A

EBFERIBEBEAEERERES 2B ERRE
F - 4258 A B 2 16.5% (2019 4F : 16.5%) 51 & - £E®
BB E 7 ERT AT ARt M E B R
FTERIE -

2020 2019

2020 £ 20194

HK$’000 &% T T HK$'000 B T 7T
4,728 6,673

(582) (60)

15,938 30,359

59 18

9,583 8,285

29,726 45275

BARBAREIENBRARMAEEERE ZEER KR
EWEANRRAERN (BB BB ERMT

2020 2019
2020 2019 4F
HK$’000 & ¥ F T HK$'000 78 # F 7T
(60,028) 99,442
(15,695) 23,984
(1,466) -
7,169 10,610
() (4,312)
= (86)
40,260 15,121
(523) (42)
29,726 45275
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DIVIDENDS

12.

Interim dividend declared and paid*
(2019/20: Nil)
(2018/19: HK$0.048 per ordinary share)

(2019/20 : ##)
(2018/19 : G L BB
0.0487T)
BB R 2 R BB
(2018/19 : AR E AR HE
0.0567T)

Final dividend declared and paid**
(2018/19: HK$0.056 per ordinary share)

BB Rk 2 5 — R B S

*

The Board did not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year.

* The 2018/19 interim dividend declared on 20 November 2018 amounted to
HK$11,902,000, of which HK$1,102,000 was satisfied in the form of scrip
shares. The dividend was paid on 7 January 2019.

o The 2018/19 final dividend approved on 11 September 2019 amounted to
HK$13,919,000, of which HK$1,007,000 was satisfied in the form of scrip
shares. The dividend was paid on 17 October 2019.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic (loss)/earnings per share amount is based on the
loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company of HK$89,670,000
(2019: profit attributable to owners of the Company: HK$54,161,000), and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 248,837,561 (2019:
247,871,246) in issue during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the
years ended 31 March 2020.

No diluted earnings per share amounts have been presented for the year
ended 31 March 2019 as the impact of the share options outstanding had no
diluting effect on the basic earnings per share amounts presented.

13.

RE
2020 2019
2020 £ 2019 4F
HK$’000 /&% F 7t HK$'000 B8 F 7T
11,902
13,919
25,821

EESTEZTRAFERS -

- 2018 F 11 A 20 A E IR % 2 2018/19 1 HARR B 48
B8 A7 1611,902,000 7T+ E A 1,102,000 7T 2 fR
BURBB’RMAREHIRT o ILAR B B R 201941
A78iRf -

" 20199 ANHE 4% 2 2018/19 K HAfk B 4858 &
75113,919,000 7T ¢+ H A A 1,007,000 78 2 BB A
REBRHD A XFEEIRS IR EE R 2019410 A
17 BIRAS ©

FARBEEABREER (BB B

BREAXN(BE) BFSBIRANFERABEESA
FE1H B 1878 % 89,670,000 7T (20194 + AR &EHHE A
FE(L B F| A1 54161000 7T) RFABBITEBR 2
hn#E I 19 §2 248,837,561 8% (2019 4F : 247,871,246 % )
FTHE o

HZE202053ABIEFE AEBERBAEE Y
BEITE®R -

AR ARERITHRERESNEREARF S EES
WIE . HMEE209F3A3IHILFERELHE TR E
SERFEIE -
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 4. Y% BERRE
Furniture,
Land and Plant and fixtures and Motor
buildings machinery equipment vehicles Total
- #£8
THREF RERBMSE R&E RE Mz
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BET T BET T BET T BT T
As at 31 March 2020 A2020F3A31H
At 1 April 2019 (restated): M2019F 4 B18 (FF)) :
Cost B4 34,009 17,037 536,693 6,885 594,624
Accumulated depreciation BN i (6,496) (15,310) (436,576) (5,779) (464,161)
Net carrying amount FREVFE 27,513 1,727 100,117 1,106 130,463
At 31 March 2019, net of M2019F3 AR -
accumulated depreciation Nk 21 E 77,789 1,727 100,117 2,210 181,843
Effect of adoption of RNBEBMEREER
HKFRS 16 FI6HHTE (50,276) = = (1,104) (51,380)
At 1 April 2019 (restated) M2019F 4 518 (F7)) 27,513 1,727 100,117 1,106 130,463
Additions nE 2,692 65,840 - 68,532
Disposals FE (&%) (419) (12) (464)
Depreciation provided FRFTERE
during the year (1,358) (57,659) (819) (60,613)
Impairment during the year — FRRIE = (3,447) = (3,447)
Exchange realignment M 34, 38 2 (¢1:)) (2,270) (16) (2,314)
At 31 March 2020, net of MR2020F 3 A 31H -
accumulated depreciation MR R E 3,000 102,162 259 132,157
At 31 March 2020: M2020F3 A318 :
Cost BN 18,894 540,336 6,563 599,802
Accumulated depreciation REtE (15,894) (438,174) (6,304) (467,645)
Net carrying amount ARERE 3,000 102,162 259 kYA LY
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14. Y% BERSZE @

Furniture,
Land and Plant and fixtures and Motor
buildings machinery equipment vehicles Total
R BB
THREF  HE RS B AE “aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETFT BETFT ok BB BETFT
As at 31 March 2019 A2019F3H831H
As at 1 April 2018: R2018F 4818 :
Cost AR 95,188 16,659 547,266 8,953 668,066
Accumulated depreciation 23T E (45,289) (14,910) (462,302) (5,448) (527,949)
Net carrying amount BRMFE 49,899 1,749 84,964 3,505 14017
At 1 April 2018, net of R2018F 4418 -
accumulated depreciation il Saiin o 49,899 1,749 84,964 3,505 14017
Additions = 30,417 1,239 74,195 - 105,851
Disposals #2E - (63) (1,455) - (1,518)
Depreciation provided FRFTERE
during the year (2,527) (1,144) (53,182) (1,250) (58,103)
Exchange realignment T 5 58 2 - (54) (4,405) (45) (4,504)
At 31 March 2019, net of MR2019F3 318 -
accumulated depreciation MR Rt e 77,789 1727 100,117 2,210 181,843
At 31 March 2019: MR2019F 3 A318 :
Cost B 125,605 17,037 536,693 8,848 688,183
Accumulated depreciation BEtiTE (47,816) (15,310) (436,576) (6,638) (506,340)
Net carrying amount BREVFE 77,789 1,727 100,117 2,210 181,843

At 31 March 2019, the carrying amount of motor vehicles held under finance
leases of the Group was HK$1,104,000.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group’s land and buildings in Hong
Kong were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group (note

32(a)).

At the end of the reporting period, the premises permits in respect of the
property interests held under long term leases in Mainland China have not
been issued by the relevant PRC government authority. The net carrying
amount of the properties was HK$2 (31 March 2019: HK$2) at the end of the

reporting period.

R209F3ANANRMERERF 2 AEMNEREEY
1,104,000 7T ©
REHER  AEESETEFEERMURSAEES
FRITRVEEE (71 32@) °

REER - PEAMBBEBRAR P AR R EEES
B AN EERELEEMAER - AEENZS
YMERFHEANREFERERE2T(2019F3H31A
BEE2TT) ©
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15. LEASES 15. #HE
The Group as a lessee NEBEEREBEA
The Group has lease contracts for various items of land, offices, retail shops, REEBHAETNEEN T  PAE TEEH -
warehouses, factory and motor vehicle used in its operations. Lump sum BE MENMISENTHEASHX - CI=AIEL — RN
payments were made upfront to acquire the leased land from the owners TAMETWERE +ib - HEASOF » MIBEZS
with lease periods of 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be made under THAEMNER  BTeRESNEMNKE - HE
the terms of this land lease. Leases of buildings generally have lease terms FHHEBBRENTIE5F - —RiMs  A5ETAMA
between Tand 5 years. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and KEBUIIATEERDHETEEELEE - ETHEAY
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group. There are several lease BEnBHERE  FHFEHIWT
contracts that include variable lease payments, which are further discussed
below.

(a) FAELE

(a) Right-of-use assets
FRASEFHAREENEEERESNT ¢

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and the
movements during the year are as follows:

Furniture,
Prepaid land fixtures and Motor

lease payment Buildings equipment Vehicles Total

FEfT B £EB
HERE BgF k& RE FER ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T
As at 1 April 2019 R2019F 4 A18 50,276 310,183 476 1,04 362,039
Additions NE 30,062 68,718 - - 98,780
Modification 1B - 34,279 - - 34,279
Depreciation (note 7) e (MsE7) (2,038) (195,383) (259) (491 (198,171
Impairment (note 7) B (FIEET7) - (13,01 - - (13,011
Exchange realignment P H A% 4 (3.617) - - (3,613)
As at 31 March 2020 H2020F 3 A 31H 78,304 201,169 217 613 280,303
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15. LEASES (continued) 15. HE@®
The Group as a lessee (continued) REBEAEBA ()
(b) Lease liabilities (b)) HEEE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during the FREEEENFRABEREHNT :

year are as follows:

2020 2019
2020 2019 F
Lease Finance
liabilities lease payables
HEaE ENRERE
HK$’000 & ¥ T 7T HK$000 B F 7t
Carrying amount at 1 April R4 B1BREREEE 325,783 1,323
New leases WHE 68,718 -
Modification &k 33,608 -
Accretion of interest recognised during 45 2 HER F 238 18 (55 8)
the year (note 8) 14,625 57
Payments (NN (199,633) (700)
Exchange realignment IE K% (3,869) -
Carrying amount at 31 March R3IAINEMEREE 239,232 680
Analysed into: DA
Current portion MENEL 155,162 680
Non-current portion SERENES 84,070 -
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities (2019: finance lease payables) HEBEQOIF : ENBMERE)MEIHE Y
is disclosed in note 37 to the financial statements. MR E IS REM 37 IRE -
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15. LEASES (continued) 15. HE@®)
The Group as a lessee (continued) REBVELAEEAE)
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as (c) REZETERNHEEMRBZRENT
follows:
2020
2020
HK$’000 & ¥ F
Interest on lease liabilities (note 8) HEaEF S (MEs) 14,625
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets (note 7) FRAREEERE (M7 198,171
Expense relating to short-term leases and other leases  Hi%G HAFE & & 64 T HHEIAR 20203 A 31H
with remaining lease terms ended on or before Sz AE MmN EMmAEEBENHAYS
31 March 2020 (included in selling and (FrASHE R HER) (HE7)
distribution expenses) (note 7) 1,606
Variable lease payments not included in the Rt AHEABTENTSEHEERE
measurement of lease liabilities (included in selling GtASEE RS HEEBR) * (HE7)
and distribution expenses)* (note 7) 1,715
Total amount recognised in profit or loss PE S R ERMRIEE R 216,117
* The Group leased a number of retail shops which contain variable " AEEHEZEATEEHNEN  Z5HE
payments terms that are based on the Group’s turnover generated BEUAEEBRTEERELENEEEA
from the retail shops. There are also minimum monthly base rental EMAo EHETEGER - ZSHENKRE
arrangements for these leases. =EFEERBSTH -
(d) The total cash outflow for leases are disclosed in note 31(c) to the (d) EREEAMNBASTHAENREYBREN
financial statements. 31O B ©
16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. BEEE
The balance represents the Group’s trademarks which are assessed as having ZHEEASBEZER  c ARAKBE R URER I
indefinite useful lives because the Group is able to renew the legal right of BEARATERBEELFAE T AEERE
the trademarks at insignificant cost indefinitely. FFHR -
17. OTHER ASSET 17. HthEE
Other asset represents the cost of membership for a seat at The Chinese Gold HEMEERSREEISSENS « RN ER
and Silver Exchange Society which is stated at cost less any impairment BIBKRFIER -
losses.
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INVENTORIES

18. F&

Raw materials R# %
Work in progress Paa-
Finished goods 2URN Gh
TRADE RECEIVABLES 19. FEW
Trade receivables FEU AR K
Impairment BB

The Group’s retail sales are normally made on a cash basis. Credit card
receivables from financial institutions in respect of retail sales are aged within
one month. Apart from retail customers, the Group allows an average credit
period from 30 to 90 days for other customers. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade receivables relate to a
large number of diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of
credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are
non-interest-bearing in general.

2020
2020
HK$’000 7% # T 7t
95,531
44,162
1,314,062
1,453,755
R

2020
2020 £
HK$’000 & # T 7T

91,105

(13,322)
77,783

2019
20194
HK$ 000 B8 T 7T

155,599
57,393
1,223,267

1,436,259

2019
20194
HK$'000 & ¥ T 7T

160,920
(12,804)

148,116

N BREERFIN ARBEREMFESEHFHI0E
0 R Z BRBRHA o ARS8 ) SRE 22 Bl R UL 1 2 FE UL BR
PTUREFEERR - BRASRBEREENELE
Bl - BN AKENEUEFLREREDBZEP &
WEEBRNEPHEERR o A& E E L HEWERR
AT AR R ST M IR EE G - FBUR
FER—REIREE -
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19.

164

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

19.

Within 1 month MAAR

1to 2 months 1ZE22@AR
2 to 3 months 2Z23@AW
Over 3 months HBiE3{E A
Total trade receivables 48 e AR 3

The movements in loss allowance for impairment of trade receivables are as
follows:

At beginning of year RE]

Impairment losses, net (note 7) RERE - FEE(HE7)
Exchange realignment g

At end of year RER

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision
matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates are based on
days past due for groupings of various customer segments with similar loss
patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type, customer type and
rating, and coverage by letters of credit or other forms of credit insurance).
The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of
money and reasonable and supportable information that is available at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due
for more than one year and are not subject to enforcement activity.

EWERR (&)

RIS R - BERER ORI TR B E R AR A
BB ERATMT :

2020 2019
2020 & 2019 4
HK$°000 &% F 7t HK$'000 B ¥ F 7T

59,397 139,414
9,680 2,827
6,879 1,298
1,827 4,577

77,783 148,116

FEYERF R EERESMT

2020 2019
2020 £ 2019 £
HK$’000 &% T T HK$ 000 B T 7T

12,804 -
1,116 12,654
(598) 150

13,322 12,804

REBRERE B HERBBEREETRHEDIN - U
SAEFEHEEEE - BEXDERABRANELRBER
(PlaiipE  ERBNUREFPEARTR) 2 &M@
BEPyBAERNZ B REET - M ERRAT R
MEER - BB ZEREENEN RS AHTESE
MBEEH AR RAI AR - EATARARRE
EBEARIRA - —RM 5 - BEEE—FREAZR
PSR HITATTIE B R AR FR g T DA S -




19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the
Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 March 2020
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19.

8 NE

TRBFIAEEEBREEEAENREERNEE

BB EH :

20203 A 318

Past due
gt
Less than 1to 2to (0)V/-14
Current 1 month 2 months 3 months 3 months Total
Bf  2R1@EA 12218 A 2Z3fH8 &#EB3MEA &5t
Expected credit loss rate  JEEHE B IR X 1.5% 1.8% 1.8% 0.8% 91.5% 14.6%
Gross carrying amount BREAE
(HK$'000) (B¥FT) 54,755 11,618 7,270 4,232 13,230 91,105
Expected credit losses TEHEEEE
(HK$'000) (BT ) 848 204 132 34 12,104 13,322
As at 31 March 2019 20193 A31H
Past due
Less than 1to 2to Over
Current 1 month 2 months 3 months 3 months Total
e AR1EHA 1228  2Z%3{@AF #BB3IEA a&t
Expected credit loss rate  FEER{E B 518 % 1.6% 0.3% 1.7% 1.7% 69.0% 8.0%
Gross carrying amount BRmEAE
(HK$'000) (BETT) 112,688 27,926 2,753 1,897 15,656 160,920
Expected credit losses EHEEEE
(HK$'000) (BT 1835 95 46 32 10,796 12,804

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables, net of provisions, are
denominated in the following currencies:

HK$
RMB
us$
Others

B
AR
eV
Hith

AEERYSEFHBR AR EE 2 REEATIES R

B -

2020
2020 £
HK$’000 7% % T 7t

12,884

63,875
17
1,007

77,783

2019
20194
HK$'000 & ¥ T 7T

1,221
146,817
5

73

148,116
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20. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS

21.

166

20. AR REGCEUREEMEEE

2020 2019
2020 & 2019 %
HK$°000 &% F 7t HK$'000 ¥ F 7T

25,713 49,226
101,952 151,028
4,375 6,406
8,211 6,080

Prepayments FEF

Deposits s
Right-of-return assets REEAE

Other receivables oAt JE U R
Long-term prepayments and DERIENRBEEZ

deposits classified as non-current assets RHEMNGRIES

140,251 212,740

(41,506) (53,165)

98,745 159,575

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial assets
included in the above balances relate to receivables for which there was no
recent history of default. The ECLs are estimated by applying a loss rate
approach with reference to the historical loss record of the Group. The loss
rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions, as appropriate. No loss allowance was provided
because management estimated that the ECLs as at 31 March 2020 and 2019
was minimal.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND TIME DEPOSITS

P EERESHTERE - DAERNTBEER
LY B MBS 7 IR - ECL Y2 EAREE
HE SRR IR A IR A A - BEXEREE
B A HH S B A SRBRER O R R R A B L TROR) iR
EIBE M 2020F R2019F 3 A3EMEHEEE
BN R EEHR IR o

2. RERBREEEYREHRER

2020 2019
2020 & 20194
HK$’000 & ¥ T 5t HK$'000 B8 F 7t

Cash and bank balances Re RBITER
Time deposits TE BT K

336,750 251,242
232,003 159,302

Less: Pledged time deposits for certain B EAE TRERITREEES
short-term banking facilities 2 TE BT

568,753 410,544

(232,003) (159,302)

Cash and cash equivalents ReRRLEEY

336,750 251,242




21.

22,
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND TIME DEPOSITS 21.

(continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash equivalents and time
deposits of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to HK$383,338,000 (31
March 2019: HK$340,194,000). RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s rules and regulations on Foreign
Exchange Administration, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods of between one
day and one year depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit rates. The
bank balances and time deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with
no recent history of default.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s time deposits denominated in RMB
amounting to HK$232,003,000 (31 March 2019: HK$159,302,000) have been
pledged to secure for certain banking facilities granted to the Group (note
32(0)).

TRADE PAYABLES 22.

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

Within 1 month 1E AR
1to 2 months 1Z2@A R
2 to 3 months 2EIEAR
Over 3 months HRiE3{E A

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing.

HERRSEEYREHERE)

RBMEHR  AEEUAREABN RS RIESSE
B9 K E 875 340 B 74 15 383,338,000 7T (2019 F 3 A
318 : B%340194,00070) c ARETEEERERA
Hip &% - /W BIERBE R 2 INETIRIER - A
FEREEBEREEITINEEB ZIRITIBARER
BEHEME -

FHRIRIT 2R SIRE A RITERZIZ N X RIA
B RIXEENNSREHZR  BHERER2F
FHABIREVF - W AE R E A R RIAE o
RITEBREEREROERNEERT AL EE
MR 2 IRT -

HE200F3A30 REBUARB BEN
18 E R #232,003,000T(2019F 3 A31H « B #E
159,302,000 7T ) Z E B F sREMEERUMG A S EE
FRITEE (HFE32 () °

FEAY BR K

RIBEEF - ENERREEE A SR A I
mF -

2020 2019
2020 £ 2019 4F

HK$’000 B #F 5T HK$'000 ¥ F 7t
64,392 40,551

714 51,239

44,501 36,443
136,111 96,270

245,718 224,503

EAEFEARE -
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22. TRADE PAYABLES (continued) 22. ENERR@E
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are denominated in the AEBEMBRRZEMENA TG BB

following currencies:

2020 2019
2020 2019 4F
HK$’000 &% T T HK$'000 & ¥ F 7T
HK$ Mok 31,810 35,768
RMB AR 112,261 27,512
us$ E 100,231 161,203
Others Hity 1,416 20
yZ S Wat:] 224,503
23. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 23, HttERRKRETEAR
2020 2019
2020 F 2019
HK$’000 ¥ T 7T HK$'000 7 ¥ F 7T
Other payables HAbFER IR 47,672 63,830
Customer deposits BE: & 108,179 82,719
Provision for liabilities BERE 21,145 39,254
Contract liabilities (note) AREE () 16,487 22,036
Refund liabilities BRTRARK 6,189 12,821
Accruals ER -4 89,572 101,688
289,244 322,348
Other payables and accruals classified DI RIERE) Z HAb R
as non-current RIEFtER (4,278) (5,770)
284,966 316,578
Other payables and accruals are non-interest-bearing. HEhENZRES BB ARS -
Note: MHE -
Details of contract liabilities are as follows: AENBEEHBEOT :
2020 2019
2020 £ 2019 F
HK$’000 7% T 7T HK$'000 ## F 7t
Short-term advances received from customers KB EFZ AN S E
Sale of goods HEEM 13,422 10,478
Customer loyalty program BFEBMETE 3,065 1,558

16,487 22,036
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24. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 24. FFEBRTREMER
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
Contractual Contractual
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$’000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
EHIFIE (%) 38R BETT EEELEIO) 35 H BT
Current TE
Bank loans and trade AN FERRIRER
financing — secured BEZRTERR
EomE - FER 2.69%-5.06% 2020 SR 290%-4.64% 2019 561,984

Bank loans — unsecured ~ BRM1FRHEEZ

BITEHR — BEI 4.24%-4.96% SRR 332%-4.83% 2019 75,000
Otherloans —secured  EAEFH — K - 838% 2019 150,000
446,150 786,984
Non-current FRE
Bank loans — secured RITER - FER 4.49%-5.06% 2022 567,611 - - -
567,611 -
Total Fat ol 1,013,761 786,984
Certain of the bank loans above are classified as current liabilities due to the ARIBITREARB SIREREE 2GR - tE TN
inclusion of repayment on demand clauses in the bank facilities agreements, FRITERE S EARDAE - MR EREE 2K
without which, the maturity terms of the loans are as follows: o BEREEEERAT
2020 2019
2020 & 2019
HK$’000 7 ¥ T 7t HK$'000 B ¥ F 7t
Repayment within one year or on demand  ZBRA1FER B EE B RILEREE 446,150 786,984
Repayment in the second year AR2F N HEE 138,702 -
Repayment in more than two years ARZHR2FNEIHEE 428,909 -

1,013,761 786,984
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24,

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

(continued)

Note:
All bank borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, including the bank loans
and trade finance repayable on demand, are carried at amortised cost. None
of the portions of the bank and other loans due for repayment after one year
which contains a repayment on demand clause and is classified as current
liabilities is expected to be settled within one year. This evaluation was made
considering the financial position of the Group at the date of approval of the
financial statements; the Group’s continuing compliance with the loan
covenants; the lack of events of default; and the fact that the Group has
made all previously scheduled repayments on time.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had available borrowing facilities amounting
to HK$1,300,997,000 (31 March 2019: HK$1,048,077,000), of which
HK$1,013,761,000 (31 March 2019: HK$786,984,000) had been utilised as
borrowings above as at the end of the reporting period. Certain borrowing
facilities are secured by certain assets of the Group as disclosed in note 32 to
the financial statements.

24,

SFERTREMER(®)

BT

FTAIRITE R LA K (B A -
ARERTER(BREREREEZRTERLRESH®
B) TVImB AT - BRI EM FRIMEERER
BERERERGREDBERARDEBZBHRITE
KBV ENFE - FRHFBHREZSBUATRE: K
SRR ARG BIRERZAR 2 M BN« REBFEY
SERGR OREROEN  AEEBRERERERZ

20203 A31H  AEEABHACREERASE
1,300,997,000 7T (20194F 3 A 318 : ##1,048,077,000
JT) » H A #1,013,761,000 T 2 B & B (20194 3
A 318 : % 786,984,000 T) RREHARDEAH - &
TREEHEAANERE TEEFERBUHENTBHH
=MIFE32 0
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FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES 25. EfRERE
The Group leased certain of its motor vehicle under finance leases prior to NEBTERERERFE165HR 2019F 4 A18 £3GHT
HKFRS 16 becoming effective on 1 April 2019 which expired during the year AREBEBNFANINE 2 MERSEMATE (M
(note 15). 15) ©
The Group’s finance lease payables were secured by a charge over the leased AEEEMBERENEHEAZHELEMGRER -
assets.
At 31 March 2019, the total future minimum lease payments under finance M2019F3AA - BREENREAEZ HEEEN
leases and their present values were as follows: RRERBEEENT
Present value
Minimum lease of minimum
payments lease payments
REHEEMFRK BREHENRZEE
HK$'000 B8 T 7T HK$'000 ¥ F 7T
Amounts payable: JET & EE -
Within one year 1R 699 680
Total minimum finance lease payments SERERENZER 699 680
Future finance charges AR EER (19)
Total net finance lease payables E R A EFEAsE 680
Portion classified as current liabilities HERREBA G (680)
Non-current portion ERBEBH -
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26.

172

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Long service payments

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is obliged to make
lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain circumstances to
certain employees who have completed at least five years of service with the
Group. The amount payable is dependent on the employees’ final salary and
years of service, and is reduced by entitlements accrued under the Group’s
retirement plan that are attributable to contributions made by the Group. The
Group does not set aside any assets to fund any remaining obligations. The
long service payments are paid out from the Group’s cash on hand when
such payments are required.

The plan is exposed to interest rate risk, the risk of changes in the rate of
salary increase rate and the expected return on MPF scheme balances.

The actuarial valuation specifically designated for the Group’s employees was
completed by a qualified actuary, Towers Watson, as at 31 March 2020, using
the projected unit credit method.

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
are as follows:

26.

Present value of defined benefit obligations SRE &M EHHIRE

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of the reporting period
are as follows:

Discount rate AL IR =
Expected rate of salary increases (%) TEH & IR (%)
Year 2019 2019 F
Year 2020 2020 F
Year 2021 and thereafter 2021 R LAT&
Expected annual return of TEH BT BB E
the MPF scheme assets BFEREE

BEEANER
RHRSG

REBFE(REBEND - WAKREEE TERTELLE
REALRBERBELSFONETET  FAUEER
ENFARZEEIXNERARE S - BNSEEER
THREHFEMRBFRFE - AL AEREE
RIRFHEI P R IERE S AR B R R Rl D o AR
SEVEBEBTAEENINENESGNEZESE -
ERBEONZRE  RORESIEAEREZEFR
EXfT o

ZETEIEEEF ERR -
BREYTE B ES 2 B o
HZER2020F3/8318  AAKEEEE MRABE R
BEEHRAERBEMEE BN FAENENETEAT
& °

FEHRAUBRNREERNSTENT ¢

IREIRE 2 LR AR R 84S

2020 2019

2020 20194

HK$°000 &% F 7t HK$' 000 B ¥ F 7T

1,639 2,655
PREHREZRAUTHRERK

2019

2019 4

1.60%

4.00%

4.00%

4.00%

4.00%
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26. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued) 26. EERAEHK 5
Long service payments (continued) REIRTES € (8)
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions at the end of REERRABEABENEEFRESTFIRAT ¢

the reporting period is shown below:

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in
Increase defined benefit Decrease defined benefit
in rate obligations in rate obligations
REBANEKZ RERANEHK 2
3 hn R B, GRd) WD E i,/ (RL)
% HK$000BHEF T % HK$'000 88 F T
2020 2020 F
Discount rate BAIR &
Future salary increase RIRFE LN
Future expected rate of return ~ RIRBTE ST 2456
on MPF balances B 2R TE HA B U 25 K
2019 2019 F
Discount rate ARIR & 0.25% (75) 0.25% 78
Future salary increase RIRFGE LN 0.25% 140 0.25% (D)
Future expected rate of return ~ RIRETES 5T 24584
on MPF balances KR 78 HA [0 s R 0.25% (381 0.25% 543
The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a method that FRSREESMIIBRIEERNRERRESEBRELES
extrapolates the impact on employee benefit obligations as a result of BEBLEBSRMNEFHN T EERE - JUREI N
reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting BENEEERIBEMEE - MEMEIRBZAER
period. The sensitivity analysis is based on a change in a significant T HRETREMEE LA EIFHBR - i)
assumption, keeping all other assumptions constant. The sensitivity analysis BRESMAVERRAEENEZBERERBERZE
may not be representative of an actual change in the defined benefit g o

obligations as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions would occur in
isolation of one another.
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26. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)

Long service payments (continued)

The total expenses recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

in respect of the plan are as follows:

26. EERBAZ=®K (@
REBRE € (48)

2020
2020
HK$’000 & ¥ F
Current service cost A E RIS AL AR 86
Interest cost MegEm 4
Net benefit expenses FRAAXL
Recognised in administrative expenses EFFATTHER

The movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations are as

follows:

At beginning of year
Remeasurements:
— Actuarial changes arising from
experience adjustments
— Actuarial changes arising from
demographic assumptions
— Actuarial changes arising from
financial assumptions
Current service cost
Interest cost
Benefit paid

2020

2020 £

HK$°000 &% F 7t

REH 2,655
EXR

— RERBEMELNREED

—RAOSEBRRESMELS

m
- HEEBREB AN REED

A R o
T .
B8 e

At end of year

RER 1,639

174

AR SRR A B R R AR

BRI

2019
2019 4F
HK$'000 &% T 7T

139
200

339

339

RERNBBORE BT

2019
2019 4
HK$ 000 B F 7T

9,766

(6,606)

(733)
139

200
am

2,655
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)

Long service payments (continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) | 84 7% ¥ 2% i 5 (48)

The movements in the defined benefit obligations and the fair value of plan

assets are as follows:

26. EEBAZ® @

RS E (80
REBMNEBLABNEENAFHERZESHWT

2020 2020
Cost charged to profit or loss Remeasurement gain in other comprehensive income
st ABRIRZHE FARERERBZRERA
Actuarial Actuarial
changes changes
Sub-total arising from  arising from
Net included changes in changes in Sub-total
At 1 April Service interest in profit Benefit demographic financial Experience inother 31 March
2019 cost expense or loss paid assumptions assumptions  adjustments comprehensive 2020
[ INEE
BREH HERBR
120195 FA TELH MEEN FA R2020%
3A1A PR 2 BHE  BEE BN REEE REEE KRERE 2ERANT 3A318
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
ERTR BET BRI BET BRI BT BETT BRI BETT BRI
Defined benefit obligations R EBFIEHE 2,655 86 4 127 (1,931) m 410 379 788 1,639
2019 2019
Cost charged to profit or loss Remeasurement gain in other comprehensive income
SABRREZAA SAEA R ENE 2 BERA
Actuarial Actuarial
changes changes
Sub-total arising from  arising from
Net included changes in changes in Sub-total
At T April Service interest in profit Benefit  demographic financial Experience inother 31 March
2018 cost expense or loss paid  assumptions  assumptions  adjustments  comprehensive 2019
EADGE
BREY  REREE
20185 A MEERE MEEH GtA R20195
3R18 REmRA NS BRERG [ANEER BES fREZ TRAE 2ERANG 3A318
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BT
Defined benefit obligations & BFIZ# 9,766 139 200 339 (1m - (733) (6,606) (7.339) 2,655
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26.

176

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued) 26.

Long service payments (continued)

Expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years are as
follows:

Within the next 12 months RARK121E A
Between 2 and 5 years R2ESFZMH
Between 5 and 10 years RE5EI0F 2
Over 10 years HBIBI0F

Total expected payments FESER /e

Defined contribution retirement plan

The Group participates in the MPF Scheme under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and not previously
covered by the defined benefit retirement plan. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent trustees. Under
the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to
a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan
vest immediately.

The Group also participates in defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes for all qualifying employees in the PRC, Japan and Malaysia. The
assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of independent trustees.

The Group’s total contributions to these schemes charged to profit or loss
during the year ended 31 March 2020 amounted to HK$7,585,000 (2019:
HK$8,486,000) (note 7) representing contributions payable by the Group to
the schemes at the appropriate rates set by the local government of its
subsidiaries.

EERANE®K &)

RHRBE (@)
BRIRARR R ERMEH 2 HFTMT

2020 2019
2020 £ 2019 4F
HK$’000 /& #F 5T HK$'000 &% T 7T

142 21
153 401
99 225
= 974

1,81

FEHRFRIKETE

AEEZBEBSCEHIERATBSTEEIDNRE - A
BREEB(RBIEIDERNEE RZATBIEERTE
BRRAKTEINEE - 2HEBESFE - RESEE
R—EATHEIRKTE  BEUHZTABEE IR
BaESE BREREREEHARBESMBALE
HssmatElER BT EABABBERABE
30,000 LA LBR - HEEIMERTIARSEE o

AEETRAETE BARGRATAERNER
S E—EREHFENRFE - FENEEBINAE
ENEEYEFRBBYIREARERER -

REZE2020F3A31HIEFE - AEBMUL SRS
1E 2t 3X 48 58 B 75 17,585,000 7T (20194 : 8
8,486,0007t) (MizE7) » WEEEBEF I o ILHER
ThARNSE BB A R BRI @ BT @E A Bt R VB -
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27. DEFERRED TAX 27. REFBIE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are as FRREEHREEENEEZEFNT ¢
follows:
Withholding
Accelerated/ taxes on
(decelerated) Employee Impairment undistributed Other
Lease tax benefit of profits of temporary
liabilities  depreciation obligations inventories Tax losses subsidiaries differences Total
HEAR
BE/(HR) ROBEF Hith
HEARE BEfE EERREANEH FEEE BEBE WHAEAFEH ERMER kol
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
At1 April 2018 R2018F4A18 - (1527) 1,61 (4,308) (21,500) 14,320 (26,077) (40,703)
Deferred tax charged/(credited) AR BRIENR /
to the statement of profit or (3t \) ZIRIER B
loss during the year (note T1) GE) - 1098 (38) 82 3485 - 3,658 8,285
Deferred tax charged to the FRARZARARE
statement of comprehensive FTAZERHIE
income during the year - - 121 - - - - 121
Exchange differences ERER - (157) - 166 606 (1,000) 34 (351)
At 31 March 2019 R2019F3 /318 - (586) (438) (4,060) (17,409) 13,320 (22,385) (31,558)
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 HRAVE B RS
(note 2.2) ERAE6ROTE
(M7E22) (2,345) - - - - - - (2,345)
At 1 April 2019 (restated) R2019F4 A1A (E5)) (2,345) (4,060) (17,409) (22,385) (33,903)

Deferred tax charged/(credited) FRRMBIRINE /
to the statement of profit o (FTA) ZIEER B
loss during the year (note 11) (GEI) 1,161 6,068 PALES 9,583

Deferred tax charged to the FRR2EHRAREK
statement of comprehensive FAZERERE
income during the year - = = = C (130)

Exchange differences [EH =5 59 108 94 (732) 267 (197)

At 31March 2020 20203 A318 (1,125) (3,785) (11,247) 12,588 (19,935) (PZXLY)]
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27.

178

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

27. EEBIE )

2020 2019
2020 £ 2019 4
HK$°000 &% F 7t HK$'000 ¥ F 7T

Net deferred tax assets recognised TEERE ISR SRR AR
in the consolidated statement EERIBEEFRE
of financial position

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised TEERE BRI AR R AR
in the consolidated statement BEEHIEREFE

of financial position

(40,526) (49,275)

15,879 17,7117

(24,647) (31,558)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is
levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between the PRC
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable
rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in the PRC in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 March 2020, deferred tax has not been recognised for certain
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings that are
subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the
PRC. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries
will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. At 31 March 2020, the
aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries in the PRC for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised totalled approximately HK$792,991,000 (31 March 2019:
HK$769,309,000).

RBPECEMGEIUE - RPBRZIZIERERE
NS % A BRI SR BUR10% TR ATIS B © Uh#R
JE 200841 8 1H AR - 0@ A #2007 12 A 31
Bigz&7 - e BEINEREEMEREE R A
Ui E - BIAT s A EUE TR ATIS B K - g
SERPEKIZBARMS - BAHER% -
b AEBEEEERZ SR P BRI ZMEQER
2008 F1 AR REL Z BN IKZ RSB TEH
FRISHE ©

HR2020F3A31H » BEFAEBMAPRKLZHER
RIZAD KRBT MAEABIMAERL KERBELT
HeBERA ZEMWBABNA RAERAKAEE
DIRZZERF) - R2020F3 A31H @ EREME QT
BREBENSMABRAZELCHEEENERER Y
@EE A L4 A B 792991000 T (20194 = B #
769,309,000 7T) °
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DEFERRED TAX (continued)
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Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following

items at applicable tax rates:

27. EEFIE (&)
THER ZEERELERLBAREL L FIARE

B

2020 2019
2020 £ 2019
HK$’000 &% F 7t HK$'000 B F 7t

77,538 37,278
577 577

Tax losses HIEEE
Others Hi
Deferred tax assets not recognised KR RERTEEE

78,115 37,855

The above unrecognised tax losses arising in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland
China as at 31 March 2020 of approximately HK$457,413,000 (31 March 2019:
Hong Kong and Macau of HK$231,556,000) are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the above
items as in the opinion of the directors, it is not considered probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the above items can be utilised.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of dividends

by the Company to its shareholders.

MR2020F3A318 + LA EAEERE457,413,0007(2019
F BB MR PIHEEE 231,556,000 7T) RES B K&
FEANMES 2 R ERBIEEE - A R AR HE
ZEEEREBBRARZRRERMAT - BN KREE
WHE AE BRI AR AER FltIEE fEEE - W
EERAVARRUEEEHRECHIEEE -

AR A A H IR 2 BB W8S R PSR -

28. BRZ

2020 2019
2020 £ 20195
HK$’000 &% F ¢t HK$'000 B ¥ F 7t

375,000 375,000

SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised: JETE
1,500,000,000 ordinary shares 1,500,000,000 I B REEE
of HK$0.25 each B 0.25 T 2 LBk
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER

249,182,030 (31 March 2019: 248,551,651)
ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each

249,182,030 A% (2019F 3 318 :
248,551,651 %) & R E (&
B 0.25 L2 EiBR

62,138
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 28. WA (@)
A summary of the movements in the Company’s share capital is as follows: RATRANES L ENT :
Number of
shares in issue Share capital
BITROEE ;&S
HK$'000 & ¥ F 7T
At 1March 2018 MR2018F 3818 246,836,860 61,709
Scrip issue (note 1) KRB (FFEED 1,714,791 429
At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 MR2019F3A3IB K 2019F4 A1H 248,551,651 62,138
Scrip issue (note 2) KRB (FEE2) 630,379 158
At 31 March 2020 R 2020F3 A31H 249,182,030 62,296
Note . The scrip issue included the scrip dividends for 2017/18 second interim MsF1: R ERMDEIFE207/8F kP HKRE AR
dividend and 2018/19 interim dividend, resulting in the issue of 1,714,791 2018/197 BAf% 8. - SREITRR (DB B 51,714,795
shares for a consideration of HK$3,625,000, representing an increase in IR KRB AB 36250007 ORI KA
share capital and share premium of HK$429,000 and HK$3,196,000, 0 7S # 429,000 7T PA K A% 17 S (8 38 o0 7
respectively. 3,196,000 7T ©
Note 2: The scrip issue included the scrip dividends for 2018/19 final dividend, MEE2 : REMBRMD BIE2018/19 KRAIIRE - BFEITRMEE
resulting in the issue of 630,379 shares for a consideration of £630,3790% © I &R E AE1,007,0007T
HK$1,007,000, representing an increase in share capital and share 2 BIA 55 B% 2N 42 Hn A 5 158,000 7T BA R % 19 i (B
premium of HK$158,000 and HK$849,000, respectively. 1N % 849,000 7T ©
29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 29. BRESE
The Company’s share option scheme was adopted by shareholders of the AN A 2 BT EI R 20034 11 A 26 HHRAA A A%
Company on 26 November 2003 (“2003 Share Option Scheme”). The BRI ([2003 F BB AR IERT 81 1) © 2003 4F fE AR i =1 &
purpose of the 2003 Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives or HWERRA T HEEEE THREERRKEF
rewards to participants thereunder for their contribution to the Group and/or NEEN S AEAEESUBELKREESRES -
to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract IR AEREEIFERENEE([KIKETR])MMANE
human resources that are valuable to the Group and any entity in which the BEAL ©

Group holds any equity interest (“Invested Entity”).
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Under the 2003 Share Option Scheme, the directors of the Company are
authorised, at their discretion, at any time following the date of the adoption
of the 2003 Share Option Scheme but before the tenth anniversary of that
date, to offer options to any person belonging to any of the following classes
of participants to subscribe for shares of the Company:

- any employee (whether full time or part time employee, including any
executive directors but not any non-executive director) of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

- any non-executive director (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity;

— any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity;

— any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

- any person or entity that provides research, development or
technological support or other services to the Group or any Invested
Entity; and

— any shareholder or any member of the Group or any Invested Entity or
any holder of any securities issued by any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity.

The exercise price of options is the highest of the nominal value of the shares,
the closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of
the grant and the average closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of offer of the
grant. An offer of an option shall be deemed to have been accepted within 28
days from the date of offer upon acceptance of the option duly signed by the
grantee together with a remittance of HK$1. The maximum number of
securities available for issue under the 2003 Share Option Scheme shall not
exceed 10% of the issued capital of the Company. The maximum entitlement
of each grantee in any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the ordinary shares
in issue of the Company. The option period will not be more than ten years
from the date of grant of the option and the Company’s board of directors
may at its discretion determine the minimum period for which the option has
to be held or other restriction before the exercise of the subscription right
attaching thereon.

29.

IBIRETE (@)

RIF2003 FREAERT 8] ARAREFEREARE
RERM2003F BB B Z RREZBRZE+E
FAIZAEMERE  MER TIERNSE2EERNAL
FEHAE R AD T A BB IR

- ARAE HEAMBARREMNRKRERRN
ErES (TwmE2BERBES - 2 EAH
TEZEIBRBREFIERITES);

—  ARAE - EEAMEQRSERNKREEEBN
ERZERITES (BERBIIFNTES);

- AEEEAKERFREMERE B ENER
B IRFBHER

- AREREAREERROEAES

- AAEESEMRKRERRRERHT  FERX
Bt EREMRBOERNALTHER &

- ARESEABIEE RN RR SRR
BRR . HAREEEMKE R BREMPIRE
ERNERDBEITESFORFAA -

BRENTEESRNMNERE  BORBEEEELY
BT B EE R A PRS0 W 8 MR (D IR B E R AR
AR T B HATTLE 2 AR X TS R TR
BEZEFNRSESHE AR TEBRELA 28R §
M A BB TTE R AR AL E BB A A K
fFE AR - RIAR E R A B B3 48 © IRIR 2003 F 58
MRS BT 4% 2 BERRAE P S 2 B 8 & BT
BHEBARBDEITRAZI0% - FREAIANER
R REER+ —EABRBRRARR S HITERR
1% o B AR MR A AU i R H B AR E B A TS
BATF  ARAEEFANBERELEECTERE
P P P SR R AT A0 B R BB AR M O R AE PR S E At
PR o
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29.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 29.

On 1 March 2013, 15,850,000 options were granted to the directors,
employees and service providers of the Company and its subsidiaries
pursuant to the 2003 Share Option Scheme in respect of their contributions
to the strategic development of the Group. The exercise price of the options
is HK$4.13 per ordinary share of the Company (the “Share”), which is the
highest of (i) the closing price of HK$4.13 per Share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant; and (ii) the average
closing price of HK$4.08 per Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of HK$0.25 per Share on the date of grant.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at
shareholders’ meetings.

As the fair value of the services received from service providers cannot be
estimated, the Group measured the value by reference to the fair value of
share options granted.

The 2003 Share Option Scheme expired on 25 November 2013.

The exercise price of the share options outstanding as at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:

IBRETE (@)

AAFIRIE2003F 2 IS - A A REW
BRRAIZES - BEERRBHEFNYASBERKERE
HE B R 201393 A1HMEHEERH15850,000 1
T LA 7R B8 15,850,000 B AN 2 R I3 » IR HH BB R 2 77
FEARRABERE BB A3T(RM]) BH
BRIATEEZ&ESE () RMREF L B A AT
BEHEARERIRRMESREBE 41370 R3O
MREERLABI AR S BB HESHRE
KR FHRMEERBE 4087 RHAIRER
RO EESRBE0257T °
BRETTAEPHEZEABRRERERREAS L%
EMREF -

AR EIREHEE A E I IRG 2 AP EERERG
i AEEZ2ZERBEREZ ATEEHE -

2003 FEERGIERTZIE R 20134F 11 A 25 B ©
R ERARARITENRBREOITEERT -

Weighted average

exercise price Number of options

IR IGITEE BREHE

HK$ per share & J& %8 1& (000) (F)

At 1 April 2018 R2018F4A1H 3.54 6,603
Lapsed during the period FRT KW 3.54 (980)
At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 R2019F3 A 318 K& 201994 A1H 3.54 5,623
Forfeited during the year FRBE KK 354 (5,623)
At 31 March 2020 R2020F3 A31H 3.54 -

As a result of the Bonus Issue, adjustments were made to the exercise price
and the number of shares to be allotted and issued upon full exercise of
subscription rights attaching to the outstanding share options with effect
from 4 August 2017. The exercise price per share indicated in the above table
is the exercise price per share after the said adjustments were made on 4
August 2017. Prior to the adjustments, the exercise price per share in relation
to share options granted on 1 March 2013 was HK$4.13.

RRAIIRETT - MARITERBREZITEERRZER
REIEFTHI R IE R 2 EITE S T REBE KRBT 2RG
HECDHWAE  B2017FE8F4BRBAM - RATERFT
w2 BRRITEBR AN 207E8 A4 AR B 28K
ITEER - RFER BEENR203F3IAIBREZ
R BRITEERABE 43T -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 29.

During the year, 5,623,000 options were forfeited upon expiry of the exercise
period. During the year ended 31 March 2019, 980,000 options were lapsed
due to the resignation of certain employees.

During the year ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, no share option was granted.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company had nil
(2019: 5,623,000) share options outstanding under the 2003 Share Option
Scheme, which represented approximately 0% (2019: 2.3%) of the Company’s
shares in issue as at that date.

RESERVES 30.

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the
years are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 90 to 91 of the financial statements.

NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW  31.
(a)

Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities of HK$68,718,000 and HK$68,718,000,
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for buildings (2019: Nil).

B8 (@)

RAFE 5623000 BIRERITFERE BMKR -
HRETEITN209F3/831H IEFENBER - &
980,000 1D FE AR #E 2 K 3K ©

PA20204F K 20194F3 A 31H IF 4 [E Rl B4R H BB AR 4 -

R ISR BER - ADQFR B 2003 F Bt
BEREMERITENERE B0HQ0194F :
5623,000)  EARRATEEZZHAEZEITRM L%
(20194 : 2.3%) °

Edi

REBZFHHE FARREFEEZZBHFERUH
BWREORNEZEAERZBRNA -

FEREREBRME
(@) XBIFRERH

FRAEEREFHELHNEREEER
HEBBENIER SIS B A 68718000
TT K88 68,718,000 7T (20194F : &)
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31. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW  31.

(continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:

2020

GEHRERERMTE @)

() MERPHELZE

2020 &

Interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings

Lease liabilities

STERITREMER HEEE

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T TR T I

At 31 March 2019 R20194F 3 A31H 786,984 -
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 RINE B8RS 2ERIF 1695

)21 - 325,783

At 1 April 2019 (restated) FR2019F 4 A1H(EF) 786,984 325,783

Changes from financing cash flow MBS REE 226,777 (185,008)

New leases MHEE - 68,718

Modification &K - 33,608

Foreign exchange movement SN 5 B - (3,869)

Interest expense Flb=NE T - 14,625

Interest paid classified as operating SEAKERSRENEN
cash flows F & - (14,625)
At 31 March 2020 FR2020F3 315 1,013,761 239,232
2019 2019

Interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings

Finance lease payables

SFERITREMER EimERE

HK$'000 HK$' 000

BETIT BT T

At 31 March 2018 20183 A 31H 785,535 1,323
Changes from financing cash flow MERESTREES 1,449 (643)
At 31 March 2019 R2019F3 A31H 786,984 680
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31. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

(continued)

32. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

(c) Total cash flow for leases (00 HEREMHRE
The total cash outflows for leases included in the consolidated APAGRARERERNHEERSRHABHOT -
statement of cash flows is as follows:

2020

2020

HK$°’000

BETT

Within operating activities LEEEN 17,946

Within financing activities MEEEA 185,008

202,954

32. EEEF

In the prior year, the Group entered into banking facility arrangements (a) MRBEFEHM AEBE—RTIERT

(@

(“Existing Facilities”) with a bank pursuant to which the Group’s land
and buildings in Hong Kong with an aggregate carrying value as at 31
March 2020 of HK$75,278,000 (31 March 2019: HK$77,789,000) were
mortgaged by way of a first legal charge, as security for, inter alia, all
obligations and liabilities, actual or contingent, from time to time

owing by the Group to that bank (the “Previous Facilities”) (note 14).

On 29 March 2019, the Group entered into a facilities agreement (the
“Existing Facilities”) with Hang Seng Bank Limited, China CITIC Bank
International Limited, China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation
Limited, Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited, United Overseas Bank
Limited, Chong Hing Bank Limited and Bangkok Bank Public Company
Limited, Hong Kong Branch acting as mandated lead arrangers and
original lenders, pursuant to which certain loan facilities, comprising a
term loan and a revolving loan, in the aggregate amount of
HK$820,000,000 has been granted. The Existing Facilities was used to
repay the Previous Facilities and the Notes, (as mentioned in note
32(b)), on 26th April 2019. The legal charge of the land and buildings
under Previous Facilities was released and mortgaged again under
Existing Facilities by way of a first legal charge, as security for, inter
alia, all obligations and liabilities, actual or contingent, from time to
time owing by the Group to those banks.

BEMERH  BUtRH  REEUE AT
WEM TR EAEBERTEN L REFTR
202043 A 31 B 42 Bk T & /8 75,278,000 7T
(201943 A 318 : 877,789,000 7T ) /EHE T -
LAMER (BB 4E) NE BN R Z SRR
AZMEBEEANBEAERER ZERR-
(TEBEED - (MsE14) -

MR2019F 3298 AEEEEBELRITERA
A RERT(BEBR)ERAF - REERET
(M) B ERAE ~ BHIRIT(FB)BRA
Al KRERTAERAAF - BIERITERRAR
BRRIT(KRBERRE) BEBDTIEAZAE
SHEMITRREBA S —HBEERR ([
EEED Bl ERAERTEBABKE
820,000,000 T A TEE (RIETHER LG
REN) - LR BEERER2019F4A26H
BEEREERMEI0) FRIENER - &8
BEETZ I RIEFAEHRCORER WIS
—EEHEHA NS L REFEEREGEE
TZEE LER(HFBE) REBTRER
ZERTZMAERIRARENER KA

]
o °
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32. PLEDGE OF ASSETS (continued) 32. EEEBE@®
(b)  Inthe prior year, the Group entered into a subscription agreement with (by RBEFEHR  AEBHEREREREES
two institutional investors for senior secured notes (the “Notes”) V—EREHZE AR —HAEEEENE
issued by a subsidiary in Hong Kong, pursuant to which certain NAMEBRTEEFRBER((ZE]) - Bit
inventories (i.e. up to an aggregate book value of HK$200,000,000 of T REBNUE—FHEE(FEHEE]) B
raw materials, work-in-progress and finished goods) of such subsidiary FRAEENBARETHEE(BEREETZR
in Hong Kong were pledged by way of a first floating charge (the 7 # 200,000,000 C 2 EM R - R G R R
“Floating Charge”), as security for, inter alia, all obligations and W) EERE - UEA(ETaE) REBTE &
liabilities, actual or contingent, from time to time owing by the Group RZMERIEREE A ERARBEEEN
to the two institutional investors. The Notes were fully redeemed on 26 BEBRZIRER - ZZ2HER2019F4 526 B2
April 2019 and the Floating Charge was consequently released. BRRED - W E BN IR BE R AR R o
(¢)  Asat 31 March 2020, time deposits of the Group denominated in RMB (¢) M2020F3A31H AEBUARBIEESEAM
equivalent to HK$232,003,000 (31 March 2019: HK$159,302,000) have K AR 4 FA 78 #5 232,003,000 78 (A 2019 3 A 31
been pledged to secure for standby letters of credit granted to the B : ##159,302,00070) 2 EHERE fEEKIF -
Group by a bank relating to a cross border treasury arrangement (note DPESRTEHERERREEEMELTH 2
20, A (fFE21) ©
33. COMMITMENTS 33, REMPELH
(@)  The Group had the following capital commitments for leasehold (@) HR2020F3A3H AEERDE BE K&
improvements at the end of the reporting period: HHERAZNT ¢

2020 2019
2020 & 2019
HK$’000 7% ¥ T 7t HK$'000 B ¥ F 7T

Contracted but not provided for BEY - BRERE 3,731 2,127
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33. COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b)

©

Operating lease commitments as at 31 March 2019

The Group leased a number of properties under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for terms ranging
from one to three years, with options to renew the leases when all
terms are renegotiated. Lease payments are usually adjusted to reflect
market rentals upon renegotiation of the terms of the leases.

Certain lease arrangements have been subject to contingent rent by
reference to monthly turnover throughout the leasing periods. The
minimum guaranteed rental has been used to arrive at the
commitments below.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as
follows:

33.

BEHERHE @)
(b) 2019 3 A 31 B L FE 4y Az

AEENR=HELHHEESTYE - WEHR
HEERRIEREN T 2= LAKE
MIEREORREEREY - CEHERZE
CREGRAEARMTIZESD -

ETHERHEZ2ENTHERNNTALEE
ZEEE c U T ZAREHAKEREESF

fe
= o
7

R2019F3A31H  REBETAHENKLLEHEE
FHER  AEE 2z KRKEEENFTERED
T

2019
2019
HK$'000 & # Tt

Within one year 1ER

In the second to fifth years, inclusive

E2FEFSF (BREERMF)

188,765
166,838

355,603

The Group has various lease contracts that have not yet commenced
as at 31 March 2020. The future lease payments for these non-
cancellable lease contracts are HK$1,517,600 due within one year and
HK$4,200,000 due in the second to fifth years, inclusive.

©

MR2020F3A2H  AREAEAFABRHESE
HEAY - ZETAIRENHEES O RERE
EXHEA—FRE HAER1517,600 T MEZ
ZEHERFR AN 4200000 T (BIEEEM
F)o
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34, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

188

(a)

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions with related
parties during the year ended 31 March 2020:

34,

HrRERREE
HET—RBAERR

O] Purchase from related companies (i)
(i) Sales to arelated company (i)

Balances due to these related companies amounted to HK$34,578,000
(31 March 2019: HK$88,806,000).

These related companies are fellow subsidiaries of Rosy Blue Overseas
Holding Limited, a preference shareholder of Partner Logistics Limited
("Partner Logistics”), whose board of directors is controlled by Mr.
Tommy Tse, the ultimate controlling party and substantial shareholder
of the Company.

(i) (@) Mr. Tommy Tse, the spouse of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie (“Ms.
Annie Yau”), the Executive Director of the Company, has been
employed by a subsidiary of the Company as the Deputy Chief
Executive Officer of the Group; (b) Mr. Tse Sui Luen ("Mr. Tse
Senior”), the father of Mr. Tommy Tse and father-in-law of Ms.
Annie Yau, has been employed by a subsidiary of the Company
as the Founder. During the year ended 31 March 2020,
remuneration of HK$2,141,000 (2019: HK$3,416,000) and
HK$1,304,000 (2019: HK$1,806,000) were paid to Mr. Tommy
Tse and Mr. Tse Senior, respectively.

(iv)  No notional charge of equity-settled share option expense (2019:
Nil) was accrued for share options granted to Mr. Tommy Tse
and Mr. Tse Senior, respectively.

The above transactions in respect of items (i), (ii) and (iv) were not
continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the transactions
were carried out on normal commercial terms and in the ordinary
course of business.

BEALXRS

MRERAMEHRREMIBOFHZZHIN - &
EEREHE2020F3A3B L FEREBEALT
EITUATRS

2020 2019

2020 & 2019

HK$’000 7% ¥ T 7t HK$'000 B ¥ F 7T
275,653 393,174

323,165 404,263

FEAT LA _E B N B 50E A8 15 34,578,000 7T (A
20194 3 A31H : ##88,806,0007T)

LA B3 A B119 A Rosy Blue Overseas Holdings
Limited (£ A& Partner Logistics Limited ([ Partner
Logistics|) MBS RIRR) v A AZME R &l -
Partner Logistics B H& R EE AT H] - 5
BARNRRBIERALTARZARAREBREE -

(i) Q@MEBLEEWARRET —HEEA
RIEMARITERAE  FEBLERS
TEEMRZEZLTZEE  (b)#imEL
EWANBET —HNBARBIAER
E@AMA - HIEBEE A EELE
ZREEBEBEBRZEIZRS - REZR
20200F3ANALFERND B H#HE
I % A & B 2141000 7T (2019 4F : B ¥
3,416,0007T ) M 7t B 8 5 4276 851,304,000
7L (2019 4F : 7% 1,806,000 7T) FEN & -

(v)  REBRAF EZ I E L7 f i 1 5e 4
HImBEERLBREZCFREEZ
AR E 2 R B A (2019%F « &) -

FHEG (HMMWMEXSGBE EWHAE
MAEW NEK —BIREBERS - N FE
ERB ZERHEHBEEBRTREER
FARFETT
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(o))

The related party transactions in respect of items (iii)(a) and (iii)(b)
above constitute continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Since the amount in respect of item
(iii)(b) is below de minimis threshold for the purpose of Rule 14A.76 of
the Listing Rules, item (iii)(b) is fully exempt from shareholders’
approval, annual review and all disclosure requirements under the
Listing Rules.

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

34,

Short term employee benefits HHEEEF

Post-employment benefits EABERN

Total compensation paid to key TNFEEEEAEN
management personnel (ARG

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 9 to the
financial statements.

BEALRS (&)

(b)

ERIEA Gin@) M i) 2 BEA L RZ ZHEK
EHRAFUAERREZHERERS - X
WEE S EFER - BRIER (b)) 2 EIE
R ETRAIE14A 76 R RIEFR 2K - 8%
E A Gib) I ER R RILE  FEEZ X
ETRAUZBERE -

AEETZERAEHE

2020 2019
2020 £ 2019 4F

HK$’000 & # F 5T HK$'000 ¥ F 7T
10,422 15,917

54 54

10,476 15,971

ERMSE - THBENYBIRERME -
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at

the end of the reporting period are as follows:

35. BERISEZEMIA
RBESAR - SEH 2 SRTARAENT

2020 2020 F
Financial assets BBEE
Financial assets at
amortised cost
REBHRARN IR
ZHBEE
HK$’000 & ¥ F
Trade receivables FEUER K 77,783
Financial assets included in prepayments, BEEEMR - HaEURERR
other receivables and other assets MEMEEZMIEEE 110,163
Time deposits TEHFR 232,003
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEeEEY 336,750
756,699
Financial liabilities H®KasE
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
g 1) % DN
ZHKaE
HK$’000 & T 5t
Trade payables FERBRE SR 245,718
Financial liabilities included in other BETEMERNK
payables and accruals LEAERZVBEE 137,244
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FFEERIT R EMER 1,013,761
Lease liabilities HEaE 239,232

1,635,955
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 35. BERNSEZ2EMIA R
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at RBEER > SFRIZERMITEREENT : (8)
the end of the reporting period are as follows: (continued)
2019 2019 F
Financial assets MBEE
Financial assets at
amortised cost
RN AR
2B EE
HK$ 000 BT 7T
Trade receivables FEUER K 148,116
Financial assets included in prepayments, BEEEMNR - EiEKERR
other receivables and other assets MEMEEZMIEEE 157,108
Time deposits TEHFER 159,302
Cash and cash equivalents HekBEeEEY 251,242
715,768
Financial liabilities HigasE
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
R AR
2B aE
HK$'000 B# T 7T
Trade payables FERTBRTX 224,503
Financial liabilities included in other BETEEMENRK
payables and accruals ErtERAZKAE 165,518
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FFERITREMER 786,984
Finance lease payables ENmERE 680
1,177,685
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36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 36. @R TAZAFEERAFEESH

INSTRUMENTS
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial instruments, BETEREAMESEMBENTFEBEMRE 2B IT AN
other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably approximate to fair AREBNMBETEZEMBEEENFEENT ¢
values, are as follows:
Carrying amounts Fair values
BREE AFEEE
2020 2019 2020 2019
2020 2019 4F 2020 F 2019 F
HK$’000 2% Tt [EICYoelol Rl HK$’00078% Tt [IEICKolob 15y
Financial liabilities BisaE
Interest-bearing bank SHEBRITREMER
and other borrowings 1,013,761 786,984 1,013,761 786,984
Finance lease payables EARMERE - 680 - 680
1,013,761 787,664 1,013,761 787,664
Fair value hierarchy: NFEBEZFR
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the TRENWNAEBEN SR TAZ AV EBEFEER :
Group’s financial instruments:
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: BRAFEEKEEZERE :
As at 31 March 2020 A2020F3A31H

Fair value measurement using
AT REHBAE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active markets observable inputs unobservable inputs
ERTSRE ERTERYE EREUEEYE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

(&% 511) (#%52) (#%513)
HK$’000 ¥ T 7t HK$’000 &% T T HK$’000 &% T 5T HK$’000 %% T T

Financial liabilities MEEE
Interest-bearing bank SHERITREMER

and other borrowings 1,013,761 1,013,761
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 36.
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

EMITAZATEERAFEESR®E

NEBEESE (@)

BAFEEHEZAME  (F)
R2019%63 A 318

Fair value hierarchy: (continued)

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: (continued)
As at 31 March 2019

Fair value measurement using

AFEEH B
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active markets observable inputs  unobservable inputs Total
ERTISHRE BEAAEREE BREUNERHIE & H
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(&511) (#512) (8 513)
HK$'000 A% F T HK$'000 8% F 7T HK$'000 B F T HK$'000 & F 7T
Financial liabilities BSEaE
Interest-bearing bank SRBITREMER
and other borrowings - - 786,984 786,984
Finance lease payables  JEffRIERE - - 680 680
- - 787,664 787,664

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements between
Level Tand Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial
assets and financial liabilities (2019: Nil).

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents,
time deposits, trade receivables, trade payables, financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets and financial liabilities
included in other payables and accruals approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the Chief Financial Officer is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for their fair value
measurement of financial instruments. The finance department reports
directly to the Chief Financial Officer. At the end of each reporting period, the
finance team analyses the movements in the values of financial instruments
and determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is
reviewed and approved by the Chief Financial Officer.

FRVEZAFEEFEZHBEEERERN RFR2
ZEFE) - REARELRAI(2019F : &) -

EREETEREERSEE/Y  THEFR - BUER
o RENERF  BEERNR - AtEU R EME
EZUBEENSSEEMRNRIETEBZHH
BEZAFEERAKEERS  TEHRZETLA
LI SRR

MARENEFEYBRETENNBENFAREES
MITANRATFEEFEZBRNEF - UBEBEE
FEFEVBEERR - EBRREHR YBEEES
TeMmTANBEZHNETHERANEIELIE -
HESEERUWHEE 2 FHMLE -
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36.

37.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy: (continued)

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount
at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings have been calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using rates currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit
risk and remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-performance risk for the
non-current portion of finance lease payables and interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings as at 31 March 2020 was assessed to be insignificant.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings, bank overdrafts, time deposits and cash and cash
equivalents. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise
directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate
risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and commodity price risk.
The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Group’s long term debt obligations with a floating interest
rate.

The following sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that change
in interest rates had occurred at the year end date and had been applied to
the exposure to interest rates for financial instruments in existence at that
date. A 1% increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

36.

37.

EMIBEZAFEERAFEESER B

NFEEBESS - &

BAVEEREZAE X (&)
MHEENRBBZAFEE BRTRASBREE
TAEHDEREMNEMX PR TAARBRZGBA
fR o FTATFEERERTATIERRR :

AERITRHEMERNIERSEENHD ZAFEES
KABEHELUER  EERBRLRSEIHA T AR
HEHBEAAKIRSRE - NEBM2020F3 A3185h
FEARERSRERB D EE 2 T B AR KT
BIFEK - REBER2020F3 A3 HMEMNBEHE
FSERBANAH 2 ABHNRBWTEAEEN &
SHEZAFEEDBRERART S ZEBRET -

MEREE B ERBR

AEEZTZSMTASEMBRITRAMER R
TEX EHRERERELBESEEY HEERT
BE2IZ2MENAAEEZERERES - AREE
ETHMPBEENEE WEEKBEEBELELZ
R B R B B A BR A

TRTAMELZ TZ2RR AN XEAR - SMNERR -
EERR RBESCRBEHAERRR EFEF
B R B XAl R R A A 2 B -

R

REBARUZBFEG S Z RBEBZ AN EXEHT
AR TSN E @R

T2 BBE A DBRF RS DRELARATE
7 - BRI A DA B TAFTE S 2 FI%
AR EREEERABNB2EREEBRE KA
THRRIRENSE THE Y B DERERAEY
ARTHEB (LT -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES  37.

(continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

If interest rates had been 1% higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s loss for the year ended 31 March 2020 would increase/
decrease and the retained profits as of 31 March 2020 would decrease/
increase by HK$8,332,000 (2019: profit for the year and retain profits would
decrease/increase by HK$6,278,000). This is mainly attributed to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its variable rate borrowings.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures mainly arising from sales
and purchases by operating units in currencies other than the units’ functional
currencies. The currency giving rise to this risk is primarily US$. The Group
does not hold or issue any derivative financial instruments for trading
purposes or to hedge against fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. The
Group mitigates this risk by conducting the sales and purchases transactions
in the same currency, whenever possible.

In the opinion of the directors, US$ is reasonably stable under the Linked
Exchange Rate System with HK$ and accordingly, the Company does not
have any significant foreign exchange risk.

Credit risk

The Group’s exposure to credit risk mainly arises from granting credit to
customers in the ordinary course of operations. The Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk on recognised financial assets is limited to their
carrying amount at the end of the reporting period.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group reviews
the recoverability of receivables individually and collectively periodically and
at the end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment loss
is made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the management of the
Group considers that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced. The
Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread
over a number of counterparties and customers.

BEREEBERBE®)

R E 2 (#)

fHFRIEAN, TEIE - METAE SRS
RNEEHZE2020F3 AN B IEEE 7 EE RN 2020
FI[NBZREBEFER D, 8332,0007T
(20194F : BF| RARER BFRE L /18 N5 6,278,000
TL) o W EERNAEE G HZ B EERTEEY 2 F
KEE -

SN L i

AEBZZHINERBEZR KA EBELIALDEE
BN ERETZEER - SRULRRZEREER
RTC AEEU BT AR BTEMNITESBIA - U
FEERGREINERRE MG - NEBEEBAERE
BRATURA-E8ETEEIZREILRR -

BEERA ERNAETNBBEXRGET  XTREE
MIRE - Bt - ARBARBERWINERKR

FERR

FEEZEERBRIZRANRAELERRTETE
FREE -ARERNHAVBEEZ RN EERRER
MNEFHRZREE -

REEERRRERE  FNEEEEEETEHRNE
F 8 B E R & SRR BB YRR S AT E - fER
BRI E S BN R SR ERE - plit - AKE
ERERR  AREZEERREANRE - AEHE
EERBYESAED AR ZERS AN ZER
SEHFREP -

195




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) | B 7% R 2= i 5 (48)

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 37. BIEEKREEREEREE &)

(continued)

Credit risk (continued) =ERR @)
Maximum exposure and year-ending staging REBBRERAS KBRS E
The tables below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to TEREAEBENEERR  JREEEZEESE
credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which is mainly based on past ERR GIEEBBRNKAXENETESHEME
due information unless other information is available without undue cost or B BRAITEREZZENBHER  RR3AIBZER
effort, and year-end staging classification as at 31 March. The amounts DEBDEREM - 2 EFT AMBEENRALE -
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.
As at 31 March 2020 7A2020F3831H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECL
121848
FHEEEE HEMEEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F1RER F2RER EIRER ISR &%
HK$°000 HK$°’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T BET T BT T BT T
Trade receivables* FEUBR R - - - 91,105 91,105
Financial assets included in BIEEEMN - Hith
prepayments, other PR K Eo A &
receivables and other assets 2B &E &
— Normal** — 5 110,163 110,163
Time deposits EHTFR
— Not yet past due — &) A 160 B 232,003 232,003
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBEeEED
— Not yet past due — & A 160 AR 336,750 336,750

678,916 770,021
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES  37. MIREKREEBZRBE #®)

(continued)

Credit risk (continued) ZE R @)

Maximum exposure and year-ending staging (continued) BEEBRFEFRATERTEE)

As at 31 March 2019 R2019% 3 A31H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECL
1218 A
TEREEEE HfEERz B k518
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
FIPEER FEOPKER FEIPEER (SRS A&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T
Trade receivables* JE U BR R+ - - - 160,920 160,920
Financial assets included BREEEMNR - Hib
in prepayments, other MR R EMEE
receivables and other assets 2 BIEEE
— Normal** —1F&E* 157,108 - - - 157,108
Time deposits TEHF R
— Not yet past due — [ A28 HA 159,302 - - - 159,302
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBEeEEY
— Not yet past due — R AR 78 HA 251,242 - - - 251,242
567,652 - - 160,920 728,572

" For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach * ANEEFERE L A EWER R ARE - ABYE
for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in HEpE AR BRI BRI IEREM 19 o
note 19 to the financial statements.

i The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, other ** HWEEEEMT  EtERREREMEENEGTEE
receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when they are EtEaHETESNBERASVEEEZEER
not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets S A YIRHERBE AR - AIZEHBEEZZE
had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. HEWERAIEE]-
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37.

198

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES  37.

(continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement of trade
payables, financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals, finance
lease payables, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and lease
liabilities, and also in respect of its cash flow management. The Group’s policy
is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements, its compliance with lending
covenants and its relationship with its banks to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as
follows:

2020 2020 %

Trade payables R

Financial liabilities included BEEEMENT R
in other payables and accruals EAERZHBARE

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings #2888 77 & Hith &5

Lease liabilities HEaE

HK$’000 &% T T

MEEREEBERBEK @

MEE & AR

AEBEBENRMNER  B3EEMRNRRESE
RzWBaE  BNREES  StERITREMER
FEERENERRRSREEREME R ESRAR -
FAEBZBERSEHERRAPESH R  TETAE
KRR 2R M HIRT 2 BIER - MERE AR R
ERRARBESBBBIIS TR 2 RBERE BN
HEMEERHARBDESHFK -

RIWEHR - AEERC AT OERTRRATEZ 8
EZREBERWT

N
]

On demand
or less than 1 year

RERME

1to 5 years Total

FIELT L]

HK$’000 & ¥ T 7t
245,718

1E5%
HK$’000 &% T T

245,718 =

137,244 =

137,244
1,099,916
249,140

1,732,018

484,036
162,811

1,029,809

615,880
86,329

702,209
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES  37. MIREKREEBZRBE #®)

(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) MENE & Bk ()
On demand
or less than 1year 1to 5 years Total
REKER
FIFLAT 1E5F k)
2019 20194 HK$'000 & ¥+t HK$'000 & ¥ Tt HK$'000 B ¥ Tt
Trade payables FERTERER 224,503 - 224,503
Financial liabilities included in other BETEMENR R
payables and accruals EEtERZIKAE 165,518 - 165,518
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings st B R1T R EME T 825,872 - 825,872
Finance lease payables EERE 699 - 699
1,216,592 - 1,216,592
As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s term loans with a repayment on demand HE2020F3A3I8 AEBKEEREEERZE
clause in the amount of HK$307,473,000 (2019: HK$220,500,000) was BB R B 30747300070 (20194 « B
repayable within one year in accordance with the terms of the loans. The loan 220,500,0007T) * HIZBE RO IERAR —FRNE
agreement contained a repayment on demand clause giving the bank the 2 ZERMEESRERKERKR  BYRITEE
unconditional right to call in the loan at any time and therefore, for the HREMNEEERESZESR - Bibst R Bik Rz
purpose of the above maturity profile, the total amount was classified as “on BERESEWELEAIREREE] -
demand”.
Notwithstanding the above clause, the directors do not believe that these BE LG EETTRAZZRITEITER12(E
bank loans will be called in its entirety within 12 months, and they consider AR EREIEE - AR AELLE TG IRER
that these borrowings will be repaid in accordance with the maturity dates as HREXBENEBHAEE  WTIFBEZEEUNTE
set out in the loan agreements. This evaluation was made considering: the IH  REBR AT BRERZER 2R KEEH
financial position of the Group at the date of approval of the financial BEBTERER  BREELNSEN  KEEBFER
statements; the Group’s compliance with the loan covenants; the lack of BRZEMN

events of default, and the fact that the Group has made all previously
scheduled repayments on time.
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37.

200

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(continued)

Commodity price risk

The Group is engaged in the sales of jewellery including gold products. The
gold market is influenced by global as well as regional supply and demand
conditions. A significant decline in prices of gold could adversely affect the
Group’s financial performance. In order to reduce the gold price risk, the
Group uses gold forward and gold loan contracts to reduce its exposure to
fluctuations in gold prices on gold inventory. The gold price exposures are
monitored by management.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light
of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders
or issue new shares. The Group has been imposed with several capital
requirements from banks on the Group’s equity to total assets ratio, net
gearing ratio and consolidated tangible net worth. As of 31 March 2020 and
2019, the Group has complied with these capital requirements. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the year ended 31 March 2020 and 2019.

The Group monitors capital using net gearing ratio, which is total borrowings,
which excludes lease liabilities, less cash and cash equivalents and time
deposits divided by total equity of the Group. Total borrowings include
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and finance lease payables. The
Group’s policy is to maintain the net gearing ratio not greater than 80%. The
net gearing ratios as at the end of the years were as follows:

37.

Total equity st

Total borrowings less cash and cash REERREERCEEY
equivalents and time deposits MEMER

Debt to equity ratio FEEE

BEREEEERBEH)

[EREIELEYE

REEREHEHRE  OEZLER - 22THEE2
BURMEEHRKERFE - S BHRABKA YA
SEZHBRABRIFNEE - BRIEERERR
B AEEFAZSSHEAOUREZSEREBY
HeTEZRBAE TEECERBSERZER
HEIE o

AEREE
AEEEAER Y TERBRARBARBBEEEE

Bz WHFRBZERLE  UXHEEBR
BIBERZEE -

AEBEEREERLER  WIRELEERNEE KIAH
BEZEBBEHEELAE - SRS AREARSE
B AEBEREARORERG ZBE  REIEART
MR BT - AEENEFRRTHAEBENE
TFEARE  BEAEEZESHREELE  AEF
b &= RERE B EEFE - K 20209F 3 A 318 & 2019
FIA3NH  AEBMEAUEERET - REZE 2020
FR209FEIANBUEFE > EABEENEZ  BX
s me -

ARBARFEBELEERALS  DAKENAEER
(TeRHEEaR)RRERRSSENRERENR
FRABZ G HERLREESMEE  HERITRE
ER - ATREESRENRARE - AEEZBE
T FAEL R TSR 80% - RREMRFAEGL
=3 ul

2020 2019
2020 & 2019 %

HK$’000 &%+ 7t HK$' 000 B ¥ F 7T
900,087 1,085,710

445,008 377,120

49% 35%
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 38. BIESARREME

(3) ARAHPBRABREAREHARMAT

(a) Information about the statement of financial position of the Company

at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2020 2019
2020 2019 F
HK$’000 & ¥ T 7t HK$000 B # F 7t
NON-CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB MR E 1,035 1,495
Interests in subsidiaries WEARAER 742,015 768,901
743,050 770,396
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments and deposits EREES 225 173
Cash and cash equivalents BeRIBEEEY 309 326
534 499
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables and accruals Hih et R e+ & B (2,084) (2,374)
(2,084) (2,374)
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REEEFE (1,550) (1,875)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERRBARS
LIABILITIES 741,500 768,521
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEME
Deferred tax liabilities RERBEE (164) (237)
(164) (237)
NET ASSETS EEFE 741,336 768,284
EQUITY %
Issued capital BEITRA (62,296) (62,138)
Reserves s (679,040) (706,146)
TOTAL EQUITY R (741,336) (768,284)

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23

June 2020.

Yau On Yee, Annie il 22 &
Ng Yi Kum, Estellafh &=

Directors &%

FEEEN2020F 6 A 23 HZEILFFA] )3 -
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 38. BAESAR W ()

(continued)

(b) A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: (b) ARAFZRHEBEHELT :
Share
Share option Contributed Retained  Proposed
premium reserve surplus profits dividend Total
R
RORE BRERE BRE% RKEER KHRE ko)

HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$000  HK$O00  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT  ABTRT  AERTRT  BRTET AT E¥TRL

At 1 April 2018 R2018F 4 A1H 117,966 15,719 14,770 583,231 18,019 749,705
Total comprehensive loss for the year ZFEE 2 HEEBEAE - - - (16,834) - (16,834)
Scrip shares re 2017/18 2017/18 8 — IR

2nd interim dividend BB S 2,243 - - - (2.523) (280)
Scrip shares re 2018/19 2018/19 R BARR B B A%

interim dividend 953 - - (1702) - (149)
Dividends paid during the year RERBRKE - - - (10,800) (15,496) (26,296)
Proposed 2018/19 second R 2018/19 R HARE B (HI5E12)

interim dividend (note 12) - - - (13,919) 13,919 -
At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 #2019 3A31HK

2019 4H1H 15,719 540,576 706,146

Total comprehensive loss AEE2AEEBRESE

for the year (14,036) (14,036)
Scrip shares re 2018/19 2018/19 P BARR B B A%

final dividend (1,007) (158)
Forfeiture of share option BRB BBk

upon expiry (15,719) 15,719 - -
Dividends paid during the year RERBIRIE - - (12,912) (12,912)
At 31 March 2020 R202063A31H 122,01 - 14,770 542,259 - 679,040
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

() Share premium represents premium arising from the issue of
shares at a price in excess of their par value per share.

(i) Capital reserve include the difference between the aggregate
nominal value of the share capital of the subsidiaries and their
combined net assets acquired pursuant to the group
reorganisation and restructuring.

Other reserves include statutory reserve and exchange
fluctuation reserve. Statutory reserve is appropriated from the
profit after taxation of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries under the
applicable laws and regulations in the PRC, while exchange
fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences

arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign

operations. Exchange reserve is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies set out in note 2.4 to the financial
statements.

(i) The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess

of the fair value of the shares of the Group’s subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to a group reorganisation over the nominal
amount of the Company’s ordinary shares issued in exchange
therefor, less the set-off of the accumulated losses of the
Company amounting to HK$865,747,000 as at 29 February
2004 pursuant to a capital reorganisation.

(iv)  Share option reserve comprises the fair value of share options
granted which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in
the accounting policy for share-based payments in note 2.4 to
the financial statements. The amount will be transferred either

to share capital account when the related options are exercised,

or to retained profits should the related options expire or be
forfeited.

39. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
board of directors on 23 June 2020.

38. BiIEMRIKE (&)

(o FHEMEERED

h  BO&EFEZBASREEZ ERE
TR PREE R o

(i BAREEEMELARZAFBRAEE
NIREEEERNBHER ZFEE

Hib B RmEEREMINEL B HE
EERBRRETEERZEERER
EARERPRENHEARZRRIZER
MBS MIMNEZ B RHBERFREEIN
EBUBBREEZMBELZME - %
IR IR TS R MY A 2.4 PREL S T IR
B o

(i) ARAZEBEHBBEBAERAEENERF
REAE R IRIE S E B A G 0
ZAFEERARFRRNEBREE
ZERE - BARFN2004F 28298 b
RERAEHEBEZ RFABRER
865,747,000 T

(iv) BREFEELEBEESRBE®RITEANE
Bz XTEE WRONRZZ2E
ATBRO R B MK 2.4 1F 1 — 2R
o ERBEBEEERITEE XSRS
BRERMSER : SHEBEELEDH
HENE - ERERBRT

39. MB®mRZMEZ

A EHMERNR2020F6 B3 HEEE etz MRE
FEg -
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FIVE-YEAR

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

T FEBRE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests
of the Group for the last five financial years/period, as extracted from the published
audited financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out

REERBEREMRFE 2 ZEREE - BERIFZERE
Rigsm  PHRAEAMZEERBRRLEEYEHH
BOER) » #FT o R EW FER S E R ERE

below. This summary is not part of the audited financial statements. ) — 3B °
RESULTS E4
Thirteen months
ended 31 March
Year ended 31 March 2018 Year ended 28/29 February
BE3AJNALEE BZ2018%E HZE2A28/981LFE
2020 2009 3A31H 2017 2016
20205 20194 F+=1{EA 2017 20164
CIEHOOOERE SN HKS'000 B Tt HKP000 B Fr  HKY000 B Tr  HK$000BH T
TURNOVER BEE 2,913,827 4,064,920 4137179 3,410,923 3,538,862
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX  BHiAT (E518) /&7 (60,028) 99,442 89,850 51,882 46,306
Income tax expense FEHER (29,726) (45,275) (40,342) (28,678) (22,493)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE AEE (B1R)/ BT
YEAR/PERIOD (CENLT) 54,167 49,508 23,204 23813
Attributable to: e -
Owners of the Company AREHEBA (89,670) 54,161 49,419 23177 23,623
Non-controlling interests TR R R (84) 6 89 27 190
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE AEE (B1B)/BF
YEAR/PERIOD (89,754) 54,167 49,508 23,204 23813
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ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY (CONTINUED) | F B i6 1T 2 (48)

BE  RENRFERRREDS

Non-current assets ERBEE

Current assets REBEE

Current liabilities mEAE

Non-current liabilities FrBEE

Net assets EEFE

Issued capital BEIRA

Reserves e

Equity attributable to owners AR EIEAA
of the Company el B

Non-controlling interests FEVERR AR SR A A

Total equity ERAE

As at 31 March
R3IA3A

2020

2020 F

HK$000 &+ 7T
495,091

2,213,824
2,708,915

(1,135,351)

(673,477)
900,087

(CYVEL))
(837,918)

(900,214)
127

(900,087)

As at 28/29 February

W2 B 28/29H

2019 2018 2017 2016
20194 20184 20174 2016 5
HK$000BEFT  HK$000BME Tt HKY000EE T HK$000 BT T
284,882 236,898 249,646 305,540
2,172,265 2,316,952 2,379,922 2,369,757
2,457,147 2,553,850 2,629,568 2,675,297
(1,345,295) (959,817) (911,282) (1,267,625)
(26,142) (441,219) (744,004) (376,994)
1,085,710 1,152,814 974,282 1,030,678
(62,138) (61,709) (52,584) (52,584)
(1,023,6T) (1,091,125) (921,841) (978,219)
(1,085,749) (1152,834) (974,425) (1,030,803)
39 20 143 125
(1,085,710) (1152,814) (974,282) (1,030,678)
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SUMMARY
OF PROPERTIES
Y EITES

Gross floor area Percentage interest

Location (Square Feet) in property  Category of tenure Usage
i 25 BEEME(EFR) MEERLEE FHHSE A

1 Private Car Parking Space
Nos. 43-50 and 73, Basement, and
Lorry Car Parking Space Nos. 1-4, 6, 11 and 14, Ist Floor
Summit Building, 30 Man Yue Street,
Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong Kong N/A 100% M C
BENEAMRBEIOREETEAE
HhE5 43-50 %% & 73 SR FLR BB SAE AL K
—IB1-45% - 65% MR 4R EERE

2 Units A1-A7, B, Front and Rear Portion,
Storeroom No.3 and 5, Ground Floor;
Units A1-A2, B and C, 1st Floor;
Unit E-H, 2nd Floor, and
Units A-K and Flat Roof, 3rd Floor
Summit Building, 30 Man Yue Street,
Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong Kong 91,455 100% M
BEANEARMRBEI0ORHEETIEHAE
R A-A7 B - BEfL - ATEEND - SRSHEME
—IEAI-A2EN - BRCEM : ZHE-HEBMK
“EAKBURFES

3 Units A & B, 1st Floor, Shui Ki Industrial Building,
No. 18, Wong Chuk Hang Road,
Aberdeen, Hong Kong 10,716 100% L
BERBEBFENB8InHIERNE —EAZBEN

4 Flat A, 21st Floor, Block 7,
Parc Palais, No.18 Wylie Road
Kowloon, Hong Kong 1,245 100% M R
BENEFEESHRERETEIEAE

5 Unit Al on Level Tand 2, Block 2,

Heng Chang Garden, Beijing, PRC 1,654 100% L R
FEILRTMSEGEEERERERFE_ T 1RE
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) | ¥ % 2 (48)

Gross floor area Percentage interest

Location (Square Feet) in property  Category of tenure Usage
ih 2h EBEEmBE(EHFR) MEERLEE FHANSE A

6 Flat 01, 23rd Floor, Block F, Beijing Rome Garden,
Cao Hui Road, Chaoyang District,
Beijing, PRC 1,735 100% L R
FELRMAGEEERAERTRFE- T =19 E

L: Long term lease L: RHIZL
M: Medium term lease M HERRAY

C Carpark C.  CHEf

I Industrial unit I TERERN
R: Residential R (F=£H
N/A: Not applicable N/A: TiEA
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